2K 7 [OHl R
TOPSPRING

- s
TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED |
RREDBREESRA D | 2l

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) &

(REEHEEMALNERLA) 3 " Y
Stock Code {5 1£%;: 03688 éﬁ
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &} A






12
14
16
17
48
67
75
92
104
143
152
153

154
156
158
160
273

B &

RNEEHR

SEET

EEH/EE
RERRE
REHEEE
BFANXBEHRE
EEEARR DM
L/E SR A

RE  HERERHRSE
EEERRE
ESrEREEERERE
BEEHREE
BYRBERE
REEER

meBENEM
2HEHKER

mETBEIRRE
HAERBBHE
HABREHER
B A SRR MIRE
IEHBRE

CONTENTS

Corporate Information

Group Introduction

Chairman’s Statement

Honours and Awards

Corporate Social Responsibility

Overview of Our Business

Management Discussion and Analysis
Property Projects Portfolio

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report

Biography of Directors and Senior Management
Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary



2

~NEEH

HEBEFREMERAR
ZT—NFIR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEg
HITES

BRBESE (LERYETTEAAE)

FHELL

BREVS S (BB TTIEAREL)

FRBELE

FHTES
AHERE(EEE)
WKL

FHERE(RZZ—RFNAA—HEHE)

BYFHTES

BROOKE Charles Nicholas?c 4=
(R=ZZ—RF+=A=HET)

BEmELE
RMRHI
REA KL

DNEME
E{EBE

REAXR
ERBSEE
TiE S

BRERES
WA (/)
B S
KMRHE

FMWEEE
MRS (1)
EigRAE
SMRHE

REZEE
SMRYE (L)

mERSEE
BELLE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr WONG Chun Hong (Chairman and Co-chief Executive Officer)
Ms LI Yan Jie

Mr CHEN Feng Yang (Co-chief Executive Officer)

Mr WANG Tian Ye

Non-executive Directors

Mr XU Lei (Vice-Chairman)

Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence

Mr LEE Sai Kai David (resigned with effect from 1 September 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas

(resigned with effect from 2 December 2016)
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo
Professor WU Si Zong
Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr WONG Tak Chun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr WANG Tian Ye
Mr WONG Tak Chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi
Professor WU Si Zong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr WONG Chun Hong
Professor WU Si Zong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Professor WU Si Zong (Chairman)
Mr WONG Chun Hong
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo



3

RAEH

CORPORATE INFORMATION

TREREEE
EUELL ()
WIS

BRI S

REA St

B BUEm
LEFEH BB - HLEHE

BRLEER
RERREREES

AMPSEE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HRAHKR
ERERMI

75 /E186-85%
e
261204-08=

34100
BFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BB FERE
EEBYE
BEEABLABRAR
a5
EERBEHR1839

B RIFR221E

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Ms LI Yan Jie (Chairman)

Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi

AUDITORS
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS
Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Rooms 04-08, 26th Floor
Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong



a REEREEARAR

ZT—NFIR
AARIE R
CORPORATE INFORMATION
FEERERIT PRINCIPAL BANKS
TR IRITIRND BRAE] Ping An Bank Co., Ltd
R R ERTT Agricultural Bank of China
PEIRAERITROBRAA China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
M aIRTT Bank of Nanchang
RIBIRTT Bank of Communications
BRIRTT DBS Bank
PR TARITORF RN BRAF Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
BARITAR AR Hang Seng Bank Limited
FRETERT(EEMNBRAA Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
BEIRTT China Guangfa Bank
REEBRR INVESTOR RELATIONS
=EEREE Mr WONG Tak Chun
i grinae:id STOCK CODE
03688 03688
BEEE[ BOARD LOT
500% 500 Shares
NGBS COMPANY WEBSITE

www.topspring.com www.topspring.com



5

SB[

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

GROUP INTRODUCTION
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Top Spring International Holdings Limited (“Top Spring” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”, “we" or “us”) is a real
estate property developer in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") specialised
in the development and operation of urban mixed-use communities and the
development and sale of residential properties in the Pearl River Delta, the
Yangtze River Delta, the Central China, the Beijing-Tianjin and the Chengdu-
Chongging regions in the PRC. As at 31 December 2016, we had a total of
19 property projects at various stages of development in Shenzhen, Shanghai,
Nanjing, Nanchang, Sanhe, Chengdu, Huizhou, Hangzhou, Dongguan, Tianjin,
Changzhou and Hong Kong of the PRC. Besides, the Group is actively exploring
the international healthcare sector in the PRC which will be an integral part of
our principal business in the future.

On 23 March 2011, Top Spring listed its shares (the “Shares”) on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The listing on the Stock Exchange not only represents a successful establishment
of a global financing platform that forms a solid foundation for our long-term
development, but also allows the Company to further improve its corporate
governance standards, to recruit and retain competent employees in the PRC
property industry as well as to improve the Company’s brand awareness and
raise its profile among its customers.

We intend to continue to leverage our experience in identifying land with
investment potential at advantageous times and acquiring land reserves
which are or will be well connected with transportation and infrastructure
developments. Moreover, we intend to continue to acquire new land or project
in locations with vibrant economies and strong growth potential, in particular,
Shenzhen, Shanghai, Nanjing and Nanchang of the PRC.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back in 2016, although domestic real estate market encountered the
springing up of land king, and property price and sales volume continued to
soar, the market atmosphere has suddenly cooled down with various property
market adjustment policies in place since the second half of the year, and
resulting in the Group facing various challenges, such as the decrease of
contracted sales, saleable gross floor area (“GFA") and gross profit margin of
the recognised sales in 2016, the increase of market financing costs and the
tightening of financing facility as well as an increase in the operational risks like
fierce competition for bidding of land/project in first- and second-tier cities of
the PRC. It is fortunate that the Group had adopted a series of drastic reform
measures to achieve stable results of the consolidated financial statements for
the current year and a very healthy level of financial condition (especially the
net gearing ratio).

In 2016, the Group launched 12 projects across 9 cities in the PRC, recorded an
aggregate of contracted sales from the sale of properties and car park units plus
subscribed pre-sales of approximately HK$4.57 billion, of which subscribed pre-
sales amounted to approximately HK$525.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 46.3% as compared with 2015. Excluding the subscribed pre-
sales, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately HK$4.05 billion
from the sale of properties and car park units (of which approximately HK$3.90
billion was from contracted sales of properties with an area of 187,383 square
metres (“sg.m.”) and approximately HK$151.2 million was from contracted
sales of 1,032 car park units) in 2016. The average selling price (“ASP") of
the contracted sales of properties was approximately HK$20,797.5 per sq.m.,
representing an increase of approximately 5.4% year-over-year. Benefited from
the continuous positive feedback of project sale of Shanghai Shama Century
Park located in Lujiazui, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the contracted sales
of such single project amounted to over HK$1.3 billion in 2016, with ASP of
approximately HK$81,404.6 per sq.m. which is higher than the ASP of the
other second-hand properties in the same district and its ASP in 2015. The
significant reduction of contracted sales was primarily due to some saleable
resources planned to launch in 2016 were disposed in the form of transferring
shares to other independent third parties and settling of intercompany loans of
their respective projects, the aggregated amount of which was approximately
HK$5.55 billion during 2016.
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Other than the aforesaid contracted sales of the real estate projects in the
PRC, the Group achieved reasonable investment returns and substantial cash
returns through certain equity transfer of certain project companies. On 19
May 2016, the Group entered into a framework agreement with Sunac China
Holdings Limited (“Sunac China”) in relation to the disposal of the Group’s
entire equity interest in seven project companies located in Sanhe Yanjiao,
Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenzhen and Huizhou to Sunac China (however,
the Sanhe Yanjiao project was not included in the transaction eventually as
another shareholder of the project had exercised its pre-emptive rights, and the
transaction in respect of the sale of equity interest of such project originally held
by the Group to Sunac China (or its designated companies) did not proceed).
The total amount (including the consideration and the total intercompany loans)
of this transaction with Sunac China amounted to approximately RMB3,901.6
million. The Group is of the view that the transaction is in the interest of
the Group and its shareholders as a whole. Hangzhou Hidden Valley, a loss-
making project located in Hangzhou which the Group faced severe operational
difficulties, is one of the disposed projects and also the main purpose of these
disposals. By casting off this project through such disposals, the Group was able
to divest Hangzhou Hidden Valley and integrate its resources. Besides, on 8 July
2016, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement with Beijing Huaxia
Shunze Investment Group Limited (“Beijing Huaxia”), pursuant to which the
Group agreed to sell its 51% equity interest in Sanhe Yanjiao project (that is,
Beijing Top Spring Shunze Flower Garden) to Beijing Huaxia. As a result of the
above two transactions, the Group recorded other net income (before taxation)
of approximately HK$682.3 million in total from such disposals, which reduced
the Group’s liabilities, enhanced the Group’s asset structure and ensured
sufficient capital to implement the Group’s new strategy of re-focusing on the
Pearl River Delta, the Yangtze River Delta, the Central China, and to support
the Group's business transformation step by step.

In 2016, the Group's rental income from investment properties decreased from
approximately HK$323.7 million in 2015 to approximately HK$278.0 million in
2016, representing a decrease of approximately 14.1%. This was mainly due to
the Group's disposal and delivery of a part of Shanghai Shama Century Park in
2016 which resulted in the loss of certain tenants and a decrease of the total
leasable GFA. Although the Group’s rental income from investment properties
decreased, the total occupancy rate still remains at a relative high level. The
overall occupancy rate was approximately 83.4% (as at 31 December 2015:
81.9%) as at 31 December 2016. As of 31 December 2016, the Group's total
leasable GFA of the operating investment property portfolio slightly decreased
to approximately 235,753 sg.m compared to approximately 251,041 sg.m.
as at 31 December 2015. Together with the projects that are completed but
yet to operate formally or to be completed in the next three years, the future
total leasable GFA of the Group’s investment property portfolio will reach up
to approximately 434,852 sq.m. Its fair value was approximately HK$6,709.3
million as at 31 December 2016, representing approximately 25.8% of the
Group's total asset value.
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As at 31 December 2016, the land bank (that is, the net saleable/leasable
GFA) of the Group was approximately 2,351,954 sg.m. In terms of land bank
strategy, the Group will focus on the first- and second-tier cities in China, such as
Shenzhen, Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou and the core cities in Jiangxi Province
such as Nanchang where working population is increasing, the transportation
network is effective, the high speed rail, metro network and expressway are
in operation or under construction, or economic growth potential is strong.
As ever, the Group continues to maintain a prudent land bank strategy to
look for land and new project acquisition opportunities. The current land
bank of the Group will be sufficient for its development and operation for
the next five to eight years. Therefore, in 2016 the Group indirectly acquired
one redevelopment project in Dongguan (located in the surrounding area of
Shenzhen) and two projects existing for industrial use in Shenzhen only by
the form of cooperation. The site area available for construction of the three
projects were approximately 106,000 sg.m., 32,000 sq.m. and 23,000 sq.m.,
respectively. The expected saleable GFA of such projects was not included in
the land bank of the Group as at 31 December 2016 as these projects were
in the process of application for redevelopment, indemnificatory housing
development from industrial use and preliminary project approval. As for the
overseas land bank expansion, following the Group’s acquisition of a total
of three parcels of land with expected GFA of approximately 130,000 square
feet (“sq.ft.”) in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (which is currently for agricultural
use and located next to Tai Tong Road and Shap Pat Heung Road) through
the acquisition of the respective holding companies at the end of 2015, in
2016, the Group and several independent third parties also entered into four
respective sale and purchase agreements to acquire four parcels of agricultural
land located next to the land held by the Group in Yuen Long, with an
expected GFA of approximately 119,000 sq.ft. In addition, a sale and purchase
contract in relation to a parcel of agricultural land with an expected GFA of
approximately 18,931 sq.ft. has been entered into in 2016 and was completed
in January 2017. The Group is considering to integrate the parcels of land
and pay premium in the future to change the usage of the agricultural land to
residential, for the purpose of the development of the Group'’s first residential
project in Hong Kong.

In 2016, the Group commenced new construction on three projects with a
net saleable/leasable GFA of approximately 276,211 sg.m., representing a
decrease of approximately 52.1% as compared with 2015. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group completed five projects with a net saleable/
leasable GFA of approximately 407,795 sg.m., representing a decrease of
approximately 18.4% as compared with 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had a total of two projects under construction with a total estimated net
saleable/leasable GFA of approximately 41,059 sq.m., representing a decrease
of approximately 91.3% as compared with 31 December 2015.
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At last, the Group, by virtue of its good creditworthiness, completed the
subscription agreement with the relevant investors for the issue of the first and
second tranches of the three-year convertible bonds due 2019 in an aggregate
principal amount of US$200 million (with interest rate of 6% per annum)
on 6 January and 21 March 2016, respectively. In addition, the Group also
completed the domestic issue of RMB corporate bonds in a total issue size of
RMB800 million with a coupon rate of 5.8% per annum (for a term of over
three years but not more than five years) on 14 September 2016. The successful
domestic and overseas issue of bonds increased the flexibility on the fund
utilisation for the Group, which was able to optimise the long-term and short-
term debt structure.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Central Government is expected to continue its
implementation of its tight policies on currency and real
estate regulation and control to curb the housing bubbles
Since the second half of 2016, the Central Government’s policies on domestic
real estate has been regulated and positioned based on the principle that
“House is not for speculation but for self-occupation” to stimulate the real
estate market to grow steadily and healthily by classified implementation of
financial controls on real estate, thereby promoting the inventory clearance.
On 28 February 2017, Chinese President Xi Jinping once again stated at the
15th meeting of Leading Group for Financial and Economic Affairs held then
that it is a must to resolutely manage the financial market chaos, to give full
consideration to the characteristics of the real estate market, and to study the
short-term and long-term long-acting mechanism. President Xi also mentioned
that the measures to curb asset bubbles should be in place such as financial
risk prevention, establishment of regulation and coordination mechanism,
strengthening macro-prudential supervision, strengthening planning and
coordination capabilities and prevention and resolution of systemic risks. In
view of this, there will be a limited space for the Central Government to further
loosen its monetary policies in the future, and it will rely more on the fiscal
policies on real estate market stabilisation in the future. In fact, some key cities
have begun to tighten their mortgage policies starting from the second half of
2016, so inventory clearance is still the top priority for all developers in 2017.
Therefore, the Group believes that the golden age of domestic real estate has
passed. The possibility to reap more profits in the future is relatively slender, so
that all the resources acquired in the form of public land auction in first- and
second-tier cities is not quite suitable for the Group. The Group will acquire
the land and project resources by the way of mutual cooperation between
companies, equity transfer, construction agency and light-asset model in the
future. At the same time, the Group’s success in realising a significant cash sum
to obtain reasonable profits and reduce liabilities by transferring its shares in
certain real estate project companies to other independent third parties in 2016
may serve as a possible new future operation model of the Group, which will
be easier, faster and more direct for the Group to obtain reasonable returns on
investment than self-development.
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Active Exploration of Transformation into “International
Healthcare Enterprise”

With (i) the domestic economic takeoff resulting in an enlargement of the
middle-class group in the PRC during the latest two decades, (ii) increasing per
capita income, (iii) the elderly population reaching a certain proportion of the
total domestic population, and (iv) the increasing awareness of the health to
people importance, the Group has realised the importance of the healthcare
business. In view of this, as for the healthcare sector, the Group participated
in, at the end of 2015, the capital increase in New China Life Excellent Health
Investment Management Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned health check chain
corporation established by New China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (Stock
Code: 601336.SH) in 2011, and acquired 10% of its equity interest after the
capital injection, and in the near future, the Group may consider taking more
ways of direct investment and actively explore for the consolidation of the
healthcare resources (including businesses of medicine production, product
sales and trading center and projects of medical equipment) owned by other
independent third parties and/or EFFE M MERIKEEEEGR A7 (Yunnan
Metropolitan Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd*), the Group's state-
owned shareholder, to become a leading healthcare resource investor and
operator in the PRC. Furthermore, the Group will take advantage of the huge
market demand arising from Chinese social and economic transformation,
striving to seek for the direction of the Group's diversified investment and
development in the future. The above transformation plan is expected to enable
the Group to create a stable profit growth and achieve the ultimate target of
capital appreciation in the future so as to break the situation where the PRC
real estate enterprises have long been underestimated in the Hong Kong capital
market.

Profit maximisation: Maintain and moderately increase rental
properties with stable growth, and tap into overseas real
estate markets

The Group adheres to the principle of “profit maximisation” to conduct
sales of its existing and potential projects based on profit maximisation
for its shareholders. Unless there is an issue on capital sufficiency or high
inventory level, the Group will not apply price-cut strategy to its property
sales. The Group's saleable resources in 2017 are RMB5.5 billion (equivalent
to approximately HK$6.1 billion) with a total saleable GFA of approximately
131,901 sq.m. These saleable resources, which comprise residential units,
serviced apartments, retail properties, offices and car park units, are expected
to be launched for sale in 2017. The Group will alternatively consider asset
realisation by way of cooperation in projects or transfer of equity interest from
time to time.
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Looking forward, the Group considers that the rental income with a steady rise
is very important. Currently, the Group has rental properties of approximately
235,000 sq.m., which is able to bring the Group with rental income of not
less than HK$200 million per annum and it is expected that the rental income
may raise even higher by holding more self-owned properties in the future. At
the same time, the Group believes that, people in the Mainland are interested
in making more investments in overseas real estate properties due to capital
appreciation resulting from the mainland’s quantitative easing, the continued
depreciation of RMB against US Dollar and the effect from wealth accumulation
of domestic citizens. With this change, the Group’s future investments will
cover some western advanced countries and the countries that domestic people
will be interested in emigration and investment, such as Australia, the United
Kingdom (“UK"), the United States of America and in particular, Hong Kong
which is closely linked to the Mainland. Except for a very good return in the
UK's real estate investment in the past, the Group currently has a residential
development project by purchasing considerable scale of agricultural lots in
Yuen Long, Hong Kong. It will be an alternative way to obtain real estate
projects in Hong Kong especially many mainland real estate companies which
have recently tendered for lands in Hong Kong. The Group believes that it
would not rule out the possibility of expanding investments in Hong Kong
because the relevant financing costs, simple and efficient tax structure, strong
US Dollar and housing demand of real estate investment projects in Hong
Kong are favourable factors and could possibly bring good returns. Finally,
the Group just announced on 10 March 2017 that it acquired 49% of the
units of a trust from a connected person, obtaining 49% of the development
right and ownership of a residential project in Sydney, Australia. The Group
believes that the project is located in a prime location in proximity to Sydney’s
city centre with convenient transportation and good environment. Therefore,
an increase in overall housing demand of Sydney is expected according to the
future population growth in Sydney and the recent huge investment in public
infrastructure by the local government of Sydney.
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As an evolving listed company living up its corporate value of “joint efforts
in creating and celebrating success”, Top Spring is always conscious of its
responsibilities as a corporate citizen to the community at large and spares
no effort in fulfilling its social responsibility and has always been proactive in
promoting the development of corporate social responsibility.

In 2016, the Group, under the leadership of our Chairman, Mr WONG Chun
Hong, gained a lot of recognitions from society for a variety of charitable works
including the provision of aids to minority society, improving the living standard
of the community and making contributions in education and cultural affairs.

Top Spring put forward with continued efforts to support students from
poor families for further education in China. Since 2010, Top Spring and
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation have jointly established New Great
Wall Scholarship Project — Top Spring International Scholarships, providing
supports to college students from poor families in Guangdong, Jiangsu, Jiangxi,
Yangzhou and Sichuan.
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2015/ 2016 EEB Rt ® 5 B 17
Walks For Millions

Since 2016, the Group donated more than HK$5.23 million in total to the
institutions and activities such as Beijing Lead Future Foundation, Shenzhen
Fraternal Association for Original Members of Guangdong-Jiangxi-Hunan
Border Area Column (&I R BEEMEH XS R BtEE2), China Foundation
for Poverty Alleviation, Hebei Overseas Compatriots Education Foundation (JA]
1t & BINAEZE E 4 ), LuoDian FengTing NaPing MinZu Primary School (7
) S%iE = MIT R R/NE), Beijing Green & Shine Foundation, The Community
Chest Walks for Millions in Hong Kong and the 9th Teacher’s Sports Festival
of Hong Kong Federation of Education Workers, in order to facilitate the
economic development in China’s border and poor regions for both elderly
and youngsters and the reconstruction after disaster, promote healthy
development of the youth, conduct charity activities in Hong Kong and support
education, sports, and cultural activities for improving society, culture, arts and
environment. In addition, the Group participated in the Zhong Lun Charity
Foundation Top Spring University Students Support Program in Tongjiang
County and designated representatives to the Tongjiang county of Bazhong city
in Sichuan province for this event to visit the local teachers and students.

In the future, Top Spring will be committed to promoting the sustainable
development of the company and the society through setting goals of corporate
social responsibilities that are in line with our overall strategic development,
with a view to become a well-respected company.
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The table below sets forth the net saleable and leasable GFA information of
our 19 property projects in terms of planned use of the properties as at 31
December 2016.

EEES)
HFEER
IEfE AR
SEMEARR  hELH AR
BREEEE EEMEE
Contracted
to be Acquired
or under
Application
Under Held for Future For change
Completed Development Development In land use
GFA
753K
sq.m.
FEHEW® Properties held for sale
F=E Residential 47,734 38,059 - 863,781
BIE S BRBRAAE Hotel/Serviced apartments 33,859 - 48,145 -
?% Retail 63,912 3,000 198,560 466,228
WMRE Office 45,924 - 72,200 35,700
Net Sub-total 191,429 41,059 318,905 1,365,709
BIEREWH Properties held for investment
RERNAB,/ TWRE Serviced apartments/office 19,257 - 20,000 -
=& Retail 239,595 - 156,000 -
NEF Subtotal 258,852 - 176,000 -
FAHERHEZESEEME Net saleable and leasable GFA 450,281 41,059 494,905 1,365,709
REREBEBRTE SN RUHERTHEREAR
E’Q‘Z_g—/_\i"l—:ﬁi‘f’—ﬁ .
Estimated net saleable and leasable GFA by development status and city
as at 31 December 2016
1.0%
9.3%
19.1% ,3-5%
2.2%
17% 1.6% N
BRRREERSES &ﬂggl%ﬂn
HREERE KM
GFA by 17.8% GFC?;y 63.7%
Development Status
21.1%
58.1% 0.5%
0.4%
77 Ksq.m. FFKsq.m
BTIE c leted project 450,281 = %Y Shenzhen 1,498,749  m#Jll Hangzhou 50,845
" HELAR orﬁpe oc projects K J&# and surrounding regions  ® X3FE  Tianjin 81,938
= ERIER Projects under development 41,059 &1  (including Dongguan) #M Changzhou 219,329
w BEORORESEHIER  Projects held for future 494,905 (BfE = &% HongKong 23,601
development fz) e -
= /% Shanghai 10,418 REEE
EEHIS TREELIES  Projects contracted tobe =~ 1,365,709 "R Nanjigg " 10784 Total GFA 2,351,954
B E AR A IE R ?cqu;]red orAur?deéappllcanon B2  Nanchang 218 005 B
orchange In [and use wFK#  Chengdu 38,285
YEESEEE Total GFA 2,351,954
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS IN 2016

1

Project and

Type of Project

Contracted Sales

In 2016, the Group recorded an aggregate of contracted sales of
properties and contracted sales of car park units of approximately
HK$4,048.3 million (of which approximately HK$3,897.1 million was from
contracted sales of properties), representing a decrease of approximately
50.2% over 2015. The contracted saleable GFA was approximately
187,383 sq.m., representing a decrease of approximately 52.7% over
2015. The ASP of the Group’s contracted sales of properties in 2016 was
approximately HK$20,797.5 per sq.m. (2015: approximately HK$19,736.0
per sg.m.), representing an increase of approximately 5.4% as compared
with 2015. The increase in the Group’s overall ASP was mainly due to
a larger proportion of contracted sales of properties generated from
contracted sales of serviced apartments, and retail and residential units in
various projects situated in Shanghai and Nanjing, which generally yielded
a higher overall ASP. In addition, the Group’s contracted sales of car park
units in 2016 was approximately HK$151.2 million from the sale of 1,032
car park units.

A breakdown of the total contracted sales of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016 is set out as follows:

(@) Contracted sales of properties

ERTHE
EEmEE
Contracted
Saleable GFA

sq.m.

ERHEE
Contracted
Sales
BEBTT
HK$ million

ERTHEERE
Contracted
ASP
BIT A

HK$/sg.m.

ZYl - Shenzhen KL — R Hidden Valley — Shenzhen

—{F= — residential 962 0.5 75.1 1.9 78,066.5
£/ Shanghai EB 4L AE  Shanghai Shama Century Park

RS - serviced apartments 17,058 9.1 1,388.6 35.6 81,404.6
B&  Nanchang HEHREEE Nanchang Fashion Mark

—F= — residential 9,740 52 183.7 4.7 18,860.4

—-ZE — retail 8,761 4.7 207.1 52 23,638.9

—WRE - office 26,959 14.3 308.3 7.9 11,435.9
/Nt Sub-total 45,460 24.2 699.1 17.8 15,378.4
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AETHE
BEEER ARHE ARATHERE
HAR Project and Contracted Contracted Contracted
EEER Type of Project Saleable GFA Sales ASP
SRR BEBT BT AR
sg.m. HK$ million HK$/sq.m.
B&  Nanjing KRG Y — R The Sunny Land — Nanjing
—F= - residential 14,190 7.6 279.5 7.2 19,697.0
—-Z£ — retail 5,739 3.1 186.1 4.8 32,427.3
/Nt Sub-total 19,929 10.7 465.6 12.0 23,362.9
BMm  Nanjing HRHEEE Nanjing Fashion Mark
—fF=£ — residential 2,058 1.1 36.7 0.9 17,832.8
—T& — retail 3,753 2.0 129.3 3.4 34,452.4
/&t Sub-total 5,811 3.1 166.0 4.3 28,566.5
=3 Sanhe b RS EE o Jk#t Beijing Top Spring Shunze
TEH Flower Garden
—F= - residential 12,137 6.5 205.2 53 16,907.0
# Hangzhou KEIEXR — The Spring Land — Hangzhou
-5 - retail 2,306 1.2 59.9 1.5 25,975.7
M Hangzhou  #/N KL Hangzhou Hidden Valley
—fF=E - residential 2,335 1.2 417 1.1 17,858.7
=) Huizhou BMFESOKGE Huizhou Hidden Bay
—fF=E - residential 36,025 19.2 420.9 10.8 11,683.6
#M  Changzhou #M#HF#He Changzhou Fashion Mark
—fF= - residential 121 0.1 0.5 0.0 4,132.2
—-Z£ — retail 463 0.2 5.4 0.2 11,663.1
/Mgt Sub-total 584 0.3 5.9 0.2 10,102.7
M Changzhou &M Changzhou Le Leman City
—F= — residential 24,257 13.0 165.4 4.2 6,818.7
—-Z& — retail 7,157 3.8 104.2 2.7 14,559.2
—WRE - office 4,856 2.6 23.8 0.6 4,901.2
/Nt Sub-total 36,270 19.4 293.4 7.5 8,089.3
FE  Tianjin RIBFEW Tianjin Le Leman City
—fF=E - residential 7,114 3.8 60.1 1.6 8,448.1
- - retail 1,392 0.8 15.6 0.4 11,206.9
/Nt Sub-total 8,506 4.6 75.7 2.0 8,899.6

#st  Total 187,383 100.0 3,897.1 100.0 20,797.5
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(b) Contracted sales of car park units

BUARHERE
Number of ERTHEE
Contracted Sales SREHER Contracted
Project of Car Park Units Contracted Sales ASP
1@ BEBT BT/ A
unit %  HK$ million HK$/unit
£/ Shanghai 54 AE  Shanghai Shama Century Park 59 5.7 19.6 13.0 332,203.4
B& Nanchang HEHREEE Nanchang Fashion Mark 461 44.7 58.2 384 126,247.3
fm  Nanjing KEHFER—ER The Spring Land — Nanjing 151 14.6 29.1 19.2 192,715.2
M Hangzhou  FKiHR —H/M The Spring Land — Hangzhou 143 13.9 32.9 21.8 230,069.9
M Changzhou BN Changzhou Le Leman City 218 211 1.4 7.6 52,293.6
1,032 100.0 151.2 100.0 146,511.6
RZBE—AEEBT - XFEAEMN (2) Projects Completed, Delivered and Booked in 2016
IHH

HE_Z—XRFE+_A=+—HILEFE "
AEERTRERZEERTE S (B14M
)« BINHESKEE - FINES A G-
A) KBS R R RERSI, - AJHE
NI EREEEIEL H407,795F 2K o

HEZT-—XF+ZA=+—HLFE "
MBREERER - NEBRZEIN - EE -
R AU BN BN RRER YR
REBHEMESRSEER(TREEE
i $4 € ) 49/54,950,500,000/8 7T * [IEE 49
337,848 KAV Al SHE L MG D R
REE_T—AF+ZA=+—HLF
EDRIRD4947.6%K%406% - HE-Z
—A"NF+ZA=+—HLLFE  HEWE
MERRFEHEERT T KE14,653.0
B BHE_T-—AFT+-_A=+—H
IEFEREF 5 KH16,609.5%8 7T T &4
11.8% °

BE-Z-RF+ZA=+—RHLEE"
MRHERER » A SERN RER

MEEMEETF LE K540 FEEA -
ERABHEEBRFHEEIRNA
77,900,000/ 7T & B = B {1 141,894.47%8
ﬁ: o

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group completed
constructions of Nanchang Fashion Mark (Lot B14), Huizhou Hidden Bay,
Changzhou Le Leman City Phase 10 (5-A), The Sunny Land - Nanjing
and Tianjin Le Leman City with total saleable and leasable GFA of
approximately 407,795 sq.m.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's property development
business in Shenzhen, Nanchang, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Huizhou,
Changzhou and Tianjin achieved a turnover from sale of properties
(excluding sale of car park units), after deduction of sales return, of
approximately HK$4,950.5 million with saleable GFA of approximately
337,848 sq.m. being recognised, decreased by approximately 47.6%
and 40.6%, respectively, over the year ended 31 December 2015. The
recognised ASP for the sale of properties was approximately HK$14,653.0
per sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease
of approximately 11.8% compared with approximately HK$16,609.5 per
sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group delivered and
recognised the sale of car park units, after deduction of sales return,
with a total recognised sales amount and ASP of approximately HK$77.9
million and HK$141,894.4 per unit, respectively, from the sale of 549 car
park units.
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Details of the projects’ completion, and sale of properties and car park
units of the Group recognised in 2016 are listed below:

HERIEE &R

KIFER — R

Al Shenzhen

BRIy
AHE THE
BEER
Saleable/
leasable GFA
of Properties
Completed
K

sq.m.

Project and
Type of Project

The Spring Land — Shenzhen

EARASHE
BEmE
Saleable GFA
Booked
Ik

sg.m.

Sale of
Properties
Recognised
BEBT
HK$ million

2ER
FEE
Recognised
ASP

BT/ FRHR
HK$/sq.m.

—{F=F - residential - 185 3.8 20,605.4
Al Shenzhen YKL Shenzhen Hidden Valley

—{F=E - residential - 962 62.7 65,226.6
& Nanchang HERSHE Nanchang Fashion Mark

—{F=E - residential - 20,034 354.3 17,687.2

—SERBAE — retail and office 114,986 66,488 1,034.2 15,554.0
/N&t Sub-total 114,986 86,522 1,388.5 16,047.9
&  Nanjing IKGEX-—FR The Spring Land — Nanjing

—x= - residential - 237 6.5 27,733.1

& — retail - 86 4.9 57,279.1
/N5t Sub-total - 323 1.4 35,513.9
M  Nanjing KRS Y — R The Sunny Land — Nanjing

—fF=E — residential 149,067 145,648 2,367.3 16,253.3

—TE - retail 8,398 4,734 121.9 25,751.8
/N&t Sub-total 157,465 150,382 2,489.2 16,552.2
M Hangzhou  k#iER —Au The Spring Land — Hangzhou

—{F=F - residential - 2,140 50.1 23,427.6

—5E — retail - 6,323 164.8 26,065.0
/N&t Sub-total - 8,463 2149 25,392.9
i Hangzhou FUN AT L Hangzhou Hidden Valley

—E= - residential - 2,869 60.7 21,150.2
=M Huizhou NS KM Huizhou Hidden Bay 56,541 18,342 183.1 9,982.7

—F= — residential
M Changzhou  HINFSESE Changzhou Fashion Mark

—fE= - residential - 2,073 16.1 7,763.1

-5 — retail - 664 12.0 18,105.4
/Nt Sub-total - 2,737 28.1 10,271.8
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Project and
Type of Project

ERIME
AHE AHE
BEEER
Saleable/
leasable GFA
of Properties
Completed

sq.m.

EARAHE
EEmR
Saleable GFA
Booked

sg.m.

E2ER
MEHE
Sale of
Properties
Recognised
E] 7T

HK$ million

#I  Changzhou  EIMNHESH Changzhou Le Leman City

—{F=E — residential 46,317 42,273 271.7

—Z5 — retail 5,929 6,956 105.7
/Nst Sub-total 52,246 49,229 3774
K& Tianjin FAEHEH Tianjin Le Leman City

—fE=E — residential 26,557 17,601 137.6

-5 — retail - 674 6.8
/N&t Sub-total 26,557 18,275 144.4
SRR Less: Sales return
M Changzhou  HINFKSEE Changzhou Fashion Mark

—fF=E — residential - (119) (4.6)
& Nanchang HMEXREHE Nanchang Fashion Mark

—fF=E — residential - (138) (2.0)

—ZTERHAE — retail and office - (184) (7.1)
/N5t Sub-total - (322) 9.1)
3 Total 407,795 337,848 4,950.5

2R
FHEE
Recognised
ASP

BT AR

HK$/sq.m.
6,426.3
15,197.2
7,665.6
7.819.8
10,135.0

7,905.1

38,911.6
14,473.4
38,446.5
28,260.9

14,653.0
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(3)

HEBEFREMERAR
ZT—NFIR

EAREEN CEREEN
4= HE =L
Number of Sale of Car EIHEE
Car Park Park Units Recognised
Project Units Booked Recognised ASP
1 AEET 77t/ 18
unit HK$ million HK$/unit
R Nanjng  KEEX—FER The Spring Land — Nanjing 137 26.8 195,620.4
M Hangzhou 7KiFFR — M The Spring Land — Hangzhou 192 40.4 210,416.7
# I Changzhou &N HS Changzhou Le Leman City 222 1.1 50,000.0
/Nt Sub-total 551 78.3 142,105.3
o HEIRE Less: sales return ) (0.4) 200,000.0
#5t Total 549 77.9 141,894.4

REVE(BEIEASELENER
BYE)

BRIEEaTHRENDEN  AEETHE
MaraHAREMELAE  HEFXER
EEYES  HEFERL  TEBEE -
RERXRDBREENL - 27 EEKE
HER-FY - BMNESEE  FHNERS
o REREmERDL  MMNESREES
D RYIKBITERD - BB S AL - F A
RKE#HE MMKEEFER N EETIEH
CRARE RN_E—XRE+-_A=+—
A AEBEREVENEIREBNB
6,709,300,000/& 7 ' h A EEERE
49258% - AEEKREMEMLA LS AMA
EREATMEL A434,852F K - Hep
EREALBNREMEIHERZER
44235753 F 5K AR BEIGA
5,464,600,0007% 7T ° & M 2 5 5 L B3 (2-
B—HEEBHN—BTEEE(EN-Z
—RNF+-AZ+—HRIEHFZE)
R HEELEMBELN F23,009F 5K -
N E{ERI#) A178,600,000/8 7T © &
MERERERSHENBEYEE - T
EFERRBRAAB(RZ2ZE—X F+=
A=+ —BERERE)  ATHERE
HTE4 A176,000F 5K RAEEY
£1,066,100,000/87C - B =2 —_F—~F
+—A=1+—BLEFE  FTEBEHRGFE
EMELAARBERE(IBETHE) D
230,600,000 L (HEz=—ZE—RAF+=A
=+—HIFE : #215,900,000/87T) °

(3)

Investment Properties (inclusive of investment properties
classified as held for sale)

In addition to the sale of properties developed by the Group, the Group
has also leased out or expects to lease out its investment property
portfolio comprising mainly shopping malls, community commercial
centres, retail shops, serviced apartments, office and car park units in The
Spring Land — Shenzhen, Changzhou Fashion Mark, Changzhou Le Leman
City, Dongguan Landmark, Hangzhou Landmark, Shenzhen Water Flower
Garden, Chengdu Fashion Mark, Nanchang Fashion Mark, Hangzhou
Spring Land and Shanghai Shama Century Park in the PRC. As at 31
December 2016, the total fair value of the investment properties of the
Group was approximately HK$6,709.3 million, representing approximately
25.8% of the Group's total asset value. The Group’s investment
property portfolio had a total leasable GFA of approximately 434,852
sg.m. of which investment properties under operation with a leasable
GFA of approximately 235,753 sq.m. had a fair value of approximately
HK$5,464.6 million. A retail asset at Changzhou Le Leman City Phase
9 (2-B) — Fashion Walk, which was completed but yet to operate as at
31 December 2016, had leasable GFA of approximately 23,099 sg.m.
and a fair value of approximately HK$178.6 million. The investment
property comprising a shopping mall, retail shops and serviced apartments
of Nanchang Fashion Mark, which was under development as at 31
December 2016, had leasable GFA of approximately 176,000 sg.m., and
a fair value of approximately HK$1,066.1 million. The Group recorded
approximately HK$230.6 million (net of deferred tax) (for the year ended
31 December 2015: approximately HK$215.9 million) as gain in fair value
of its investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2016.



23

EEENWE DT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AEERZEEENEETEN - ARMEDN
MHEFER MBHAEKTERBAFNBRES
DERXBORBIRERS - AEBR
SIRAEENEF  BPAEBEREAIEEE
B AEBBEZENZENHEEIRE
HREAEENHANER BREEZHE
ME @S - EEEIREER - NBEEMU
MEREBHIEREER - RZT—F
+ZA=+—8 AEENMNEEHEF
(BE—REDETMERERBHAIHEESR
HEAMBEREIB10.0%) T EREmBEN
AEBEERREYENATHAEREMBEL
359%(R=_ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H: 4
35.8%) °

BHE-_Z—XE+_A=+—RBILtFE
HHER-_FT—RAF+-_A=+—HY
B19%AZE—T—A"F+=ZA=+—8H
83.4% MM IEE L/E S IHH L AEE R
AEBEMAHEREERERY  HEZZT
—RNFE+ZA=Z+—RHLFE  A&EH
BT S U A #9278,000,000/8 7T © B E
ECE-RAFE+_A=+—HBHILEEH
323,700,000/ 87T 4014.1% - BEZZF
—ANE+Z A=+ ALEEAE@EEE
PIREYENAGRERANEEFHK
M788T(BE=_ZE—RAF+=-A=1+—
AIEFE - 8AFFHKI131.28T) - A
HESWATE  FZREAALAEERE
HERREMERSTY®  LEREEEY
BHL AR MESHE-Z—XF+=
A=+ —BLEFEARELBTERERY
2B o

HEREHE(REER TR F+-A
=T BAMBERDRENE)  BESR =
TNFRTNFE -
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The Group carefully plans and selects tenants based on factors such as a
project’s overall positioning, market demand in surrounding areas, market
levels of rent and development needs of tenants. The presence of large-
scale anchor tenants which the Group has attracted enhances the value of
its projects. The Group enters into longer-term and more favourable lease
contracts with such anchor and reputable tenants which include well-
known brands, chain cinema operators, reputable restaurants and top
operators of catering businesses. As at 31 December 2016, the GFA taken
up by these anchor and reputable tenants, whose leased GFA was over
10.0% of the total leasable GFA of a single investment property, made up
approximately 35.9% (as at 31 December 2015: approximately 35.8%)
of the Group’s total leasable area in its investment properties under
operation.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the occupancy rate increased
from approximately 81.9% as at 31 December 2015 to 83.4% as at 31
December 2016. Owing to the sale of Shanghai Shama Century Park,
resulting in a reduction in the Group's leasable GFA, the Group generated
rental income of approximately HK$278.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, representing a decrease of approximately 14.1% from
approximately HK$323.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The average monthly rental income of the Group's investment properties
under operation for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$117.8 per sgq.m. (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
approximately HK$131.2 per sg.m.). The decrease in the average monthly
rental income was mainly attributable to the decrease in rental rate of
the Group’s existing investment property under operation, in particular,
Shanghai Shama Century Park as well as the impact of depreciation of
RMB against HKD during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Nanchang Fashion Mark, the Group’s investment property under
development as at 31 December 2016, is expected to complete
construction and shall commence operation in 2019.
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AEER-_FT-AF+t-A=t—ANEK
EMERAEERZ_ZT—RFE+-A
=T RLEFENBESRAFEEHIINT

Details of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2016 and
the Group’s rental income for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out as follows:

Bz
—E-Xf
+=A
Er=1
LEEEH
BYHKAH
i 27 HEWA
—E-XF Average
=3 ZE-R Monthly
=t+—HH = Rental
AHERSE T= Income per
[EE sq.m.
Leasable GFA for the
as at year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2016

(Krzx6)

(Note 6)

RENE (BRI ERREY
ENRENE)

Investment Properties
(inclusive of investment
properties classified as held
for sale)

MARER
Fair Value

as at

31 December
2016

Rental Income
for the year
ended

31 December
2016

Occupancy
Rate as at

31 December
2016

EEIRENE

BHREHE R

Investment properties under
operation
Changzhou Fashion Mark Phases 1

A

sg.m.

BEBT
HK$ million

BEBT
HK$ million

HK$/sq.m.

“H(BEYRSRESE)  and 2 (Shopping mall and car park
units) 78,068 14134 56.0 69.2 86.4
RERZEERD Dongguan Landmark (Shopping mall
(iEs RiIFEh) and car park units) 20,172 518.0 378 156.2 100.0
MMNESEERL Hangzhou Landmark (Shopping mall)
(BBE%s) 24,667 376.2 294 993 100.0
FYIKETER(ZEEE)  Shenzhen Water Flower Garden (Retail
assets) 4,992 2411 217 379.0 956
IKEER— R —H The Spring Land — Shenzhen Phase 1
—HREN(TEEE) — Fashion Walk (Retail assets)
(FsE1) (Note 1) 3,356 178.6 12.0 298.0 100.0
KEER— R =5 The Spring Land - Shenzhen Phase 3
~HREN(TEEER — Fashion Walk (Retail assets and
FEf) car park units) 22,393 625.1 258 953 98.4
IKEER— R~ The Spring Land — Shenzhen Phase 5
-R5EN(TEEE) — Fashion Walk (Retail assets) 3,521 186.4 13.1 3209 9%.6
IKEER—R7<EA The Spring Land - Shenzhen
Phase 6A
-R5EN(TEEE) — Fashion Walk (Retail assets) 1,291 636 6.9 4454 100.0
KEEXR— R 58 The Spring Land - Shenzhen Phase 6B
-R5EN(TEEE) — Fashion Walk (Retail assets) 2,893 141.8 46 134.0 98.9
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RENME(BHEIBAEFL

ENRENE)
Investment Properties
(inclusive of investment

properties classified as held

for sale)

BMARSH

R®
ZE—RE
+=A
=t-B#
AHEREE
[T
Leasable GFA
as at

31 December
2016

(FifzE6)

(Note 6)

sq.m.

TA'EIE

as at

31 December
2016

BEAT
HK$ million

Changzhou Le Leman City Phase 11

B

—2-%
+=5
=t-8
LEER
CEON

Rental Income

for the year
ended

31 December

2016

BEAT
HK$ million

BYHKRAY
HEBWA
Average
Monthly

Rental
Income per
sg.m.

for the
year ended

31 December

2016

B/ FHR
HK$/sq.m.

(ZEEE)(M:2) (Retail assets) (Note 2) 16,858 1228 14 109
REHEHE Chengdu Fashion Mark (Shopping
(Bmis REh) mall and car park units) 38,285 755.7 206 196.5
HESEH AR Shanghai Shama Century Park
(BB LB RESAL) (Serviced apartments and car park
(P3E3) units) (Note 3) 10,418 663.1 334 2384
MNKEERRAE) Hangzhou Spring Land (Office) 8,839 178.8 0.4 228
DERRERE (M) Shanghai Grand Pujian
Residence (Note 4) - - 14.9 -
it Sub-total 235,753 5,464.6 278.0 17.8
ERTEXAEEHNREYE Investment property completed
but yet to operate
FNERSRL-B) Changzhou Le Leman City Phase 9
(2-B)
~RREH(TEERE) — Fashion Walk (Retail assets) 23,099 178.6 -
BRYREYE Investment property under
development
HERSHE(BEWES - Nanchang Fashion Mark (Shopping
TERERRBEAAE) mall, retail shops and serviced
(Fft3E5) apartments) (Note 5) 176,000 1,066.1 -
@t Total 434,852 6,709.3 278.0

Occupancy
Rate as at

31 December
2016

63.5

68.5

93

100.0

N/A &R

834
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MEET 0 KEER - R - HZEHTEELE Note 1:  The unoccupied areas of the retail assets in The Spring Land — Shenzhen
H R B R 18 Bk E R — R AT Phase 1 — Fashion Walk mainly represent the sales centre of The Spring Land
EREEEBHNINFIROREFL - K - Shenzhen with leasable GFA of approximately 791 sq.m. which the Group
EEGH RN B EHE - intends to lease out in the future.

Mizr2 . ZEEEEFEERGHEMNETHT— Note 2:  The retail asset represents a habilitation and recreation centre of Changzhou Le
HESCEER L) o Leman City Phase 11 for leasing purposes.

MzE3: R-ZE—XF+-A=+—8 ' LEDE Note 3:  As at 31 December 2016, leasable GFA of approximately 42,351 sg.m. out
g AE R A SR EmEL49,357F 5 of approximately 49,357 sq.m. of Shanghai Shama Century Park had been
Ko HFH2 3N FEFRKEZS—AFE sold since 2015 and approximately 24,614 sq.m was delivered during the year
e BY24614FHKREE=T ended 31 December 2016.

—NFE+ZA=t+—ALFEEXRN -

Wixd: M-Z—XNENA=+—8 CRBILE Note 4:  The property was disposed to an independent third party on 31 August 2016.
=HHEZYE -

M5 RZT—=F1A  EREERSHIR Note 5:  The land use rights certificates of the investment property of Nanchang Fashion
EYNER T AR - 2L EYETBE Mark were obtained in June 2013. The investment property is expected to
REZZ-NFRTRHE - ZIREWER complete construction and shall commence operation in 2019. This investment
EREEYES  TERERMEAERR property is planned to comprise a shopping mall, retail shops and serviced
WRBALE - AIEEREEED BN apartments for leasing purposes with leasable GFA of approximately 118,000
118,000°F 752K + 38,000 77 2K }2 20,000 sg.m., 38,000 sgq.m. and 20,000 sq.m., respectively.

FIAK e
Wire: BE—ZT—XE+-_B=+—0 aI#EHE Note 6:  The leasable GFA as at 31 December 2016 excluded car park units.

BEBMBETBEEEL
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(4) BE-Z2-AF+ZA=1+—HH

(4) Land Bank as at 31 December 2016

bR
Gl
P "\.\'
( e aed]
=\ B J Tianjin Le Leman City
~ “‘\ ~ 6 _ ENRESE
—J ) 2 N angzhou Fashion Mark
. - o Uy | N\mmeme

r“Changzhou Le Leman City

e — ¥ A ABEX - R
. i \ - s 1\-.(5\ x ‘ The Spring Land - Nanjing
d ( L i -4 j - KB - B
b el r\\\(\ ~) ‘V P The Sunny Land - Nanjing
S ¢ J e, / )
; : ke S
\I;\,M/"“*"“ ﬂ—'—x}‘ﬁ? PN 2 Tlanjm -
s ) G
(~ \ =if & \3\?: Egzhou
S e e LESEHEAR
) - R W A njing > Shanghai Shama Century Park
& —/ { uo CJ
A é (54 "? Shanghai e s s e oy
\\\ hengduo E K Ningbo| Hangzhou Landmark
= o KEEX - M
m pr T, f\f}j}—:} The Spring Land - Hangzhou
ﬁkﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁ J \\J 5 2 Fuzhou
Chengdu Fashion Mark( { : amen
1 = FEREHE
) e N M Nanchang Fashion Mark
Hud g\Guan)qzboﬁ 1 Shenzhen
‘ Nanning W , E% Hong Kong
CJ RERBAHD D
Dongguan Landmark
—— BB THEE

BE-Z—XR&E 19 property projects
+ZA=+—H# as at 31 December 2016
198 %1E B
® KTIHH Completed projects
o TR Projects under development
@ IFERRBERK Projects held for future
EEIHK TR development or
FFERE contracted to be acquired
R TR TE B
HHERBREEAEZHMT  Major city with high speed
e railwa
e 55255 /

High speed railway

X . Hong Kong Yuen Long Project
RINK B TER

Shenzhen Water Flower Garden
RINKAE L

Shenzhen Hidden Valley
KgER — R

The Spring Land - Shenzhen
RYIESEE

Shenzhen Fashion Mark
WY EE

Shenzhen Blue Bay

R ETIHIRE

Shenzhen Buji Market Project
wYIE LR E

Shenzhen Jianshang Project
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REERFREFI=ZAMN  RI=AM -
o ROERAORBREEHT RS B
BREEBEARTEMENERLHEE -

M-T—XE+-_A=1+—0  x£BER
BEI0EBmEHEE S X 1IEERTEEE
PEEERIEER  BEMDFAUHEE AIHE
FEEEMIEH450,281F T KNB L TIER
fHET RIS E AT EEEmAE L 41,059
FRKMEREIER - GrDFAIHE A
EREEETEHIA94,005F 7 KA R R 3k
BRIBE RGTFAIEE AIHSEER
7&491,365,709F A KK B ET 48 TR E =k
RERTHAREREBENER - A
BEEMEIFAHEE AIHEREEES
=149/42,351,954F F5 3K o

WZZE—XRE+-F=+—8 A£ER
RBI10EH A & K 19EERTRER
PEERRIIER @ BEEDFAHEE e
SATETE4)2,351,954F 75 K o #Mikk L5
BHLE A AB(—BEERNRENABE
B)  AHEERBG(—BEREIER) &
JImEMIZEEE (—HERZEE)  FYIE
FEB(—EERER)ULRBETHIEE
(BEME)  NEBEHESBMGEF LHEELD
896,817 15 KW L AN B 5 K
#92,292 47T °

%

SEREEARAT
T—AFH

The Group is specialising in the development and operation of urban
mixed-use communities and the development and sale of residential
properties in the Pearl River Delta, the Yangtze River Delta, the Central
China, the Beijing-Tianjin and the Chengdu-Chongging regions in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 19 projects over
10 cities in various stages of development, including an estimated net
saleable/leasable GFA of completed projects of approximately 450,281
sqg.m., an estimated net saleable/leasable GFA of projects under
development of approximately 41,059 sq.m., an estimated net saleable/
leasable GFA of projects held for future development of approximately
494,905 sq.m. and an estimated net saleable/leasable GFA of projects
contracted to be acquired or under application for change in land use
of approximately 1,365,709 sg.m., totalling an estimated net saleable/
leasable GFA of approximately 2,351,954 sg.m.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 19 projects over 10
cities in various stages of development with a total estimated net saleable/
leasable GFA of approximately 2,351,954 sq.m. Excluding Shanghai
Shama Century Park (an operational serviced apartments project),
Shenzhen Fashion Mark (a redevelopment project), Shenzhen Buji
Market Project (a redevelopment project), Shenzhen Jianshang Project (a
redevelopment project) and Hong Kong Yuen Long Project (agricultural
lots), the remaining estimated land bank of the Group of approximately
896,817 sq.m. has an average land cost of approximately HK$2,292.4 per

sg.m.
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iE
AIHE/THE X5H
EERE FEfh D
Estimated Interest
HERSR Net Saleable/  Attributable
Project no. 3 Project Type of Project Leasable GFA  to the Group
F5kK %
sq.m.
BIER
Completed Projects
1 s Shenzhen S Shenzhen Hidden Valley € Residential 4,014 100.0
2 w3 Shenzhen KEEX - R The Spring Land - Shenzhen [SES Commercial 33,453 100.0
3 w3 Shenzhen FYKEHES Shenzhen Water Flower Garden 7% Commercial 4,992 100.0
4 M Changzhou  ®MHEEHE Changzhou Fashion Mark %/ 7% Residential/Commercial 83,570 100.0
5 B Changzhou  #MESH Changzhou Le Leman City /% Residential/Commercial 90,614 100.0
6 EES Dongguan  HREHRZHEFL Dongguan Landmark HE Commerdial 20,172 100.0
7 M Hangzhou  MMZEZEHEHSL  Hangzhou Landmark [EES Commercial 26,264 100.0
8 M Hangzhou IKEEXR —IM The Spring Land - Hangzhou BE¥/HAE  Commercial/Office 24,581 100.0
9 A Chengdu RS He Chengdu Fashion Mark RS Commerdial 38,285 100.0
10 & Shanghai B=R3 e SUNE Shanghai Shama Century Park ~ REAAE Serviced apartments 10,418 70.0
11 P Tianjin KEHEM Tianjin Le Leman City =/ HE Residential/Commercial 31,088 58.0
12 B Nanchang HERSHE Nanchang Fashion Mark /% Residential/Commercial 72,046 70.0
13 [ Nanjing KEEE-ER The Spring Land - Nanjing [EEd Commercial 717 100.0
14 BR Nanjing KRR - R The Sunny Land - Nanjing T/ HE Residential/Commercial 10,067 100.0
Nt Sub-total 450,281
HRER
Projects Under Development
5 B Changzhou  FMFEEH Changzhou Le Leman City € Residential 8,398 100.0
15 'l Shenzhen FIIes LR Shenzhen Jianshang Project e/ HE Residential/Commercial 32,661 80.0
Nt Sub-total 41,059
REHARERHER
Projects Held For Future Development
5 B Changzhou  FMFESH Changzhou Le Leman City 2/ HE Residential/Commercial 36,747 100.0
1" KE Tianjin KRG, Tianjin Le Leman City [EES Commercial 50,850 100.0
12 B Nanchang MEXRFHE Nanchang Fashion Mark wE/WAE  Commerdal/Office 345,959 70.0
16 w Shenzhen YK E Shenzhen Blue Bay F= Residential 15,000 92.0
17 sl Shenzhen FYmETIRER Shenzhen Buji Market Project HE Commercial 46,349 55.0

Nt Sub-total 494,905
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EA RS
Project no. I

BTARTRESEARERS LM ARNER

Project

fhatR
AHE/AHE
BEE
Estimated

A58
b
Interest
Net Saleable/  Attributable
Leasable GFA  to the Group
Fh5K %

sq.m.

Type of Project

Projects Contracted To Be Acquired or Under Application For Change in Land Use

17 F Shenzhen FmEMISEE Shenzhen Buji Market Project [SES Commercial 202,828 55.0

18 I Shenzhen FEEHe Shenzhen Fashion Mark F%/%%/  Residential/ 1,139,280 100.0
NS Commercial/Office

19 EE HongKong  EETTHIEE Hong Kong Yuen Long Project &% Agricultural 23,601 100.0

s Sub-total 1,365,709

st Total 2,351,954

REEHTH LIOREEFBEERIIAT -

RN JE iR R 15

Detai

Is of land bank in major cities are set out below:

CLE
T TEE
REEH

Estimated

¥

T AR
Average
land cost®
BT FRAK
HK$/sg.m.

Net Saleable/
Leasable GFA
K

sg.m.

Shenzhen and surrounding regions

(BFEER=) (including Dongguan) 1,498,749 1,841.0
B Hong Kong 23,601 N/A®@
st Shanghai 10,418 N/A®
2= Nanchang 418,005 2,717.7
£z Nanjing 10,784 9,847.2
LA Hangzhou 50,845 7,790.8
N Changzhou 219,329 684.1
Kz Tianjin 81,938 775.7
PR ER Chengdu 38,285 1,592.4
st Total 2,351,954 2,292.40

T+ AT RIE D SIBE L AR R
JIREEE RN MEMHEE - FIIE L
HEREBTHEE @ WREASEERE
st bR 49896,817F 5 KAHE o

N/ARETEA ©

Notes:

The average land cost excludes Shanghai Shama Century Park, Shenzhen Fashion
Mark, Shenzhen Buji Market Project, Shenzhen Jianshang Project and Hong Kong
Yuen Long Project and is based on the remaining estimated land bank of the Group
of approximately 896,817 sq.m.

N/A means not applicable.
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BE-Z—R"F-A-REEAXAHREAHL
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Details of the new projects or land reserves acquired and interest agreed
to be disposed of in existing projects from 1 January 2016 to the date of
this report are set out below:

Fruk g3 IE B o+ th fE4E New projects or land reserves acquired:

st

AHE/THE ftgt piS-1: |

BEER FEN#A s

“BRE Estimated Estimated Interest

X #m EH S L E Total Net Saleable/ Numberof Attributable

City, Country Project or Land Reserves Consideration Leasable GFA  Car Park Units  to the Group

hE R HEEEER ARH#752,751,900.767C 57,353 77K 315 85
Shanghai, PRC Shanghai Puxing Project RMB752,751,900.76 57,353 sq.m.

hE LR TERRREEERR 88,086,976.145 L 25,961 F 755K 43 100
Shanghai, PRC Shanghai Grand Pujian Residence @ US$88,086,976.14 25,961 sg.m.

hEEE By EER 127,000,000/ 7T 13,794F 77K N/A® 100
Hong Kong, PRC Hong Kong Yuen Long Project @ HK$127,000,000 13,794 sq.m.

FEER ARAILEEERY A&#290,000,000.007T 41,0007 73K 325 100
Nanjing, PRC Nanjing Hongshan Zoo Project @ RMB290,000,000.00 41,000 sg.m.

BNER BIESt. LeonardsTBE 80,117,946} 7T 30,537 F 7K 413 49
Sydney, Australia Sydney St. Leonards Project AUD80,117,946 30,537 sg.m.

(1) RZZ—R"EZANA A£EIJVESE
Wik Bt AEEREUNEREARE
752,751,900.76 7T (#8 & 7 £7893,591,781.39
BI)R—RBYE=HEALGRRIRES
TRREIHI85% WA R [A B —E B H =
F(EALEREER)BEALSREXE
HEAERAFIN0.85% R AR - RHR_-F
—RNE=ZA+ATK - BEFE - F2H
ARFHPAZZS—RNEF=-ALEMNQYE -

2 RZZ—AR"E=ZA+HA AEEE—2F
SNE=ZFRABERRE B AEER
EORIBEAFERARERAR([FHR]) (I
BERELLBHERE )N HITRAL
AEHFERNHOBRRER - REAXA
88,086,976.14 3 Jt ( #H & 7 47 683,554,935
Br) - B eiEN) k5 R (E33,036,976.14
7T (FE R 49256,366,9358 70) (BIFLE
& 4 825,465.37 3 7T (& 1 #76,405,611/78
70)) ¢ R E B A (E55,050,000% 7T (16
BN #)427,188,000/8 ) ° KHM LT —/X
FZA=THREK - BEFE #2842
RIAMA—Z— A E=-A+RHANQE -

Notes:

On 4 March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase 85% of the equity interest in F/&3REK
& AR AT (Shanghai Huanjian Investment Co., Ltd.*) from an independent third
party and 0.85% of the equity interest in F/G3EEX(L{EEAGR AT (Shanghai
Huantang Cultural Communication Co., Ltd.*) from another independent
third party which owns Shanghai Puxing Project, at a total consideration of
RMB752,751,900.76 (equivalent to approximately HK$893,591,781.39). The
completion of the transaction took place on 16 March 2016. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 7 March 2016.

On 15 March 2016, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of Unique Prosper International Limited (57 & BB AR A
7)) ("Unique Prosper"”) which indirectly owns Shanghai Grand Pujian Residence,
and assumed the shareholder loan owed by Unique Prosper, respectively.
The aggregate value of the consideration is US$88,086,976.14 (equivalent to
approximately HK$683,554,935) which comprises (i) the share consideration in
the amount of US$33,036,976.14 (equivalent to approximately HK$256,366,935)
which is inclusive of the working capital in the amount of US$825,465.37
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,405,611); and (ii) the shareholder loan
consideration in the amount of US$55,050,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$427,188,000). The completion of the transaction took place on 30 March
2016. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 15 March
2016.
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RZT—+tF=A+H AEEBEZEW
& A =]Top Spring Australia St Leonards No.1
Pty Ltd ([ 3EESBIM | ) £2Silver Pond Investments
Pty Ltd(1E/&7 A&l Silver Pond Unit Trust)([1&
R ZEFEZFEANZFEAL  New Spring
Developments Pty Ltd(#£/3% %[ New Spring
REfERIz2RETZZTANES]D) -
New Spring Developments Pty Ltd ( [ Silver
PondE% |) REERE LI VERAE-F
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In July, August, September and November 2016, the Group entered into five
sale and purchase agreements with various independent third parties, pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase the relevant parcels of land (that is right
next to the Group’s landbank in Yuen Long) with an estimated net saleable and
leasable GFA of approximately 13,794 sq.m. and at a combined consideration
of HK$127,000,000. The completion of these transactions took place in August,
September, December of 2016 and in January of 2017, respectively.

On 14 February 2017, the Group successfully bid a parcel of commercial land in
Nanjing through public auction at a consideration of RMB290,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$323,733,000). The Group entered into a land grant contract
for the land with a total site area of approximately 23,295 sq.m. on 2 March
2017. As at the date of this report, the Group had yet to obtain the land use rights
certificate of this commercial land.

On 10 March 2017, Top Spring Australia St Leonards No. 1 Pty Ltd (“Top Spring
Australia”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement dated 10 March 2017 (as amended and supplemented
by a supplemental agreement dated 3 April 2017) (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Silver Pond Investments Pty Ltd (as trustee of a trust known
as the “Silver Pond Unit Trust” (the “Trust”)) (the “Trustee”), New Spring
Developments Pty Ltd (as trustee of a discretionary family trust known as the
“New Spring Family Trust”) (the “Vendor”), New Spring Developments Pty
Ltd (the “Silver Pond Vendor”) and Mr Wong Chun Hong (the “Acquisition”),
pursuant to which (i) the Vendor agreed to sell, and Top Spring Australia or its
nominee agreed to purchase, the 49 units in the Trust held by the Vendor (the “Sale
Unites”) at the consideration in the estimated amount of AUD 1,436,074 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,401,033); and (i) the Silver Pond Vendor agreed to sell,
and Top Spring Australia or its nominee agreed to purchase, the 49 ordinary shares
in the capital of the Trustee (the “Sale Shares”) at the consideration of AUD49
(equivalent to approximately HK$287). Upon completion, Top Spring Australia
will own (i) 49% of the units in the Trust; and (ii) 49% of the issued shares of the
Trustee, and have 49% interest in 20 parcels of land with an estimated net saleable
GFA of approximately 30,537 sq.m. in St. Leonards of Sydney, New South Wales,
Australia. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase agreement, the Group shall make a
capital contribution in the amount of AUD78,681,823 (equivalent to approximately
HK$460,288,665) as soon as practicable after the completion of the Acquisition.
The completion of the Acquisition is subject to certain conditions precedent
including but not limited to the approval of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and
the sale and purchase of the Sale Units and the Sale Shares at a general meeting of
the independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 March 2017.
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(6) N/A means not applicable.

The Group intends to continue to leverage its experience in identifying
land in the PRC and/or outside the PRC with investment potential at
advantageous times and acquiring land reserves which are or will be
well connected with transportation and infrastructure developments.
Moreover, the Group intends to continue to acquire new land or project
in locations in the PRC and/or outside the PRC with vibrant economies
and strong growth potential, in particular, Shenzhen, Shanghai, Nanjing,
Hangzhou and Nanchang of the PRC as well as Hong Kong and Sydney of
Australia in respect of the overseas cities.

Land reserves agreed to be disposed of:

On 12 January 2016, the Group entered into a supplemental cooperation
agreement with the Tianjin Municipal People’s Government Jinghai District
("Jinghai Government”), pursuant to which the Group shall surrender
three parcels of land of the Group’s Tianjin Le Leman City (the “Land"”) to
Jinghai Government and Jinghai Government shall compensate the Group
for an aggregate compensation amount of RMB316,047,700 (equivalent
to approximately HK$376,096,763) for the surrender of the Land in
accordance with the land surrender agreements entered into between the
Group, the Bureau of Land and Resources of Jinghai District, and Tianjin
Jinghai District Land Centre. As at 12 January 2016, the total site area of
the Land was approximately 369,057 sq.m. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 12 January 2016.

Projects agreed to be disposed of:

(1) On 19 May 2016, the Company entered into the framework
agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental framework
agreement and a second supplemental framework agreement both
dated 22 July 2016) with Sunac China, pursuant to which (i) the
Company (or its designated companies) conditionally agreed to
sell, and Sunac China (or its designated companies) conditionally
agreed to purchase, the entire equity interest in each of the Target
Companies (as defined in the Company'’s circular dated 26 July 2016)
and Jun Hong Da (as defined in the Company’s circular dated 26
July 2016); and (ii) Sunac China (or its designated companies) shall
settle the respective intercompany loans of the Target Companies
and Jun Hong Da and their respective subsidiaries. Subsequent to
the entering into of the framework agreement, Beijing Huaxia (as
defined in the Company’s circular dated 26 July 2016) exercised its
pre-emptive rights over the 51% equity interest in Sanhe Xue Zhe
Zhi Jia (as defined in the Company's circular dated 26 July 2016)
by acquiring the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Sheng Shuo (as
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defined in the Company’s circular dated 26 July 2016) and hence,
the transfer of the entire equity interest in Jun Hong Da from
the Company to Sunac China would not proceed. Based on the
second supplemental framework agreement dated 22 July 2016,
the aggregate value of the consideration and the intercompany
loans shall be RMB4,225,230,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,028,023,700). Out of the aggregate value of the consideration
together with the intercompany loans, (i) RMB137,250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$163,327,500) will be payable to
an independent third party who holds 15% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Huan Jian Investment Co., Ltd.* (/BB EREFR AT
(“Shanghai Huan Jian"”); and (ii) RMB4,087,980,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,864,696,200) will be payable to the Group.
The Target Companies, directly or indirectly, own six property
projects of the Group. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement, further announcement and circular dated 19 May
2016, 25 July 2016 and 26 July 2016, respectively.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 19 May
2016, if there is a difference between (a) the actual intercompany
loans as at the completion date of the framework agreement
(the “Completion Date”); and (b) the intercompany loans as
set out in the framework agreement, the intercompany loans will
be adjusted accordingly. As there is a difference between the
actual intercompany loans as at 31 August 2016 (being the date
mutually agreed by the Group and Sunac China for determining
the adjustment on the intercompany loans as at the Completion
Date) and the intercompany loans (as adjusted under the second
supplemental framework agreement), the intercompany loans was
further adjusted to RMB1,782,440,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,121,103,600). The aggregate value of the consideration and
the intercompany loans of the framework agreement was further
adjusted to RMB3,901,570,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,642,868,300). Out of the aggregate value of the consideration
together with the intercompany loans, (i) RMB137,250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$163,327,500) shall be payable to
an independent third party which held 15% of the equity interest
in Shanghai Huan Jian; and (ii) RMB3,764,320,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,479,540,800) shall be payable to the Group.
Save as disclosed above, there were no further adjustments on the
consideration and the intercompany loans.
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On 8 July 2016, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement
with Beijing Huaxia Shunze Investment Group Limited* (1t
FEE BB EEBAERAT) (“Beijing Huaxia”), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to sell, and Beijing Huaxia agreed to
purchase, the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Sheng Shuo
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (FYITERBEREEEGRAR])
(“Shenzhen Sheng Shuo”) at a consideration of RMB445,770,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$530,466,000), and the Group shall
repay the loans of RMB40,520,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$48,218,800) owed to Shenzhen Sheng Shuo and its subsidiaries.
As at the date of the share transfer agreement, Shenzhen Sheng
Shuo held 51% of the equity interest in Sanhe Xue Zhe Zhi Jia
Investment Co., Ltd.* (=ATHEE 2 KIREFR A7) (“Sanhe Xue
Zhe Zhi Jia"). Sanhe Xue Zhe Zhi Jia holds the entire equity interest
in each of Sanhe Shunze Property Services Co., Ltd.* (= A JIE}Z
M RSB AT and Sanhe Shunze Property Development Co.,
Ltd.* (=AM IEE 5 & I 2 B BR 2 7). Sanhe Shunze Property
Development Co., Ltd.* (=AM |EZEMERZE AR A A]) is the
owner of Beijing Top Spring Shunze Flower Garden. The completion
took place on 19 August 2016. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 8 July 2016.

(5) Expected Project Commencement in 2017
In 2017, the Group intends to commence construction of four projects
with a total estimated saleable/leasable GFA of approximately 264,432

sq.m.

Details of the projects expected to commence construction in 2017 are set
out below:

il Shenzhen FIIE EEE
1] Nanchang MEHREHE
R Tianjin RAEREH

BB Hong Kong A TTEAEE

FECIE -
AHEEEEE
Estimated
Saleable/
Leasable GFA
F 7K

sg.m.

Project

32,661
204,512
23,922
3,337

Shenzhen Jianshang Project
Nanchang Fashion Mark
Tianjin Le Leman City

Hong Kong Yuen Long Project

264,432
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2016, the Group's consolidated revenue and profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company reached approximately HK$5,558.7 million
and HK$866.4 million, respectively, decreased by approximately 47.2% and
increased by approximately 12.0%, respectively, as compared with 2015.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s basic earnings per Share
increased by approximately 10.9% as compared with 2015 to approximately
HK$0.61. Net assets per Share attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company and the holders of PCSs decreased by approximately 6.8%
as compared with approximately HK$4.4 as at 31 December 2015 to
approximately HK$4.1 as at 31 December 2016.

In order to maintain a stable dividend policy, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK22 cents per Share attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the holders of bonus perpetual subordinated
convertible securities (“PCSs"”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (for the
year ended 31 December 2015: HK22 cents per Share), subject to the approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. The dividend payout ratio for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approximately 36.1% (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
approximately 40.4%).

Revenue

Revenue represents income from sale of properties, rental income, income from
hotel operations, and income from provision of property management and
related services earned during the period, net of business tax, value-added tax
and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed.

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 decreased by approximately
47.2% to approximately HK$5,558.7 million from approximately HK$10,519.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. This decrease was primarily
due to a decrease in the Group’s income from sale of properties. The Group
recognised property sales of approximately HK$5,028.5 million, representing
approximately 90.5% of the revenue. The remaining approximately 9.5%
revenue represented rental income, income from hotel operations, and property
management and related services income.

Revenue from the Group's sale of properties decreased by approximately 49.7%
in 2016 as compared with 2015 primarily due to a decrease of approximately
40.6% in the Group's total saleable GFA sold and delivered (excluding sale of
car park units), after deduction of sales return, from approximately 568,920
sg.m. in 2015, to approximately 337,848 sq.m. in 2016. The Group's rental
income decreased primarily due to certain investment properties under
operation were sold and delivered leading to a decrease in the leasable GFA
of the Group’s investment properties under operation for the year ended 31
December 2016. Income from the Group's hotel operations remained stable as
compared with 2015. As a result of an increase in the accumulated GFA of the
properties managed by the Group, the income from the property management
and related services increased.
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Direct costs

The principal component of direct costs is the cost of completed properties sold,
which consists of land premium, construction and other development costs,
capitalised borrowing costs during the construction period, the cost of rental
income, the cost of hotel operations and the cost of property management and
related services. The Group recognises the cost of completed properties sold
for a given period to the extent that revenue from such properties has been
recognised in such period.

The Group's direct costs decreased to approximately HK$4,548.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 from approximately HK$7,324.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. This decrease was primarily attributable to the
decrease in the saleable GFA of the Group'’s properties completed and delivered
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately 68.4% to approximately
HK$1,010.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from approximately
HK$3,194.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group reported
a gross profit margin of approximately 18.2% for the year ended 31 December
2016 as compared with approximately 30.4% for the year ended 31 December
2015. The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to a higher
proportion of properties sold and delivered from The Sunny Land — Nanjing in
2016 which offered a relatively lower gross profit margin.

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased by approximately HK$42.3 million, or approximately
18.1%, to approximately HK$191.1 million in 2016 from approximately
HK$233.4 million in 2015. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
decrease in bank and other interest income of approximately HK$51.4 million
due to a decrease in average bank balances during 2016.

Other net income/(loss)

Other net loss of approximately HK$121.2 million in 2015 changed to other net
income of approximately HK$735.9 million in 2016. The change was primarily
attributable to the disposal gain of equity interests in certain subsidiaries of
the Group and the recognition of the fair value change on conversion option
embedded in convertible bonds of approximately HK$682.3 million and
HK$149.4 million, respectively, in 2016.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased by approximately 25.2% to
approximately HK$182.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from
approximately HK$244.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the reductions in advertising expenses
and show flat set up costs incurred in 2016 as compared with 2015. Selling
and marketing expenses accounted for approximately 4.5% of total contracted
sales amount in 2016 (2015: approximately 3.0%).
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 13.9% to approximately
HK$750.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from approximately
HK$659.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase was
due to the recognition of other taxes arising from delivering the investment
properties classified as held for sale and construction advisory fee increased by
approximately HK$48.5 million and HK$53.8 million, respectively, in 2016 as
compared with 2015.

Valuation gains on investment properties and investment
properties classified as held for sale

Valuation gains on investment properties and investment properties classified
as held for sale decreased by approximately 5.0% to approximately HK$436.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from approximately HK$459.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Approximately HK$331.1
million out of the total valuation gain of approximately HK$436.0 million was
recorded as a fair value gain from Shanghai Shama Century Park. The Group
has launched the sale of Shanghai Shama Century Park, an operational serviced
apartments, since 2015, which a relatively high fair value gain was recognised
during the year as driven by the high contracted ASP achieved being one of the
key factors adopted in the valuation of Shanghai Shama Century Park.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 33.4% to approximately HK$679.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from approximately HK$509.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase was primarily
attributable to the significant decrease in the percentage of interest expenses
being qualified for capitalisation from approximately 47.8% from the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 21.7% for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Income tax

Income tax expenses of approximately HK$1,243.1 million in 2015 changed
to an income tax credit of approximately HK$149.2 million in 2016. The
change was primarily attributable to the effect of tax reversal arising from over-
provision for Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") of a subsidiary of Changzhou,
as well as over-provision for Corporate Income Tax and LAT of a subsidiary of
Shenzhen of approximately HK$160.8 million, HK$500.9 million and HK$851.7
million (with corresponding reversal of deferred tax assets of HK$468.5 million),
respectively, as a result of the respective final tax settlement notices granted by
the PRC tax authority over the aforesaid entities in 2016.
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Net profit margin and core net profit

The net profit margin of the Group (profit for the year to revenue) increased
from approximately 10.0% in 2015 to approximately 16.3% in 2016. The core
net profittete, however, decreased by approximately 43.4% from approximately
HK$777.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$440.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Note: The core net profit is defined as profit for the year excluding the valuation gains on
investment properties, investment properties classified as held for sale (net of deferred
tax), fair value change on conversion option embedded in convertible bonds and net
exchange gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the
Group.

Non-controlling interests

The profit attributable to non-controlling interests was approximately HK$37.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (for the year ended 31 December
2015: approximately HK$280.3 million). The decrease was primarily due to the
decreased profit of a non-wholly owned subsidiary (which holds Nanchang
Fashion Mark) shared by the non-controlling interests from approximately
HK$263.0 million in 2015 to approximately HK$74.3 million in 2016.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s cash and bank
deposits was approximately HK$6,201.8 million (as at 31 December 2015:
approximately HK$5,649.7 million), representing an increase of approximately
9.8% as compared with that as at 31 December 2015.

Borrowings and charges on the Group’s assets

The Group had an aggregate borrowings (including bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds, bonds payable, note payable and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders) as at 31 December 2016 of approximately HK$9,161.9
million, of which approximately HK$3,252.7 million is repayable within one
year, approximately HK$5,454.3 million is repayable after one year but within
five years and approximately HK$454.9 million is repayable after five years.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank loans of approximately HK$4,658.2
million (as at 31 December 2015: approximately HK$7,620.4 million), bonds
payable and note payable were secured by certain investment properties
(inclusive of investment properties classified as held for sale), hotel properties,
other land and buildings, leasehold land held for development for sale,
properties under development for sale, completed properties for sale, pledged
deposits and rental receivables of the Group with total carrying values of
approximately HK$9,878.2 million (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$18,145.5 million). As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s convertible bonds
were secured by equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group. As at 31
December 2016, the Group's note payable was secured by certain investment
properties.

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s bank and other borrowings, bonds
payable and note payable were denominated in RMB except for certain
borrowings with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$2,135.6 million
(as at 31 December 2015: approximately HK$2,254.5 million) and HK$1,834.2
million (as at 31 December 2015: approximately HK$932.1 million) as at 31
December 2016 which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest in a joint venture with a carrying
amount of HK$40.0 million was pledged as a security for a bank loan granted
to the joint venture.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank borrowings of approximately
HK$690.6 million and other borrowings of approximately HK$352.8 million
which bore fixed interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 8.0% per annum.

RMB990,000,000 unlisted note due 2018 (the “Note”)

The Note is in the principal amount of RMB990,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,247,400,000) and bears interest from and including 15
June 2015, being the date of issue of the Note, at the rate of 10.595% per
annum, payable quarterly in arrears, up to the date of redemption of the Note.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2015.

The net proceeds of the Note amounted to HK$1,235.8 million (after deducting
fees and expenses) were applied in the manner consistent with that set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2015 as follows:

o approximately 1.2%, or HK$15.4 million, of the net proceeds were used
for general working capital of the Group; and

e approximately 98.8%, or HK$1,220.4 million, of the net proceeds were
used for settling indebtedness of the Group.
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RMB800,000,000 first tranche corporate bonds due 2021 (the
“Corporate Bonds")

Shenzhen Shen Guo Tou Property Development Co., Ltd.* (RIIIFEIEREHE
FZEEBR A 7)) (“Shen Guo Tou”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company established in the PRC, received the “Approval Letter for the Public
Offering of Corporate Bonds of Shen Guo Tou to Qualified Investors” (Zheng
Jian Xu Ke [2016] No. 1364) from the China Securities Regulatory Commission
("CSRC") pursuant to which CSRC approved Shen Guo Tou to issue the
Corporate Bonds of up to RMB4,000,000,000 to qualified investors. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 9 September 2016.

On 14 September 2016, a total size of the first tranche Corporate Bonds of
RMB800,000,000 (which comprises (i) Corporate Bonds in the principal amount
of RMB500,000,000; and (ii) additional Corporate Bonds in the amount of
RMB300,000,000 upon the exercise of the over-allotment option) was issued at
the coupon rate of 5.8% per annum. The first tranche Corporate Bonds were
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 25 November 2016. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 14 September 2016 and
22 November 2016, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the net proceeds of the Corporate
Bonds amounted to HK$944.5 million (after deducting fees and expenses)
were applied in the manner consistent with that set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 September 2016 as follows:

e approximately 24.7%, or HK$233.6, of the net proceeds were used for
the repayment of existing bank and other borrowings of Shen Guo Tou
and its subsidiaries; and

e approximately 75.3%, or HK$710.9 million, of the net proceeds were used
for the general working capital of Shen Guo Tou and its subsidiaries.

US$200 million convertible bonds due 2019 (the “Bonds”)

On 28 December 2015, the Company entered into the subscription agreements
(the “Subscription Agreements”) with Lord Business Holding IV Limited,
Great Wall Pan Asia International Investment Co., Limited, China Orient
Enhanced Income Fund and Caiyun International Investment Limited* (%3
BRI E AR AT (collectively referred to as “Investors”) pursuant to which,
on the terms and subject to the conditions of the Subscription Agreements,
the Company has agreed to issue, and the Investors have agreed to subscribe
and pay for the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of US$200 million
due 2019. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29
December 2015.

The Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of US$100 million each were
issued to the respective Investors on 6 January 2016 and 21 March 2016,
respectively. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 6
January 2016 and 21 March 2016, respectively.

The Bonds bear interest at the rate of 6.0% per annum payable semi-annually
in arrear on 6 January and 6 July in each year. The liability component of the
Bonds is stated at amortised cost and the conversion option is stated at fair
value after initial recognition.
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The aggregate net proceeds of the Bonds amounted to approximately
HK$1,527.3 million (after deducting fees and expenses). During the year ended
31 December 2016, such net proceeds were applied in the manner consistent
with that set out in the Company’s circular dated 26 February 2016 as follow:

e approximately 7.0%, or HK$107.7 million, of the net proceeds were used
for general corporate purposes, including administrative and operation
expenses, such as salaries and professional fees, and other office
expenses;

o approximately 61.4%, or HK$937.5 million, of the net proceeds were used
for debt refinancing, including repaying the Group’s borrowings with
interest rates ranging from 6.9% to 9.0% per annum; and

o approximately 31.6%, or HK$482.3 million, of the net proceeds were used
for business development, including financing part of the purchase price
for Shanghai Grand Pujian Residence from an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recognised derivative financial instruments
relating to the conversion option and liability component of the Bonds of
approximately HK$155.3 million and approximately HK$1,384.7 million,
respectively.

The Bonds will, at the option of the bondholders, be convertible into fully paid
ordinary shares in the issued and paid up capital of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$3.8289 per Share, but will be subject to adjustment
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds. If the Bonds have
not been converted, they will be redeemed at US$1,136.04 in respect of each
Calculation Amount (as defined in the Company’s circular dated 26 February
2016) on 6 January 2019 together with interest accrued but unpaid to (but
excluding) such date (if any). If the Bonds are fully converted into Shares, it will
be converted into 404,957,036 Shares, representing approximately 34.2% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bonds, the proposed payment of
a 2016 final dividend as recommended by the Board to be approved by the
Shareholders at a forthcoming annual general meeting will have an adjustment
on the conversion price of the Bonds. Upon the approval of the 2016 final
dividend, the Company will issue a separate announcement in respect of the
adjustment on the conversion price accordingly.

Cost of borrowings

The Group's average cost of borrowings (calculated by dividing total interest
expenses expensed and capitalised by average borrowings during the year) was
approximately 8.6% in 2016 (2015: approximately 7.4%).

Net gearing ratio

The net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the Group’s net borrowings
(total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, and restricted and pledged
deposits) by the total equity. The Group’s net gearing ratio decreased from
approximately 72.5% as at 31 December 2015 to approximately 43.3% as at
31 December 2016. The net gearing ratio decreased as a result of the increase
in cash position of the Group and decrease in the interest-bearing borrowings
of the Group as at 31 December 2016 owing to the disposal of certain project
companies during 2016.
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Foreign exchange risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash balances denominated in RMB
of approximately RMB5,305.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5,923.0
million), and in US dollars of approximately US$12.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$94.3 million).

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from the exposure of RMB against Hong Kong dollars or
US dollars as a result of its investment in the PRC and the settlement of certain
general and administrative expenses and other borrowings in Hong Kong
dollars or US dollars. In addition, RMB is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies and the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government. The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) monitor the Group’s
foreign exchange exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances
and trend of foreign currency, consider adopting significant foreign currency
hedging policy in the future.

NET ASSETS PER SHARE

Net assets per Share of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 are calculated as follows:

THF
+t=—A=+—H

As at
31 December
2015

31 December
2016

Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of

BEFE(TET) the Company (HK$'000) 5,898,896 6,225,851
BETEEKEE (TR) Number of issued ordinary Shares ("000) 1,183,776 1,181,433
BARITE AR AR ESFZ B (TAX)  Number of outstanding PCSs ('000) 238,553 238,553
AEtEEREEFEN Number of Shares for the calculation of

e (Fi%) net assets per Share ("000) 1,422,329 1,419,986
N B RE R AR R R ok A AT AR B 5 Net assets per Share attributable to equity

A AEGER shareholders of the Company and the

BEFECGET) (W) holders of PCSs (HK$) (Note) 4.1 44

BRE - ANA Rl AR MOK A AR E H A A G E K
BEFERKATRRBFABBEAR-S—XF
+-A=t+—BR-_E-—HE+-_A=+—HEE
AR B HF BRI -

Note: The net assets per Share attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the
holders of PCSs is calculated as if the holders of PCSs have converted the PCSs into Shares
as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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RABEERR KA TRRESRE ARIGE
BREEFER _T-LAF+T_-_A=1+—HW44
BILRALE—T—ANF+-A=+—HM41E
T DEBARARBLAEIRERKN=-F
—HFERBRE  SHBERE T —RFt+=
A=T—HALLFEESFNE  EAEEEES
BB FT T RRPTEL -

RAREE

R-ZZE—RE+-A=Z+—H0 BIBEFAEE
MEBRNIZIBEREE MRS REERML
4,508,500,0008 L (R =E—RAF+=_A=+—
H : £93,876,500,000/8 7T ) & (R A R BhERTTIR T
AEE— AL CENERMAERTIREARE
1,500,000,0007T (FH&E # 491,674,700,0007%5 7T.)
BRI AEEWEEMBANAREE -

REBZBAER - RITBLAKERAERNZEE
HERHEER - EERRYERTUAREERRE
REREMEBEHNAMREEERINTERR
1F - MESIERIIBEN - NEBERRAENSE
R\ ABEEEREYE - HAKEEEEEERE
W - AIRIBRITATMERBEY R L AAKE
(FERERA) RERIBEFNEAER -

EABERHEEE

(@ RZZE—R"F—A+HA ALEEBY
FE-ARIREEERE - Bt AEE
AELELERNBEEHEREAERA
7]3.0558% IR Az (B IR R B R0 WUk
AR B A R 106,953,000 7T (4B E R 49
127,274,070 7T) - NEBE G HEFIE
FoUk 25 (BRBEAT) 49100,397,00058 7T © HRS
S B2HARRAMAEZTE —RF—
Bt+HRBEMNASE -

The decrease in net assets per Share attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company and the holders of PCSs from HK$4.4 as at 31 December 2015 to
HK$4.1 as at 31 December 2016 was mainly due to the depreciation of RMB
against HKD and the payment of 2015 final dividend resulting in a reduction in
the Group's net asset value despite there was a net profit for the year recorded
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, save for the guarantees of approximately HK$4,508.5
million (as at 31 December 2015: approximately HK$3,876.5 million) given
to financial institutions for mortgage loan facilities granted to purchasers of
the Group's properties, and guarantee in the amount of RMB1,500.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,674.7 million) provided to a bank for a loan
granted by the bank to a joint venture of the Group, the Group had no other
material contingent liabilities.

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, banks require the Group to guarantee its
purchasers’ mortgage loans until it completes the relevant properties and the
property ownership certificates and certificates of other interests with respect to
the relevant properties are delivered to its purchasers. If a purchaser defaults on
a mortgage loan, the Group may have to repurchase the underlying property
by paying off the mortgage. If the Group fails to do so, the mortgagee bank
may auction the underlying property and recover any shortfall from the Group as
the guarantor of the mortgage loan.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
ASSETS

(@ On 15 January 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
sell 3.0558% of the equity interest of /&I EEEHENZEERAT
(Shanghai Fengdan Lishe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*), including
the shareholder’s loan and received the consideration of RMB106,953,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$127,274,070). The Group recorded a
gain (before tax) of approximately HK$100,397,000 from the disposal. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 15 January
2016.
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b) RZZE—RNEXNA=Z+H AE@EHRE
RERIEREERRAR([dLRIER])
RIS AR IE W AR IE AR B R L REE FT
AVAMA—Z-NEAA+TRBNAE
e ([#RIEEE]) - ERRIEETE - bR
B2 E R THREBEREERBR
AR FRYIEE ] RRIEEBENARE
EFE0%EZM A E N F])40% A H#E
mTAEE - REARAR4000,0007T
(F8E 1 414,760,00058 7T ) » M F IS
Rt RIEZEEREERRERARE
36,000,000 ( #8 & 7 942,840,000 7T
(TEHFIE) e RIEBETHER ZZT—RF+
BTREBZMK - Bt - REBEFG R
SEBBRAERY BB EET RIS
THBRIBE - BEKILEEENFS &

Z2EAARAPRE-ZE—RFRA=TH
RE o
B EXRARERTREEIN BE-T—KF

TZA=+—HILFE ARETEHIEARE
B HEEESSE -

B E & Hrf Bk
R-ZE—AR"FE+-A=+—8  KEEEHH -
EehEMMES XERLN,49%EE (R _F
—HFE+-A=1+—8:1,711%ESE) - & -
WNABER AR - 40281 BB MERES -
MAN 1048 HTEEBLRMEBTES - HEZ
T RNF+-A=Z+—HLIEFEEENBETK
A H#)7269,300,0008 T (B E—T—hHF+=
AZ+—HBILFE : 4268,900,000/57T) ° &
BEMRIBERT - TIEEH - ik AFRR
MBS TEKEETE - AEBUEAFS - W
&R e RERAEERO MR RE
B

ARFBERZE—ZEFT+ A AEMNEHRAH
BEBEETE((ERA MBS BREST
Bl R iR 2 ([ R seEatal ) - Bt
AREMETEEREER DERERBER
7o BARERBHEGERREEYAEEEL R
BEERMER - ARARINER_T——F A
—HN\BEMNE R AFEEEBREE((ER
ARBERBRETE ] - ROEFBE - BX
NRIBEFIERAET S BAARBRERERE
TR BEEHNARENESSRER

(b)  On 30 June 2016, the Group entered into a termination agreement with
b RS R IEZIE &R AT (Beijing Yang Guang Shunze Investment
Company Limited*) (“Beijing Shunze”) to terminate the co-operation
agreement dated 15 September 2014 entered into between the Group
and Beijing Shunze (the “Termination”). As a result of the Termination,
Beijing Shunze shall transfer 40% of the equity interest in RIS
e EEREABMR AR (Shenzhen Top Spring Fashion Mark Investment
Development Company Limited*) (“Shenzhen Top Spring”), a joint
venture company which the Group held 60% of equity interest prior
to the Termination, to the Group at a consideration of RMB4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,760,000) and Shenzhen Top
Spring shall repay the outstanding shareholder’s loan in the amount of
RMB36,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$42,840,000) (without
interest) to Beijing Shunze. The completion of the Termination took place
on 15 July 2016. As such, the Group holds the entire equity interest in
Shenzhen Top Spring and undertakes the development of Shenzhen
Fashion Mark on a sole basis. For details of the Termination, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2016.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this report, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions or disposals of assets during the year ended 31
December 2016.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of approximately 1,499
employees (as at 31 December 2015: 1,711 employees) in the PRC, Hong Kong
and other locations, of which, approximately 114 were under the headquarters
team, approximately 281 were under the property development division and
approximately 1,104 were under the retail operation and property management
division. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total staff costs incurred
was approximately HK$269.3 million (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
approximately HK$268.9 million). The remuneration of the employees was
based on their performance, work experience, skills, knowledge and the
prevailing market wage level. The Group remunerated the employees by means
of basic salaries, fringe benefits, cash bonus and equity settled share-based
payment.

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) and a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
on 2 December 2010 under which the Company granted share options and
awarded Shares to certain eligible employees. The Company has also adopted
a post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
on 28 February 2011 for the purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contribution that eligible employees have made or may make to the Group.
Further details of the Share Award Scheme, Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are stated in the Directors’ Report of this report.
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RYK A TE

HEBEFREMERAR
ZT—NFIR

SHENZHEN WATER FLOWER GARDEN

FELTEE

Key Statistics

gy

A EFE (FJ5K)

FiaHET B E

% T HE
fRETAR A AE (7 K)
RZE—ARF+ZA=1+—H®

R FAIHE, AT E R EEE (F5K)

HEHE

Project Overview

No. of phases
Site area (sg.m.)
Construction start date

Completion date

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.)

Estimated net saleable / leasable

GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016

3 3

164,764 164,764
—ET-F=H March 2002
—ZERF+A October 2006
294,638 294,638

4,992 4,992

By Location BEHEAFETERREER Xiangmei Road, Futian District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province
BREHAH Leasetermof EHHE Long lease
HEHR  investment
portion
YIEER Property type (=  ZEREF Residential, retail and clubhouse
=2 Highlights PESETH AR OB ER - 2L FE W Situates prominently in the exclusive region of the

B—E_mE

BT T = [ B ELHRE
BRIUE - _FR_TT=
MEFEPEHAE]

city centre and offers unique view of the Honey
Lake

It was awarded ‘Classical Chinese Model
Residential Property’ in 2003 and 'Real Estate of
the Year' in both 2002 and 2003

RINKBITER

Shenzhen Water Flower Garden
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Ik L
SHENZHEN HIDDEN VALLEY

FERTTEE Key Statistics

HAZL No. of phases 4 4
HBREAE (S K) Site area (sq.m.) 143,047 143,047
FtaHEL B EA Construction start date —ETLFtA July 2007
% T [ H Completion date —E=——%xXA June 2011
hErEEEmE (TR K) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 131,736 131,736
RZBE—RFF+ZA=+—HH Estimated net saleable / leasable

HEDFAIHE A EREmE(FHK) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 4,014 4,014

HE#E

Project Overview

It B Location EREFITELREER

Yulong Road, Bao’an District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province

YI%MER  Property type {i=

Residential

b Highlights FYRERIEIBEE ~ — I L[ 25
BB BRI | R BB
TEEME A

LR OREBER(TROEEE]) (BB
BiEETh OEBEE T HESRE)
MARBUMIRE - BERREEA

—HR BB NFHAEHITN
ZTNERARSEEETISH
RBHER - —HR-_TZNFA
AL - EEH2RSREH
R R A2 AR E

One of the best villa projects in Shenzhen and
was awarded “Global International Garden
Community Nominations Award” and “China
International Garden Community Award”

Offers close proximity to central business district
("CBD") (10 minutes drive from Futian CBD) and
is surrounded by suburb parks with natural living
environment

Phase 1 was launched in May 2008 and became
the best selling project in the luxury residential
market in Shenzhen in 2009. Phase 2 was
launched in September 2008 and was sold out
within a short period of time despite the global
financial crisis

P73
Shenzhen Hidden Valley

Rtk
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KEFR—RII
THE SPRING LAND - SHENZHEN

FERTTEIE Key Statistics

ik No. of phases 6 6
AR (FI7K) Site area (sq.m.) 166,979 166,979
FEfaHE T B HA Construction start date —EENFRA May 2009
% T H A Completion date —E—MFENA August 2014
fhEtBEEmE(FEFK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 774,371 774,371
R-E—XR"F+-A=+—HHK Estimated net saleable / leasable

EtFAIHE, A EEREmE (TR K) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 33,453 33,453

HEBE

Project Overview

et Location ERA RN E R EE Renmin South Road, Longhua Town,
AR Bao'an District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
BREBDH Lease termof FEHHEE Long lease
HEHPE  investment
portion
MEEE Property type (ZERZTE Residential and retail
=B Highlights LL A Hb 32 7Y 55 ARAT 1L S Locates at the Hongshan Station of Subway Line

KEER—FIN(—HR_H) k(=
HIR-—_Z-—ZER_T——F5F|
F25RY 555 M F 5 5HR B

KEER—FIN(EH) R —F—=

FE=FRIRRGHEETAR

No. 4

The Spring Land — Shenzhen (Phases 1 and 2) and
(Phase 3) were ranked the best and the second
best-selling projects in Shenzhen for 2010 and
2011, respectively

The Spring Land — Shenzhen (Phase 5) was ranked
the best selling residential project in Shenzhen in
the third quarter of 2012

K ER—RYNS =
The Spting Landﬂ Kenzhen, S

_ allal-i

™
N &
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ik &
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YK EEE
SHENZHEN BLUE BAY

FELTEE

Key Statistics

HRgx

A ETE (F75K)

Ta AR sa T A Af

TEHAR T B 4

fETH RS (7 K)
RZE—ARF+ZA=+—A8

fEEDFAHE, AR SR LA (FIK)

HEHE

Project Overview

No. of phases NiE A N/A
Site area (sq.m.) 11,200 11,200
Expected construction start date —ET—XRF—AH January 2016

Expected completion date

—ZET—+F+—-H December 2017

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.) 23,000 23,000
Estimated net saleable / leasable
GFA (sgq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 15,000 15,000

b B Location ERARYITERR Guanhu Road, Kuichong Town, Longgang District,
SORAE MR Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
Y el Property type EZmEFE=E Low-density residential

=2 Highlights TEHIRE R RAK —EFEE A Expected to comprise a residential development
located in Yantian district
ARIBE MM ERRAEFRREE - The project offers an excellent sea view which is
MHEEEER adjacent to a beach facing the South China Sea
RN kAT EE

Shenzhen Blue Bay
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May=37%5: 0 g SYNES
SHANGHAI SHAMA CENTURY PARK

FERTTEIE Key Statistics

HAgL
e s B HA

ft et M e AE (P 73 K)
U NEREEVEGE -

RIZB—RF+ZA=+—Hf

s F A e, PG R EmE (F I K)

RZZE—R"F+-_A=+—8H8
NS EAEE

HEHE

Project Overview

No. of phases NiE B N/A

Acquisition date —T—=F 27 September
HAA=+tHR 2013

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.) 49,357 49,357

Total number of underground

car park units 240 240

Estimated net saleable / leasable

GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016 10,418 10,418

Number of underground car park units

as at 31 December 2016 47 47

it Bh Location ERRIEREAR Dongxiu Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai
BREHAH Leasetermof EHHE Long lease
HEMPR  investment
portion
VIR Property type BERAE Serviced apartment
=2 Highlights FESBHL AR AMMEERE  Shanghai Shama Century Park is a serviced

MRS AE

apartment located in Pudong New District

EESHEHLERE
Shanghai Shama Century Park
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KEFR—HM

THE SPRING LAND - HANGZHOU

FERTTEE Key Statistics

iE

HoARTENRE (SF 75 2K)
FaxE T A 5

% T HEf
st mAE (F 5 K)

R_ZE—X"F+-_A=+—HH
fHEHErSsE AITHEREmBA(E A K)

HEHE

Project Overview

No. of phases
Site area (sq.m.)
Construction start date

Completion date

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.)

Estimated net saleable / leasable

GFA (sgq.m.) as at 31 December 2016

TiEHA N/A

28,704 28,704
—ET—=F+—A# November 2013
—E—RF+—A November 2015
151,616 151,616

24,581 24,581

b B Location AEPNERBSEBMENED - A Junction of Binsheng Road and Yangfan Road,
AIAAT BTN B T RN RS right next to the Hangzhou Olympic Centre,
EE Binjiang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
YIEE  Property type %  TERWPAE Residential, retail and office
=3 Highlights 28 B EAT NS E Y L EEE  The project is just right next to the Hangzhou

BAOMEE - PREESIEIT{E5000K

Olympic and International EXPO Centre and it is
only 500 metres away from the Qiantang River

KT R—H
The Spring
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KEHFEX—ER
THE SPRING LAND - NANJING

FEFTEIE Key Statistics

HRE No. of phases TEMA N/A
HBREFE (oK) Site area (sq.m.) 60,825 60,825
FtaHE L B H Construction start date —T—=%—H January 2013
% T A Completion date —E—RFN\A August 2015
hETREEmMBE(FHK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 188,125 188,125
RZE—R"F+-A=+—HHK Estimated net saleable / leasable

R EE MHEREmEE (T K) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 717 717

HEHE

Project Overview

ith Bh Location
R

TEREB R R RA TP O

Hexi CBD, Jianye District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province

YIEER  Property type {FERTE

Residential and retail

2 Highlights

o

R 78 R 7 % R A B R A R R R
BREED  BXE X REBHNE
Hi A WEERA R RT =AM

b=

L HA P8 AR P A [ B AR D S

Located in the central area of Hexi CBD

Hexi CBD has been planned to be a modern area
integrating trade, business, culture and sports in
the city which is connected with Shanghai in the
Yangtze River Delta

KEHFER—ER
The Spring Land - N'irlg




55

VEREEHE

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO

A FUKBIRG ¢

THE SUNNY LAND - NANJING

FERTTEE Key Statistics

A%

HoARTENRE (SF 75 2K)
Fae T A 5

3% T HEf
st mAE (F 5 K)
RZEB—RE+ZA=1+—HBH

fshF e, AT E R EmE (F 5 K)

HEHE

Project Overview

No. of phases
Site area (sq.m.)
Construction start date

Completion date

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.)

Estimated net saleable / leasable

GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016

TEMA N/A

63,328 63,328
—Z—pUFp A April 2014
—Z—HF+—A November 2015
215,224 215,224

10,067 10,067

It B Location IHEERAMNEEREETE Software Park, Yuhuatai District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province
YISERER Property type @Fx=gpZs& Residential and retail
=5 Highlights The plot is located in Nanjing Chengnan district,

ZEB AT AR B
b REEAH  BERLE
ERMES - LERRS

T
[

close to the downtown area. It is eastbound
to Ningdan Road, southbound to Cuiling
Road, westbound to Xianzhuangdao Road and
northbound to Fuyuan Road

.

|
w517
mhx_é‘w \_a

\W N
ﬁfé ix1258
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w MRS

CHANGZHOU LE LEMAN CITY

FELTEE

Key Statistics

HiE

EEEE(FHK)
FtA L B HA

TEHRE T A 1
ETRREmE(F A K)
MWZE—RFE+-_A=+—A08

s F A e PSR EEE (F 7 K)

HEHE

Project Overview

No. of phases

Site area (sq.m.)
Construction start date

Expected completion date

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.)

11 1

Estimated net saleable / leasable

GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016

478,448 478,448
—ETRFRA May 2006
—E—+FAHA May 2017

1,295,977 1,295,977

135,759 135,759

Location

i B

T ERE TN T VA [ A B (U

Yanzheng Middle Road, Wujin District,

@B AZIEEE) Changzhou, Jiangsu Province (Opposite of Wujin
District Government Building)
REIDH Lease term of FHIfAE Medium — term lease
HEHE  investment
portion
YRR Property type (=  ZEREAEE Residential, retail and hotel
=B Highlights PESAVER AP BEM R ERE BT Situates in the centre of Wujin District and
Kig is adjacent to the Wujin District Government
Building
BIENEFBE - REEERLD - Includes numerous amenities including a 4-star
XAbEfh o FEREES LK hotel, a large-scale commercial centre, an arts and
BRI MR F L IERE culture centre, a youth and children’s centre and
a bilingual international kindergarten
BINESHA - —F &% ME  Changzhou Le Leman City was ranked third in
THESRAEBIE= M terms of residential sales amount in Changzhou in
2012
EMNFESE

Changzhou Le Leman City
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FMREHE
CHANGZHOU FASHION MARK

FERTTEE Key Statistics

HA &K No. of phases 4 4
RS (F77K) Site area (sq.m.) 120,296 120,296
F16E T B 5 Construction start date —“ETRF)NA August 2005
BT HH Completion date —ET—=%FXA June 2013
et AR mE(F75K) Total estimated GFA (sq.m.) 513,404 513,404
R-E—RF+-_A=+—HHW Estimated net saleable / leasable
(HEEEAE AR ERERE(TEAK) GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016 83,570 83,570
HEME _
Project Overview
i B Location IERE BN ERE RS Xiyingli, Zhonglou District, Changzhou,
Jiangsu Province
REMOH Lease term of HHIAE Medium-term lease
HEHPR  investment
portion
L/ ESEidl Property type f(F=%  ZELRPAE Residential, retail and office
=5 Highlights LR EMN TR ZEAR L Locates at the commercial centre of the city

ZH—BTERE[TEBEMET A  Ranked in “China Top 10 Mainstream Real
TREBEE| MBENKRETE Estate Projects” in 2005 and Twin Stars (serviced
FEEEAE (RGN AE)EEI —ZZ  apartments) of the project was awarded “2006
ERFEFREREAE] Best International Apartment in China”

—HE="HFIEHZTERXR AT  Phases 1-3 comprise mainly of retail or apartments
X TUHARIASE150KRABEE while Phase 4 is a large-scale residential project
BH with height over 150 metres

BRRTERR Secured well-known anchor tenants

BMNREHE _
Changzhou Fashion Mari

BT a RN RN RN
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AR R A
CHENGDU FASHION MARK

FERTTEIE Key Statistics

HAgL No. of phases

WA (FHK) Site area (sq.m.)
e T A 5 Construction start date
¥ T H Hf Completion date

fhetEREmBE(E LK)
R_ZE—R"F+-A=+—8HX
fHEHFssE AIHEREmBA(F A K)

HEHE
Project Overview

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.)

Estimated net saleable / leasable
GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016

TiE A N/A

20,727 20,727
—T——%XA June 2011
—ET——F+—A December 2012
139,265 139,265

38,285 38,285

By Location V01148 B &R L (R (2 — IR BR P ER AL Hongpailou, Fourth Section of Second Ring Road,
g Wuhou District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province

YEER Property type ZE&ERHEAE Retail and office

=5 Highlights SEiT b = SRAR R PR RS UL Close proximity to Jialing Road Station of Metro

IR GF AR ARE,42657T
B KRERTELLLRERNF
1 E A AR

RZE—TF+— 8 AEEHEX
TSR MERART MY —HHEE
@ HEVENEZEMBENAR
30,500 F 750K - THEAR204F

line no. 3

Site was secured at approximately RMB1,426.5
per sq.m., significantly lower than the average
land cost for comparable projects

In November 2010, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with Rainbow Department
Store Co., Ltd. The GFA of the leased premises is
approximately 30,500 sq.m. for a term of 20 years

HERSEHS
Chengdu Fashion Mark

*
ERXE

[P St
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MREEBE
PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO

MERERHE
NANCHANG FASHION MARK

FERTTEE Key Statistics

HAZ No. of phases NiE A N/A
AR (F 5 K) Site area (sq.m.) 269,455 269,455
FAtAHE L B HA Construction start date —T—=FhA May 2013
TEERR T HER Expected completion date —ZT-FF XA June 2020
fhEH AR EmAE (oK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 1,030,475 1,030,475
R-EBE—RNFE+-_A=+—HH Estimated net saleable / leasable
fahF e sHE, PSR EmAE (F 5 K) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 418,005 418,005
HEME _
Project Overview
b B Location TEEEMAAEROEER Honggutan CBD, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province
BREBDH Lease termof HHEE Medium-term lease
HEHE  investment
portion
mERR Property type (F= - BAE REAABLEY Residential, office, serviced apartment and
&5 shopping mall
=H Highlights B3 ¥7 I3 F T 2 7 Metro Holdings A joint-venture project with a Singapore-listed
Limited (335 H30% 45 ) %R company Metro Holdings Limited which indirectly
SE¥IER holds 30% stake

TR EPOEERIDEERG +FR/T Honggutan’s CBD was initially established about
TR ten years ago

LA S RIS D E i E Lots of domestic financial institutions have
established presence in the area

ER RN EAEBZHE Vast catchment area in the Central China region
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RYEREBE
SHENZHEN FASHION MARK

FERTTEIE Key Statistics

HRE No. of phases TEMA N/A
AR mE(FERX) Site area (sq.m.) 183,962 183,962
TEEAFA AT H H Expected construction start date —Z—N\F+=-A December 2018
TEHR% T HER Expected completion date —E-=FXA June 2023
fheteaEsEmE(FEHK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 1,532,696 1,532,696
RZZE—R"FT+ZA=+—8H8 Estimated net saleable / leasable

A F A E,FTAEE R EEE (F7K) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 1,139,280 1,139,280

HEHE

Project Overview

It B Location BERA AT EE R R R = AR i Nanlian Community, Shenhui Road, Longgang
& District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province

MERR Property type {F=  ZERHRAE Residential, retail and office

=5 Highlights YRR E S LR R E Shenzhen Fashion Mark is located in the centre

[
A - B S 357 AR A Bk Uk B R
DR SR AR B

of Shenzhen Longgang District, connecting the
Nanlian Station and Longcheng Plaza of Subway
Line #3

RYESREHS —
Shenzhen Fashion MaFk-

\}

\

N
N

W
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N
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MREEBE
PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO

KRB
TIANJIN LE LEMAN CITY

FERTTEE Key Statistics

HAgL No. of phases

WA (FHK) Site area (sq.m.)
Fare T A 5 Construction start date
TEHRR T HEj Expected completion date

it #sEsEm A (FI7K)

RZZE—R"F+-A=+—8K
fHEtFAIHE MHERERE(FHK)

HEHE

Project Overview

Total estimated GFA (sq.m.)

Estimated net saleable / leasable
GFA (sgq.m.) as at 31 December 2016

TEMA N/A

114,080 114,080
—E—ZFXA June 2012
—ZTFRA June 2020
114,080 114,080

81,938 81,938

b B Location RAEMREFILERTRDER Junction of Beihua Road and Jincang Expressway,
BRSO Jinhai County, Tianjin

Y 3-Rid) Property type FERTE Residential and retail

=2 Highlights EREREZmHP L (EHE)202 2 Located 20 kilometres (“km”) away from Tianjin

(TREJ)

Rt R RS RE R UALI12A
BERAARKESERBLSAE

city centre (Nankai District)

Approximately 12 km away from the south station
of Beijing-Tianjin high-speed railway and 5 km
away from Beijing-Tianjin Expressway

RERER

Tianjin Le Leman City__ -




HEEREMERAR
62 ZT—NFIR

VMREEHE
PROPERTY PROJECTS PORTFOLIO

RS HEEE
SHENZHEN BUJI MARKET PROJECT

FERTTEIE Key Statistics

HAgL No. of phases 2 2
g 4= Acquisition date —E-=F 15 November
+—A+ER 2013
e EEmE(E LK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 358,000 358,000
R-ZE—R"FE+-_A=+—8BK Estimated net saleable / leasable
EEDFAHE AT EEEEE (T K) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 249,177 249,177
HEME
Project Overview
b Bh Location BREFmEREMN SR Buji Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province
L E$Eil Property type Z&REAM Retail and others
= Highlights ZIEERAEABESAR - EEIE  The project is facing Weiling Park on the east side
EHAAE - dbmEEEFIIFmE L and Honghu Park on the south side. The north
BB side is connected to the Shenzhen Buji transit hub
%18 B ARk B ub & B iEuh The project is nearby the Shuibei Station and

Caopu Station
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ZAEE TSE L2l
HANGZHOU LANDMARK

FERTTEE Key Statistics

HRgL No. of phases 1 1
AR (FHK) Site area (sq.m.) 14,780 14,780
B4 T B 5 Construction start date —TERF—A January 2006
®T A Completion date —EELFLHA July 2007
fhETREEmMBE(FHK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 49,989 49,989
RZB—RF+ZA=+—HH Estimated net saleable / leasable
HEDEAIHE A HEZEmE(FHK) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 26,264 26,264
HEHE _
Project Overview
it B Location AT BTN T R AR R FE e M Ouhuazhou Avenue, Linping, Yuhang District,
R Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
BREMAI W Lease term of  hHIAE Medium-—term lease
HEHE  investment
portion
YI¥%EA  Property type T& Retail
=2 Highlights SEIT ML Close proximity to metro station

BRREBRUATESD  BYEER
MM =S ERFHEERTZ —

BEBHam@EnERs - TMERD
el EmZER - mARSIEEAA

=3
1L

Leveraging on high growth city attributes, Linping
is set to be one of the three high growth satellite
cities of Hangzhou

Secured well-known anchor tenants attract not
only other retailers, but also significant pedestrian
traffic

R HE L iO o7 b5 K
\.! Z T
Hangzhou Landmar& m1 £ ,,m gﬁ *
e T - [1L) m4324 %ﬂ ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂfﬁ
xﬂ\:l -
: ST
o )
~py % 61\ /%
% <
Sl
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SREEHA D
DONGGUAN LANDMARK

FELTEE

Key Statistics

HAgh

A EFE (FJ5K)

FiaHET B E

% T AE

fET RS (T 7 K)
RZE—ARF+ZA=1+—H®

EETF S A EREEE(F LK)

No. of phases 1 1
Site area (sg.m.) 18,738 18,738
Construction start date ZEERFRA June 2006
Completion date —EENFLA July 2008
Total estimated GFA (sq.m.) 79,679 79,679
Estimated net saleable / leasable

GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016 20,172 20,172

HEHE

Project Overview

b B Location BRER=m mHRBIRE8sHE No. 88 Hongfu Road, Nancheng District,
Dongguan, Guangdong Province
REWBDH Leasetermof EHHEE Long lease
HEMPR  investment
portion
YIEER Property type (FERTE Residential and retail
=2 Highlights TREZERLEERE - AEgEd A Locates in the CBD of Dongguan and the dramatic

BE®ZA  MEER - AKRAY
SR

setting and accessibility of the mall substantially
upgrade the local amenities

i%fﬁ%‘?ﬁ%ﬂyb\
Dongguar Landm:
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HRETHIEHE
HONG KONG YUEN LONG PROJECT

FERTTEE Key Statistics

HAgL No. of phases
A=l

Acquisition date

ftatHe s e AE (P 73 K)

RZZE—R"EFE+-A=+—HH
HEPFEE MTHEREmBECE A K)

HEHE

Project Overview

Total estimated GFA (sg.m.)

Estimated net saleable / leasable
GFA (sg.m.) as at 31 December 2016

TiE A N/A
—T—HhF 31 December
+=—A=+—H 2015
23,601 23,601

23,601 23,601

b B Location EEINA TR\ R Junction of Shap Pat Heung Road and Tai Tong
A Road, Yuen Long District, NT, Hong Kong
YIEER  Property type fF= Residential
=2 Highlights FETRi AR TTRAE 459 $E A2 - /v 5-minute drive from Yuen Long Station of West
BE AR ZE T & Rail Line, to reach downtown within half an hour
E#HEE

Hong Kong Yuen Lang{ Project

SHUNG CHING N
SAN TSUEN b A
BIFEH \ aMy
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AINELEHE
SHENZHEN JIANSHANG PROJECT

FERTTEIE Key Statistics

HRE No. of phases TEMA N/A
FEEARA 1A HE T H E Expected construction start date —E—+F+AHA October 2017
TEHRR T HHA Expected completion date —E-_TF+—HA November 2020
fhEtaEEEmE(ELK) Total estimated GFA (sg.m.) 147,892 147,892
RZE—REFE+ZA=1+—HH® Estimated net saleable / leasable

B A e PG R EmAE (F 7 oK) GFA (sq.m.) as at 31 December 2016 32,661 32,661

HEBE

Project Overview

It Bh Location R R E R A LAt [ Jianshang Community, Longhua District,
Shenzhen
mERR Property type @FE=RZE&E Residential and retail
=8 Highlights TEGE BT IR - 1T Highly accessible with a 5-minute walking distance
#5788 from Shangtang Metro Station

#YIFLEER
Shenzhen Jianshang Proje
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1 ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report has
been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG Guide")
for the reporting period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Core Business of the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group principally
engaged in real estate property development in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") specialized in the development and
operation of urban mixed-use communities and the development
and sale of residential properties in the Pearl River Delta, the Yangtze
River Delta, the Central China, the Beijing-Tianjin and the Chengdu-
Chongging regions in the PRC. Sales of properties take up more
than 90% of our revenue of the reporting period.

Report Boundary

In this report, the reporting boundary covers our business operations
on property management and construction business in the PRC
during the reporting period.

Overall ESG Strategy

The overall ESG Strategy of the Group is to maintain risk-adjusted
returns and to strengthen our investment process by reducing
risk, improving efficiency, and satisfying customers and tenants.
Through the implementation of ESG strategy, we will not only gain
recognition from the industry, but more importantly, we enable our
customers to achieve their goals in life as well as benefitting our
tenants and employees in an environment-responsible manner.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment
Stakeholder engagement

This is the first year we are preparing the ESG report. We have
engaged and carried out surveys with representatives of the key
business units of the Group’s operations in 2016 and we have
identified material ESG aspects to focus on our future management
and disclosure. In 2017, we will continue to reach out to more
stakeholders for a wider review and thus update our materiality as
needed.
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BEMTME Materiality assessment
BREAEENFMHELRXENER - & Based on our stakeholder engagement results, we have identified
ME#MAASEULTEERIRE - 4 the following material ESG issues of the Group. Since property
GREREE - ARMERETI AR development forms the most significant business sector of
SESEENEKS N - BERBEH the Group, together with the identified material ESG aspects,
RNEERE HekERE@R(D (categorized into environment and social aspects), we adopt
RIBEERMEER)  AEBRYE respective measures in the design and construction phase of
B AR AT K T A2 BARS ER BN R A fE property development and prioritize our effort in such sustainability
e - WIRLEB R R EZE A A focus areas accordingly.
ERE o

RE - wBRERER EEEE FEMKFE

ESG Categories Material Aspects Major Relevance

RE FKE HERER  ERFEZRERIAKIGORREE -

Environmental Use of water Green building designs with key considerations in energy and water

MEE efficiency designs and installations.

Use of electricity

HeEE EmEE FEEEEEXFLE
Social Aspects Product responsibility Quality of building development Privacy of customers
BERZE BETHHES
Health and safety Construction site safety
R KA BTIREE
Development and Staff as asset
training
BREEN-RESHENERREE 335 Environmental
Overall Materiality - Importance level per Stakeholders & Social

#EE Community I
&35 Anti-corruption |
ERELE Product responsibi\ity] 2 L R L AL P o S e S 0 e KL R AP L MELL N G Lo i 2 i
#FE3# Supply chain
A Human rights
& T %5434 T Child and forced labour
(72,1 1] Development and fraining | e ———————
[ 2} %% Health and Safety] e T e o P e Pl P N P P e PPN S
{EBEF Employee benefits I
EAEEWE Use of packaging materials  INE—
FEAE AR Fuel for mobile uses I
SR EN AR EVPAEL Fuel for non-mobile uses
52 4 BEY) Non-hazardous waste
fEF MEREY) Hazardous waste
22 EHEY) Air emission
TBEREEEEMY) GHG emission
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2 IRIE

2.1

2.2

AiE R A
BABORNBBERGEETRAR
RITDEFGEL B RE - HABIR
RIREE  BEENZ  HETER
R8T B BRRRERMER
B RERENEREEDEER
MEREERER  BHISEEAHE
BERFRAERMNTIERSERA
BENEIHOX

“E-AFREERER

YRR A

ERMNEBT - MERERAHERER
BATE  HAHPETEY T
EAEEELHENERKER - A5
BRERERRET R RED R 2
ERPHENMKEFER - LLERIR
AEAERENTE - At BRERs
FEHEHURUEENER - ERE
ERFTEMTEEEZ R T MARE
B Z2REREEN5IEE - &P
BETHRERERENGEZER
Ko Bl TEEHMEEREREE
B RZBREFESEAIR AN
BmEEm)  MEMEDTEENUR
Koo At - ARBEERRENRRE
LRRRANFR - HMAE-_F—X
FRELBER  EHHM:

o RN ARREVIIFIERE

BIEETRE R ENKRET A RIRIR 2
EMBOERS

o EPRATRERHER TR
BABIRERE  MHELE
REEE  EESREHERE
AR E RS ;

o HERIINMED LRAFRM
Nz Rz R - A=

2 ENVIRONMENT

2.1

2.2

Commitment Principle

We are committed to building a better environment by adopting an
environmental-friendly approach in our business operations. We are
committed to environmental management and more importantly,
comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations in
conducting our business. Our approach towards environmental
protection is being implemented at key stages of property
development, particularly in incorporating green building designs
and implementing responsible construction practices in our work
sites.

Initiatives and Compliance 2016

Property Design

Within our business, property design has a significant impact to
the environment, although the impact may not be always directly
related to the Group as a developer. A building that is efficiently
designed on resource use would reduce the building users’ future
consumption on electricity and water, which has a long term effect
to the environment. Therefore green building design is playing
an increasingly important role. Other aspects of green building
designs consider also the use of materials, indoor air quality, and
site selection. In some regions in China, there are minimum green
building requirements. For example, in Jiangxi Province, new
building developments are required to achieve a minimum Level
| of the national green building standards (Level Il is higher); and
other provinces have similar requirements. So the Group invests
accordingly in order to adopt these special design needs. We have a
few of such designs in 2016, which we have:

e  Adopted passive and environmental-friendly designs of new
development, comprising energy- and water-efficient design
and the use of environmental-friendly building materials etc.;

° Obtained or pursuing environmental certifications such as
China GBL, LEED and other green building labels, where
practicable (and applicable);

° Installed innovative technology such as installing air purifying
equipment in our Shenzhen properties to improve indoor air
quality.
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Construction Sites

During construction, emissions such as air emissions (dust), waste
water discharge, construction wastes and hazardous waste, have
a more direct impact to the environment. Therefore we implement
proper construction site management to include key aspects as
follows:

° Monitor continuously the impact on air quality so that it is
controlled in our work sites;

° Dispose construction wastes properly and recycle where
practicable;

° Handle hazardous wastes by qualified vendors for proper
disposal;

° Reduce waste generation at construction sites by educating
workers to:

—  Use material efficiently; and

- Reuse construction materials at other construction
projects where practicable;

e Treat waste water prior to discharge; and

o Communicate regularly with construction companies to ensure
they are well informed about the local environmental laws and
regulations and follow the same in protecting the environment.

Property Management

For the self-operating properties, we have adopted various
environmental-friendly practices to enhance the overall
environmental performance. Listed below are some examples:

o Energy efficiency: We reduce electricity use by adopting
energy-efficient equipment such as the replacement of lighting
fixtures to LEDs in our properties.

° Environmental management: We obtained ISO 14001
Environmental Management System for our Shenzhen
properties.

° Tenants’ engagement: We encourage our tenants to minimize
their resource consumption (electricity, water and material use)
and provide recycling facilities to reduce waste.
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. Staff engagement: We promote environmental awareness
among staff by having posters in lifts and providing waste
recycling bins in the Group's building.

° Environmental compliance: We carry out regular meetings to
ensure environmental compliance is being maintained through
routine monitoring and inspections of the building facilities.

Compliance

During the year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with
environmental regulatory requirements that may have a significant
impact on the Group'’s business.

3 EMPLOYMENT
3.1 Employee Benefits

The principle of equal opportunities is applied in all employment
policies, in particular to recruitment, training, career development
and promotion of employees. Remuneration and benefit packages of
employees are structured on market terms with regard to individual
responsibility and performance. All eligible employees are enrolled
to a defined contribution mandatory provident fund scheme in
Hong Kong or social insurance scheme in mainland China. Other
employment benefits are awarded at the discretion of the Group.

The Group promotes fair competition and prohibits discrimination
or harassment against any employee on their gender, age, marital
status, religion, race, nationality, disability or any status protected by
law.

We value employees’ satisfaction and encourage our staff to provide
feedbacks. We have channels in place for our employees to express
grievances and complaints which will be well-handled according to
the predetermined procedures to ensure equality to all employees.
The Group prohibits the employment of child and forced labor as
part of the PRC’s regulatory requirements. In 2016, we have also
explicitly include such emphasis in our employment policy.

During the reporting period, there were no reported non-
compliances regarding employment, child labor or forced labor, nor
was there any on discrimination or harassment incidents. The Group
has a staff turnover rate 11.8% as compared to 12.1% in 2015.
Our average length of services of the employees is 2.75 years (31
December 2015: 3.2 years) as at 31 December 2016.
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3.2 BEZENIERE
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3.2

3.3

Healthy and Safe Working Environment

We are committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace to
employees. Safety guidelines are provided through the Safety
Management Handbook and Emergency Management Handbook.
Relevant trainings are organized in the year to improve our
employees’ awareness on health and safety. Regular checks on
the properties and construction sites were carried out and relevant
certifications in compliance to relevant laws and regulations were
obtained. Our property management is certified with OSHAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series. Construction site
safety policy is also implemented in our construction sites. Regular
body check and medical insurance is provided to our workers.

In 2016, we are not aware of any non-compliance with significant
health and safety regulatory requirements within the Group.

Development and Training

The Group encourages continuous learning of our employees
through coaching and further studies. We have a list of training
policies in place, including Training Management (Z3II& 24|
&), Guidelines for Assignment Management Training {¥NK&E3F
EIE455]) and Internal Trainer Management Guidelines {AEREE
SIEMETETES]) . In-house trainings are provided to employees from
management to front-line staff. Sponsorships are provided as an
initiative for further studies by application. In 2016, the Group has
organized a total number of 134 trainings to employees, averaging
25 training hours per employee. A list of training offered include the
following:

e Executive Training to Managers/Chief Operating Officer

° Executive Training to middle management — Mini MBA

e Training for new trainees in the workplace

e Training for mentoring for manager level or above

e Seminar of general manager of the Golden Project including
the whole process of real estate development and operation

management

e  Real estate development and management training in sand
table simulation

° Serials of Top Spring Talk shows

e  Top Spring’s Business Etiquette and Professional Training
(Ladies)
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3.4 Anti-corruption

We are strongly against corruptions among the Group’s activities
and procurements. Such provisions are included in our Group’s
“Employee Handbook”. We have reporting channels on any anti-
corruption incidents and internal audit is carried out regularly
as routine monitoring. We continue to remind our staff on the
importance of anti-corruption through training. For instance, “2016
Top Spring Integrity Seminar” was arranged for our staff in 2016.

In the reporting period, no reported non-compliances on corruption
was noted.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY AND SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT

We are committed to providing quality services to our tenants through the
following:

Provide sincere services, be innovative, develop quality property, and
enhance the neighborhood;

Improve constantly the quality of property management to ensure
quality service is provided;

Strive for high standards by building scientific and standardized
property management and achieve customer satisfaction; and

Provide a tasteful living and working environment with standard
service.

In property management, we are certified with ISO 9001 Quality
Management System to demonstrate our commitment to quality
services. We have also attained a number of project-wide quality awards
throughout 2015-2016:

Huidong Project: Guangdong Province Quality Engineering
Goldsmith Award, civilized site, Guangdong Province;

Nanchang B14: Nanchang High Quality Structure Award, civilized
site, Nanchang;

Nanjing Sunshine: Provincial civilized site; and

Tianjin Project: Haihe Cup.
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To ensure the well-being of our tenants are properly taken care of, we
communicate with them by conducting satisfaction surveys periodically
with the purpose of identifying potential areas for improvement.
We protect our customers’ information by restricting access to the
information. We have in place a hierarchical authorization management
system that assigns different authorization rights to different personnel.
During the reporting period, no reported non-compliances regarding
product responsibility were noted.

We appoint external service providers for our properties construction.
Our service providers' selection process include considerations from
environmental protection to construction safety as well as product
safety. We conduct also service providers’ assessment upon the
completion of construction. The service providers we select are
familiar with the environmental, social and safety requirements for our
properties construction. We work closely with the service providers
on all constructions and sourcing affairs. Regular meetings are held to
facilitate two-way communications. Suppliers’ assessments based on their
environmental and social risk perform regularly.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Shenzhen Topspring Charity Foundation (the “Charity Foundation”)
was first established in 2013. Its prime purpose is to help the students and
the poor. It supports education development and creates opportunities for
students to receive education in order to contribute back to their families
and the society after graduation. The Charity Foundation also takes care
of families during difficulties and the elderlies” daily lives. It aims to carry
forward the humanitarian spirit, help the poor, and develop social welfare
undertakings.

The Group has donated over approximately HK$5,235,000 since 2016.
During the year of 2016, we have supported the community through the
following channels:

o Helping the poor and disaster relief

e Sponsoring in education funds

o Providing financial support to the old-age and the poor and
widowed people

e The Charity Foundation
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31
December 2016 and, where appropriate, adopted the Recommended Best
Practices set out in the CG Code.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance of the
Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximise interests of the Shareholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD")

The Board is responsible for supervising and overseeing all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall management
and operation strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policies and
monitoring the performance of the senior management, while the management
is responsible for the daily management and operations of the Group.

The Board comprises four executive Directors, namely Mr WONG Chun Hong,
Ms LI Yan Jie, Mr CHEN Feng Yang and Mr WANG Tian Ye, two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr XU Lei and Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr CHENG Yuk Wo, Professor
WU Si Zong and Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships, (i) among the members of the Board, and (ii) between Mr
WONG Chun Hong, the Chairman and Co-chief Executive Officer and Mr CHEN
Feng Yang, the Co-chief Executive Officer.
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REBEEER ST YRTMNAESZSEE:E  During the year under review, the Board held four Board meetings (exclusive of
(T"EEHESFSRIUNEELZESHROREEE  meetings of the Board committee constituted by the Board held during the year
NEBITHER) - SESHOLEFEREEYNTER © under review). The attendance of each Director is set out in the table below:

HERE e
Number of
attendance/Total
HITES Executive Directors
EHERTE (R EITIRAE) Mr WONG Chun Hong (Chairman and
(M7x1) Co-chief Executive Officer) (Note 1) 4/4
Tt Ms LI Yan Jie 3/4
PR 215 4 A2 (B FE 1 TR AR ) Mr CHEN Feng Yang (Co-chief Executive Officer) 4/4
FRtbFEAE Mr WANG Tian Ye 4/4
FETES Non-executive Directors
HFELREEIER) Mr XU Lei (Vice-Chairman) 4/4
Bz & Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence 4/4
P A (MEE2) Mr LEE Sai Kai David (Note 2) 3/3
BYFHITES Independent non-executive Directors
BROOKE Charles Nicholas#t 4 (Ff5£3) Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas (Note 3) 3/3
BN A Mr CHENG Yuk Wo 4/4
SNSRI Professor WU Si Zong 4/4
REA FE(MFE4) Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi (Note 4) 4/4
BT Notes:

(1) ZEEELAETBEAALGINE#EAREZ =% (1) MrWONG Chun Hong ceased to act as an authorised representative of the Company

—NFE—ATN\BRRER - with effect from 18 January 2016.

2) ZHEEETHAIEHNTESE B-_Z—~ENA (2)  Mr LEE Sai Kai David ceased to be a non-executive Director with effect from 1 September
—HAEARL - 2016.

(3) BROOKE Charles Nicholast A T~ &Y L 1T & 3) Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas ceased to be an independent non-executive Director and a
ENEZREEQKE BT E+_-_A_-H#E member of the audit committee with effect from 2 December 2016.
R e

(4) RESEERETLEERZEEERE A—F—>x (@  MrLEUNG Kwong Choi was appointed as a member of the audit committee with effect
FH-—A-HEERR from 2 December 2016.
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Name of Director

TRAINING AND COMMITMENT

To ensure that a newly appointed Director will have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Company and is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under all applicable laws and regulations (including the Listing
Rules), he/she will be provided with a comprehensive, tailored made and formal
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment.

The Company provides continuous professional development (“CPD") training
and relevant reading materials to the Directors to help and ensure that they
are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its businesses and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director. In addition, attendance at external forums or briefing sessions (including
delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also counts toward CPD training.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with details of the CPD
training undertaken by them from time to time. Based on the details so
provided, the CPD training undertaken by the Directors in 2016 is summarised as
follows.

EE - EZRR EENAG.
BEERBE

REBER Directors’ roles,
Businesses of functions and

the Group duties

HEER

Legal, regulatory
and corporate
governance

HITES Executive Directors
EEREE Mr WONG Chun Hong

(B RMEITHES) (Chairman and Co-chief Executive Officer) v/ v/ /
FEL L Ms LI Yan Jie v v /
R RS A (BT TR, ) Mr CHEN Feng Yang (Co-chief Executive Officer) v/ v/ v/
TRt E Mr WANG Tian Ye v/ v/ /
FHTES Non-executive Directors
HELEEER) Mr XU Lei (Vice-Chairman) v v/ /
HEEE Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence v v /
LA () Mr LEE Sai Kai David (Note 1) v v v/
BUKHTES Independent non-executive Directors
BROOKE Charles Nicholas#t4 ~ Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas (Note 2)

(FizE2) v v v
gt Mr CHENG Yuk Wo v v /
RMRIR Professor WU Si Zong v / J
RELFE Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi v v /

e Remarks:
v EEES v/ represents compliance
faE - Notes:

(1) FHEXETBRINTER a-F—~FALA O

—HEX -

(2)  BROOKE Charles Nicholas?c 4= B AB v EHTE ()
ERBERZEENE BT "F+-A-Hi

AR e

2016.

Mr LEE Sai Kai David ceased to be a non-executive Director with effect from 1 September

Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas ceased to be an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the audit committee with effect from 2 December 2016.
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Confirmations were received from the Directors that they have provided
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Besides, the Directors
disclose to the Company their interests as director and other office in other
public companies and organisations in a timely manner and update the
Company on any subsequent changes. Each of the Directors has complied with
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review, Mr WONG Chun Hong
performed his duties as the Chairman and the Co-chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Board believes that the serving by the same individual as
the Chairman and the Co-chief Executive Officer during the rapid development
of the business is beneficial to the consistency of business plans and decision-
making of the Company. Since the appointment of Mr CHEN Feng Yang as the
Co-chief Executive Officer, the powers and authorities of the Co-chief Executive
Officer have not been concentrated as the responsibilities have been shared
between the Co-chief Executive Officers. The Board will continue to review
the current management structure from time to time and shall make changes
where appropriate and inform the investors of the Company accordingly.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT GENERAL MEETING

During the year under review, the Company held three extraordinary general
meetings on 14 March 2016, 11 May 2016 and 18 August 2016, respectively,
and an annual general meeting on 23 May 2016 (“2016 AGM"). The
attendance of each Director is set out in the table below.

RRSEAE
Extraordinary general meeting

S i
=ZA+@mA
14 March

2016

—®-AF
iAt-A
11 May
2016

—2-AF
NA+NH
18 August

2016

HITES Executive Directors
BERELE Mr WONG Chun Hong

(TRFBFITHER) (Chairman and Co-chief Executive Officer) v/ X X v/
FERL Ms LI Yan Jie X v X X
BEES5E 4 (BEfE1THAEEL)  Mr CHEN Feng Yang (Co-chief Executive Officer) X X / X
FREBEE Mr WANG Tian Ye X / v v/
FHTES Non-executive Directors
HEERERER) Mr XU Lei (Vice-Chairman) X X X v/
BRI EE Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence X v/ v v
{5 A (FTEE1) Mr LEE Sai Kai David (Note 1) v/ / v v
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BRRERAE

Extraordinary general meeting

—NE
ZA+@A
14 March
2016

—nE
NATNH
18 August

2016

Independent non-executive Directors

> > NN
> > N X
> > N X%
> > NN

BYFHITES
BROOKE Charles Nicholas#e4  Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas (Note 2)
(Ft#E2)
BHMEE Mr CHENG Yuk Wo
RIMRHE Professor WU Si Zong
RESFHE Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi
fiet

v OEHE X HEERE
MfsE

(1) FHEEETHAENTES -
—BRBER -

(2)  BROOKE Charles Nicholas5t 4B A FEHITE
ENERZEENRE AT AF+-A-Bit
E2e

E-ZT—RFNA

AREETANTRBRXEEI 21 EEXERE
BETHEFUE ﬁi&}m%éﬁﬁiﬁﬁb&/IT%{
RESHBEAMEERELF = Txiﬂx%ﬂi
K& - A - Ef’ﬂ;%QﬁkﬁﬁﬁT —"EF
BB R I EEHE - LAEE1%§51$’&TJ&$
BB

FHUTEERBIUFYITES

EEFTESOUEEER - REDET L
TRAZE3 NG BIULIRTE - NARRE
RIBI B IRTE 2B IFNTEETHRE
AL

BSFRITEFARBEEEXERLER - A
wEENSH AR HERER - BT
EXEORGEFENESZRENERLASR
AEEORE - BRMRAEETRELBETH
i Y RAKREEBEHEKRER

BRSERITES MBI TEENZEFH
FLHESHEEP(ESF K-

Remarks:
v represents attendance X represents absence

Notes:

(1) Mr LEE Sai Kai David ceased to be a non-executive Director with effect from 1 September
2016.

(2)  Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas ceased to be an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the audit committee with effect from 2 December 2016.

In respect of Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, Ms LI Yan Jie, the chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee, and Professor WU Si Zong, the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee, were unable to attend the 2016
AGM due to other business engagement. Other committee members, however,
attended the 2016 AGM and made themselves available to answer questions to
ensure effective communication with the shareholders of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed by written
confirmation that he has complied with the independence requirements set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent under these independence
requirements.

Independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate professional
qualifications and experience or appropriate accounting or relevant financial
management expertise. Independent non-executive Directors are able to
provide their independent judgement in respect of matters such as the Group’s
strategy, policy and performance at Board and Board committee meetings, and
to make significant contributions to the affairs of the Group.

For the term of appointment of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors” in
the Directors’ Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) is Mr CHENG Yuk Wo. As at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr
WONG Chun Hong and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr CHENG
Yuk Wo and Professor WU Si Zong.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior management,
the Remuneration Committee would consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and the senior management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year under review.
The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in
the table below:

HERE,BE

Number of

attendance/Total

BRI E(ETE) Mr CHENG Yuk Wo (Chairman) 1/1
=EREAE Mr WONG Chun Hong 11
SOMTRE Professor WU Si Zong 11

REBFEEAR  FHEZEREESTAARF
HITESRSAEREENEE T R"F+=
A=+ A LEFENFEREARARRBSRE
EERTHEE_T—AFT_A=t—HLEFE
MERE - IEEE2ERTFEARS HEER
BB RHE ©

HEZZ—R"F+A=T—BLFE E£k
ARBRREEESBNFHHABERIINAEE
REMTEwMRM L8N -

For the year under review, the Remuneration Committee recommended
to the Board on the year-end bonus of executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
granting of Share options to the senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016. No Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration or options granted.

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors and senior management of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in notes 8 and
9 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) is Professor WU Si Zong. As at the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr WONG Chun
Hong and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr CHENG Yuk Wo and
Professor WU Si Zong.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members, to make recommendations to the
Board on matters related to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, and to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. In considering the nomination of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will take into account the qualification,
ability, work experience, leadership and professional ethics of the candidates
and the independence requirement in the case of an independent non-
executive Director as well as the objective of the board diversity policy adopted
by the Company. Elements of the board diversity policy of the Company include
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge of Directors. The above elements have substantially been
included in the current Board composition.

The Company has adopted procedures for nomination of a new Director,
pursuant to which (i) an interview will be conducted with the prospective
candidates; and (ii) the Board will consider and, if thought fit, approve the
appointment of a new Director by way of Board meeting or written resolution.
To ensure that a newly appointed Director will have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Company and is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under all applicable laws and regulations (including the Listing
Rules), he/she will be provided with a comprehensive, tailored made and formal
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under review.
The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the
table below:

HERE B

Number of

attendance/Total

RMREE(EE) Professor WU Si Zong (Chairman) 11
HRERE Mr WONG Chun Hong 1/1
BRERAN S A& Mr CHENG Yuk Wo 11

REBEFER  REZBERELTRAE
310ARMEI EEEMRE « MR LA RE
HREREREES -

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board in accordance with Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, and recommended the re-election of the retiring Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) is Mr CHENG Yuk Wo. As at the date of this report, the Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr CHENG
Yuk Wo, Professor WU Si Zong and Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi .

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is authorised by the Board
to assess, review and monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company. The Audit Committee oversees all financial reporting procedures and
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, advises the Board
on the appointment and re-appointment of external auditors, and reviews
and monitors the independence and objectivity of external auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with the applicable standard.

The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board on matters
related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, which is subject to the approval of the Board and the Shareholders
at general meeting of the Company. For the year under review, the Board has
not taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the table
below:

HERE HE

Number of

attendance/Total

B E(ERF) Mr CHENG Yuk Wo (Chairman) 4/4

BROOKE Charles Nicholas#c 4 (Fffiz£1)  Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas (Note 1) 3/3

SOMTRE Professor WU Si Zong 4/4

REA S EMEE2) Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi (Note 2) 11
BIE - Notes:

(1) BROOKE Charles Nicholast £ B8 = —NF+ = A
—HETHABZZEEENMKE -
2 REFEEAZZ-AET_AZAREZAARE

REiligs  EREZEECER  BHNMR
KEHE_T-RF+-_A=1+—HIEFENF
BEE BE_Z—REFRA=THILEREAD
hHIRERAN G RAIRER - RUBERS
WA - BRERTS - AEPEARBAE R ERE R
RBHARIE -

(1) Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with effect
form 2 December 2016.

(2)  Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 2 December 2016.

At the above meetings, the Audit Committee has considered, reviewed and
discussed the accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group,
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and the
effectiveness of financial reporting, internal control, consultancy services,
internal audit function and risk management systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The chairman of the corporate governance committee of the Company (the
“Corporate Governance Committee”) is Ms LI Yan Jie. As at the date of
this report, the Corporate Governance Committee consists of one executive
Director, Ms LI Yan Jie, one non-executive Director, Mr CHIANG Kok Sung
Lawrence and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr CHENG Yuk Wo
and Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi.

Following the terms of reference, the Corporate Governance Committee
reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
made recommendations to the Board. The Corporate Governance Committee
also reviewed and monitored the training and CPD of the Directors and the
senior management, developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors, and reviewed the compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this report.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the year

o ShEELRTEeKEEEeHANEEYS]  under review. The attendance of each member of the Corporate Governance
RTK: Committee is set out in the table below:

HERY, B
Number of
attendance/Total
TUEL T (EF) Ms LI Yan Jie (Chairman) 11
BRI S A Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence 11
EPERANSE A Mr CHENG Yuk Wo 171
REAL F4E Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi 1”1
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total fees paid/payable to the
external auditors of the Company, KPMG, in respect of audit and non-audit
services are set out below:

BE-B—RF

+=A=+—H

LFEE

For the year ended

31 December 2016

THET

HK$'000

EZR Audit services 4,560

e Z AR (BRE) Non-audit services (Note) 3,140

et Total 7,700
BEE - 7 - BRIBHFEEERBIN - AERESNEZEET  Note: Apart from the provision of annual audit services, KPMG, the Group's external auditors,
EEREAMEEI TR AEEEE T —RFX also provided review services on the interim financial report of the Group for the six

A=1THEREATHHBREARBE=Z—X
FZRA=t—RL=EARBE-—Z—X"ENLA
ZTAEAMEAANFEREEREARHERMR
% AREMIFEERE(BEREBERT - ¥
HRERMBER)

ESHMBRRAENEE

EERANEARREBE_T-—RF+_A
=T R FENMERRAEEE - LR
BRRAEAFHRROBEFENER - BRE
ERREERE R EHEARE - RABINSZ
HENR S A MBI EH AR BN B HRE
PV FRR B (TR BB AN IR 0 B S AR BRA R

4o

months ended 30 June 2016 and quarterly unaudited results for the three months ended
31 March 2016 and for the nine months ended 30 September 2016, and other non-audit
services including provision of agreed-upon procedures, financial reporting and tax advice
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, and confirm that the
financial statements give a true and fair view for the year under review, and
are prepared in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards. The statement of the external auditors of the Company,
KPMG, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective internal
control system and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency of the
financial, operational, compliance controls, risk management and other
aspects of the system in order to safeguard the investment of Shareholders
and the assets of the Company. During the year under review, the Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group covering the above aspects. The Board has also
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget during the year under review. The
Board is not aware of any significant internal control and risk management
weaknesses nor significant breach or limits of risk management policies, and
considers the existing internal control system and risk management systems
effective and adequate. The Company has complied with the risk management
and internal control code provisions under the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The internal audit department of the Company is responsible for regular review
and audit of the Group’s major finance and operating activities. The purpose of
such work is to ensure the normal operation of internal control and the playing
of its due role.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has an overall responsibility for the risk management framework,
and for determining the significant risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company's objectives.

The Audit Committee is delegated with overseeing the effectiveness of internal
control and risk management, while management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems. The Board office is responsible
for coordinating risk management activities, and to report regularly to the
Board.

Our approach to manage risks involves identification and assessment of
principal risks from the external and internal environment at different
organisation levels. The assessment considers the changes in nature and
extent of significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment. Action plans have been developed and
risk ownership has been assigned for each key principal risk. The risk owners
coordinate the mitigation measures to ensure proper implementation of these
action plans. The process is closely monitored by the Board office. The internal
control and risk management systems are reviewed by the Board on an on-
going basis to ensure they are effective.

Taking into consideration the principal risks and mitigation actions, the Board
believes that the Company has the ability to respond to any such changes in
our business and the external environment.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties that may cause the Group’s financial
conditions or results materially different from the expected or historical results
are described below:

Risks with regard to the property market in the PRC

Most of the Group’s property projects are located in the PRC, and some in
Hong Kong and overseas, and most of the Group’s revenue is derived in
the PRC. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 19 projects at
various stages of development. As such, the Group is therefore subject to the
risks associated with the PRC property market. The Group’s operations in the
PRC may also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest rate change,
demand-supply imbalance and the overall economic conditions, which may
pose an adverse impact on the Group’s business, financial condition or results
of operations.

Risks with regard to the funding of property development
The property development business is capital intensive. The Group funded its
land acquisitions and property developments primarily through bank loans,
internally generated cash flows (including proceeds from the pre-sale and
sale of the Group’s projects), note payable, convertible bonds and loans from
substantial shareholders. The Group’s ability to obtain adequate funding
depends on a number of factors, some of which are beyond the Group’s
control, such as general economic conditions in the PRC, the performance
and outlook of the property development industry in the PRC, the Group’s
financial strength and performance, the availability of credit from financial
institutions, and regulatory measures instituted by the PRC government. There is
no assurance that the Group will be able to obtain adequate financing for land
acquisitions or property developments at all and/or on terms that will allow the
Group to earn reasonable returns.

Risks with regards to the redevelopment projects
Redevelopment projects in the PRC involve many uncertainties and are capital
intensive. The Group is required to obtain numerous government approvals in
relation to the Group’s urban redevelopment projects and to obtain consents to
relocate all of the existing residents. There is no assurance that the Group will
be able to obtain all of the necessary consents to relocate the existing residents
or that the Group will be able to obtain all necessary government approvals.
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Risks with regard to the property leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates depend on various factors, including
but not limited to, prevailing supply and demand conditions, economic
conditions as well as the quality of the properties. There is no assurance that
the Group will be able to look for new tenants within a short period of time or
procure new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market rates.

Operational risks

The Group's operation is subject to a number of risk factors distinctive to
property development and property related businesses. Default on the part of
the Group's contractors, buyers, tenants, and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems or other
external factors may have various levels of negative impact on the results of
the Group’s operation. In addition, accidents may happen despite systems and
policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to the Group’s financial
loss, litigation, or damage in reputation.

Interest rate risks

Most of the Group’s borrowings are floating-rate bank loans, which expose
the Group to rising interest rates. We will closely monitor the interest rate risk
and when appropriate adopt measures to manage the associated risk, including
but not limited to, the issuance of fixed rate bonds, and use of derivatives such
as interest rate swaps and management of the ratio of fixed or floating loan
portfolio. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not carried out any hedging
activities to manage its interest rate exposure.

Currency risks

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from the exposure of RMB against Hong Kong dollars or
US dollars as a result of its investment in the PRC and the settlement of certain
general and administrative expenses and other borrowings in Hong Kong dollars
or United States dollars. We will closely monitor the fluctuations of the RMB
exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to entering into any currency
swap arrangement as and when appropriate for hedging corresponding risks. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group had not carried out any hedging activities to
manage its foreign exchange rate risk.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and dissemination of
inside information which sets out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such
a way to avoid placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the Group to
ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the Company from breaching the
statutory and listing rule disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate
internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as its code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. After
having made specific enquiries with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2016. To ensure compliance, all Directors
were requested to send a notice of intention to deal with the securities of the
Company to the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and should
obtain an approval from the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
or the designed person by the Board during the year under review to deal with
securities of the Company.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company are also subject to compliance with guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
Mr WONG Tak Chun, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently and effectively
conducted. These objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
processes and the timely preparation and dissemination to the Directors of
comprehensive meeting agendas and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings
and Board committees are prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details of the matters considered and decisions reached
by the Board or Board committees, including any concerns raised or dissenting
views voiced by any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees are sent to Directors and committee members
respectively for comments and records and are available for inspection by any
Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully
apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. From time to time, he organises seminars on specific
topics of significance and interest and disseminates reference materials to the
Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the compliance of the
Group with all obligations of the Listing Rules and the Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, including the preparation, publication and
despatch of annual reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down
in the Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to Shareholders and the market of
information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on their obligations
for disclosure of interests and dealings in securities of the Company, connected
transactions and inside information and ensures that the standards and
disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed and, where required,
reflected in the annual report of the Company.

During the year under review, Mr WONG Tak Chun attended no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Company ensures that fair and transparent disclosure is made for its
business and financial performance through a variety of formal communication
channels. Information regarding the Company is published in its website:
www.topspring.com. Interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of
the Company are despatched to Shareholders. The website of the Company
provides information such as e-mail address, correspondence address,
telephone numbers for enquiries, and provides information on the business
activities of the Group. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing either by email to IR@topspring.com or direct
mailing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s annual general meeting of Shareholders is a good opportunity
for communication between the Board and Shareholders. Notice of annual
general meeting and related documents will be sent to Shareholders pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules and the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), and are published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the Company.
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in the requisition; and the Company shall hold general
meeting within two months after receiving the requisition. If a Shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as
a Director at a general meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of
Association, the Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written notice,
duly signed by the Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged at the Company’s
head office or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar (“Hong Kong
Share Registrar”), Tricor Investor Services Limited. The period for lodgement
of such notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of such general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting. All substantive resolutions at general meetings are
decided on a poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary and scrutinised
by the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the Company. The results of the poll are
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Regularly
updated financial, business and other information on the Group is made
available on the website of the Company for Shareholders and investors.

The Company also meets the investment community and responds to their
enquiries about the status of the Company from time to time, so as to
strengthen the contacts and communication between the Company and its
investors.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr WONG Chun Hong (Z14 ), aged 62
Executive Director, Chairman and Co-chief Executive Officer

Mr WONG is the Founder of the Group and was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chairman, and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 25 August 2009 and was designated as a Co-chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 October 2015. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. In addition, he is also the second
largest shareholder and vice chairman of the board of directors of Rainbow
Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Rainbow”), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He has over two decades of experience in the real estate
business in the PRC and Hong Kong and has profound accomplishments in the
finance and retail fields.

From 1993 to 1996, Mr WONG was the deputy managing director and the
second largest shareholder of Top Glory International Holdings Limited (“TGI")
(formerly known as World Trade Center Group Limited), a company which was
listed on the Stock Exchange and is now privatised and was the vice chairman
of China Foods Limited (formerly known as China Foods Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (“China Foods”). From 1996 to 2001,
Mr WONG was a major shareholder, chairman and chief executive officer of
ITC Properties Group Limited (formerly known as Cheung Tai Hong Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (“ITC”). Mr WONG was
awarded 2010 FERZE A (2010 Person of the Year) by China Real Estate
Information Corporation (FEEEZE%E), FTRLE (Sina House), 2011
the Most Influential Person in China and 2012 the Most Influential Person
in real estate sector in China in the 11th and 12th Boao Real Estate Forum,
respectively, and 2011 CEIBS Alumni Award Programme by China Europe
International, Business School. Mr WONG also attended the Global CEO
Programme for China in 2007 which was co-organised by China Europe
International Business School, IESE Business School and Harvard Business
School. He is the chairman of Hong Kong Federation of Guangzhou Associates
Limited, the Vice-President of Hong Kong Real Property Federation and a
member of Guangzhou Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(BMNTEEZ). In July 2016, Hong Kong S.A.R Government awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) to recognize Mr WONG's continuous contribution to
the well-being of Hong Kong and his distinguished business achievements. The
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) created in 1998, which is awarded to persons who
have given outstanding service over a long period of time.

Chance Again Limited (“Chance Again”), which is a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, is wholly-owned by Cheung Yuet
(B.V.1.) Limited (“BVI Co"). The entire issued share capital of BVI Co is wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC International Trustee”)
as the trustee of The Cheung Yuet Memorial Trust, a discretionary family trust
established by Mr WONG (the “Wong Family Trust”), the beneficiaries of
which include Mr WONG's family members. Mr WONG is the settlor and the
protector of the Wong Family Trust. Mr WONG is also a director of Chance
Again. Save as mentioned above, Mr WONG does not have any relationships
with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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The discloseable interest of Mr. WONG in the Shares and underlying Shares
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO") is set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its Associated Corporations” under the Directors’ Report of
this report.

Ms LI Yan Jie (Z=#%), aged 46
Executive Director

Ms LI joined the Group in December 2000 and was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 August 2009, and the chairman and a member of the corporate
governance committee on 1 October 2015. She also serves as a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. She was formerly the chief operating
officer of the Company. Ms LI has extensive experience in sales and marketing,
property projects development and has a well-established client base. In
2004, Ms LI was a director of Rainbow, a company which is now listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. From 1994 to 2000, she was the general manager
of FI|T +HEER S0 (Shenzhen Land & Real Estate Exchange Center)
(formerly known as F&HITFE#1EIZ 5 L (Shenzhen Real Estate Exchange
Center)). Ms LI studied an executive training course on real estate development
and finance at J&ZE A £ (Tsinghua University) in 2006. Ms LI does not have any
relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company.

The discloseable interest of Ms LI in the Shares and underlying Shares under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO is set out in the section headed "Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” under the
Directors’ Report of this report.

Mr CHEN Feng Yang (FR & #), aged 53
Executive Director and Co-chief Executive Officer

Mr CHEN was appointed as an executive Director on 1 June 2013 and the Co-
chief Executive Officer on 1 October 2015. He joined the Group in February
2006 and was promoted to the position of senior vice president in October
2010 and later appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company in
June 2011. He is the director of several subsidiaries of the Group. During the
period between 2002 to 2006, he worked as the vice president of FFEIE % 5%
B/ AR AT (China Bao'an Group Co. Ltd.) and the chairman of &8
ZEMEMRZEEMR AT (Hengan Property Development (Shenzhen) Ltd.). Mr
CHEN graduated from & T % K2 (Wuhan Institute of Technology) in 1989
with a master degree in Structural Engineering. Mr CHEN does not have any
relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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The discloseable interest of Mr CHEN in the Shares and underlying Shares under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO is set out in the section headed ”Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” under the
Directors’ Report of this report.

Mr WANG Tian Ye (£ X 1), aged 58
Executive Director

Mr WANG was appointed as an executive Director on 1 October 2015. He
was also appointed as an Independent director of Henan Pinggao Electric Co.,
Ltd. G F BRI AR A7) and an independent non-executive director
of China Logistics Property Holdings Co., Ltd (F B4R E EZRABR A R),
companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange,
respectively. Mr WANG joined the Company in August 2012. During his
tenure with the Group, Mr WANG was the chairman of New Top Spring Fund
Management Co., Ltd. GRIIFFORIREE L EIR AR 2 7)) and Shenzhen Top
Spring Commercial Investment Management Co., Ltd. (RIITTHREHEREE
IEAHPR/AF]). Prior to joining the Group, Mr WANG was an executive director
and the chief executive officer of Central China Real Estate Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, from 2004 to 2012. He worked in various
positions in the Bank of China Group from 1980 to 1997 in the PRC and
Sydney Branch. From 1998 to 2004, Mr WANG was the the general manager
of an investment company established by the Guangdong Development Bank
in Hong Kong. Besides, he was an independent non-executive director of CNPV
Solar Power SA, a company listed on New York Stock Exchange Euronext, and
was an independent non-executive director of each of National Investments
Fund Limited, China Investment Development Limited and Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr WANG has over 30 years of experience in finance, investment, and real
estate sector. He has obtained a Diploma in International Finance from the
People’s University of China in 1985 and a Master’s degree in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University in Australia in 1996. He completed the Global
CEO Program for China in China Europe International Business School in June
2007. Mr WANG does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

The discloseable interest of Mr WANG in the Shares and underlying Shares
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO is set out in the section headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” under the Directors’ Report of this report.
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Non-executive Directors
Mr XU Lei (77%), aged 50
Non-executive Director and Vice-chairman

Mr XU was appointed as a non-executive Director and the Vice-chairman of
the Company on 1 October 2015. He is the chairman and secretary to the
party committee of Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.*
(EMEBMEREEEEABR AR (“"YMC"). He is also the chairman of
Yunnan Metropolitan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd (EFEMEEERHAE
fRAA]) (“Yunnan Metropolitan”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. In May 2015, Mr XU was appointed as the chairman and a non-
executive director of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (ZEfg/K B AR
AR E]) (“Yunnan Water”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
YMCl is its controlling shareholder. Besides, he is also the chairman of Caiyun
International Investment Limited (2B FERE B R A &) (“Caiyun”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of YMCI and a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr
XU has extensive experience as senior management in urban developments,
urban water supply, cultural and tourism, medical services, bio-pharmaceutical,
financial education and hotel businesses. Mr XU obtained an executive master
of business administration degree from Peking University in July 2007 and a
doctor of philosophy in study of industrial economics from Wuhan University of
Technology in Wuhan in June 2012.

Mr XU does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr XU did not have any interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations under the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence (2§ 42), aged 65
Non-executive Director

Mr CHIANG was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee on 1 July 2014. Mr CHIANG is currently the
Group Chief Executive Officer of Metro Holdings Limited, a company listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Mr CHIANG is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Nanchang Top Spring Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Shine Rise International Limited, SSCP Limited and MSREF Century
Palace (Residential) Limited (not a member of the Morgan Stanley Group of
companies or any fund they manage). Mr CHIANG joined Metro in 1989. He
now assumes overall responsibility for the operations of both the property
and retail divisions whilst being directly involved in the management of its
property business. He has extensive experience in a range of business activities
such as property development, leasing and management, construction, the
retail industry and department stores, the leisure industry (hotels and cruise
ships), marketing and distribution of established international brand name
luxury products and trading. Mr CHIANG was a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of New Zealand, the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr CHIANG does not
have any relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

The discloseable interest of Mr CHIANG in the Shares and underlying Shares
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO is set out in the section headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” under the Directors’ Report of this report.
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Name of the listed company

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo (¥8#%i#1), aged 56
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 30
November 2010. Mr CHENG worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers (formerly
known as Coopers and Lybrand) in London in 1984 and at UBS AG (formerly
known as Swiss Bank Corporation) in Toronto in 1989. He is also the co-
founder of Centurion Corporate Finance Limited. In 1999, he became the sole
proprietor of Erik CHENG & Co., Certified Public Accountants. Mr CHENG
received his Master of Sciences (Econ) in Accounting and Finance from the
London School of Economics and Political Science in 1984, and his Bachelor of
Arts (Hons.) in Accounting from the University of Kent in 1983. Mr CHENG is
currently a member of the Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada. He is also a Certified Public Accountant practising in Hong Kong and
a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr
CHENG does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

The table below sets out Mr CHENG's directorships in a number of companies
listed in Hong Kong during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this report:

B

Position

BIESRITAR AR
Chong Hing Bank Limited
MNEEEAR AR (FIBEREEBEREARAR)

C.P. Lotus Corporation (formerly known as Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited)

P2 EEEERERAR
CPMC Holdings Limited

BIUNITES
Independent non-executive director
BIFPITER
Independent non-executive director
BUIEHITES

Independent non-executive director

BAKBMEBRAR (FIBERRBRERRRDF)
CSI Properties Limited (formerly known as Capital Strategic Investment Limited)
RNEATHEREERAR AT

DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited
EEEEZERARAR]

Goldbond Group Holdings Limited
BEEROER)BRAA

HKC (Holdings) Limited

BB B AR AR ()

Imagi International Holdings Limited (Note)
MEMBERRIQR

Somerley Capital Limited

BRIRPEXERAR

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
SEINEREEERAA

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited

M BHEMELEER-_Z—RF-A-+/\BRHEES
B ZERAR DR B IFRITES -

BUENITES
Independent non-executive director
BIFPITER
Independent non-executive director
BIFNTEE
Independent non-executive director
BUIENITES
Independent non-executive director
B FNITER
Independent non-executive director
BIFRNTEE
Independent non-executive director
BIUFNITES
Independent non-executive director
BIFRITER

Independent non-executive director

Note: Mr CHENG Yuk Wo resigned as an independent non-executive director of Imagi
International Holdings Limited on 28 January 2016.
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The discloseable interest of Mr. CHENG in the Shares and underlying Shares
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO is set out in the section headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” under the Directors’ Report of this report.

Professor WU Si Zong (= 3R), aged 65
Independent Non-executive Director

Professor WU was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 30
November 2010. Since 1997 and until now, he is a professor, a doctoral tutor,
the secretary of the Party Committee and the vice dean of the Economic and
Management School at [E}ZEAZ: (Tongji University). Professor WU is the vice-
chairman of /&M mHE € (Shanghai Marketing Society) and the standing
director of E M52 & (China Marketing Society). Professor WU lectures
in economics and international trade. His main research fields are business
management, marketing and international trade. From 1994 to 1997, he was
the Head of Affairs Committee of the International Trade Faculty at ;T FBF 4K
£ (Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics). From 2001 to 2008, Professor
WU published several theses and was involved in various research projects in
his fields of expertise. He also published many books in marketing, commerce
and trade from 2000 to 2007. Professor WU received his Bachelor’s degree
in Economics from STFEEFAL A EE (Jianxi University of Finance and Economics)
in 1982. In 1995, he received his Master’s degree in Economics at /&84
KE (Shanghai University of Finance and Economics). Professor WU does not
have any relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

The discloseable interest of Professor WU in the Shares and underlying Shares
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO is set out in the section headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” under the Directors’ Report of this report.
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Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi (& 7), aged 61
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr LEUNG was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the corporate governance committee on 1 October 2015. He is an
executive director of China Environmental Resources Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been working in Hang Lung Development
Ltd. for ten years and was primarily responsible for real estate development and
marketing in 1980s. From 1991 to 1995, Mr LEUNG was an executive director
of Top Glory International Holdings Ltd. (formerly known as World Trade
Centre Group Limited), a company which was listed on the Stock Exchange and
is now privatised and was an executive director of China Foods Limited (formerly
known as China Foods Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. From 1996 to 2001, he was an executive director of ITC, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr LEUNG has started his private investment
and private equity consultancy since 2002, which involves investment or
evaluation of various projects and sectors throughout the Greater China, Asia,
Europe and America. Mr LEUNG has over 29 years in real estate and business
experience in Hong Kong and the PRC focusing on property investment, project
evaluation, merger and acquisition, corporate finance and management. Mr
LEUNG holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr LEUNG does not have any relationships with any Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr LEUNG did not have any interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations under the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO.
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Senior Management
Mr ZHONG Hui Hong (§Z#&4T), aged 46
Chief Operating Officer and Vice President

Mr ZHONG joined the Group in February 2014 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company with effect from 1 October 2015. He is in
charge of the Group's investment development and urban redevelopment
affairs. Prior to joining the Group, he took up various positions including the
vice president of Shenzhen Agricultural Products Co., Ltd (&I 2E ®m%
AR/ R]) and served as the chairman of Shenzhen Southern Agricultural
Logistics Company (ZFYITF 5 2 E Y7 A 7)), Shenzhen Higreen Logistics
Company (FIITEE EYRE), Shenzhen Buji Agricultural Products Centre
Wholesale Market (FRYIT A E BE M L HLEETIS), Shenzhen Higreen
Environmental Co., Ltd (FYITEE £RR A 7)), Wuhan Higreen Company
(BUEHTRBE S £ 2 T), the officer of the old town redevelopment office
and the general manager of the planning and development department. Mr
ZHONG holds a Bachelor’s degree in Environmental Engineering and a Master’s
degree in Architectural and Civil Engineering. He also holds a professional title
of senior engineer — construction. Mr ZHONG does not have any relationships
with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Mr LUO Wen Jun (£&3218), aged 60
Vice President

Mr LUO joined the Group in May 2006 and was appointed as a vice president
of the Company in June 2009. Mr LUO is in charge of the retail and property
management division of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr LUO
possessed extensive experience in property development and business
administration. During the period between 1983 and 2001, he worked as
the deputy sector chief and assistant to the manager of H/EmRILE AR
RFFET B 1A% (Shanghai Zhabei District People’s Government Finance and
Trade Office), the general manager of /&M ¥ ¥ E &2 7] (Shanghai Xin Xin
Department Store), the general manager of Shanghai Mingpin Building, the
chairman of F/& 0B E (Shanghai Xin Zu Department Store), the managing
director of F/EBEXEHER AR (Shanghai Tomorrow Square Company
Limited) and the deputy general director of business construction of Shanghai
Train Station (/8838 ¥ % uh 8 22 3R pE R R B 4275 18). From 2002 to 2006,
he was the director and executive deputy general manager of /& &H A
AR A 7] (Shanghai Everbright Company Limited). In addition, Mr LUO was
elected as the vice chairman of the Federation of Industry and Commerce of
Zhonglou District of Changzhou and the representative to the National People’s
Congress of Zhonglou District of Changzhou respectively in 2011 and 2012. In
August 2012, he was appointed as the standing director of Jiangsu Hong Kong-
Invested Company Service Association (L&r&BERETEREHE). Mr
LUO completed a Business Management course at /&5 AE (Shanghai TV
University) in 1986. Mr LUO does not have any relationships with any Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Mr DING Xiang Hua (T %), aged 44
Vice President

Mr DING joined the Group in April 2014 and was appointed as a vice president
of the Company. He is in charge of the Group’s new business development
department. Prior to joining the Group, he took up various positions in China
Resources National Corp. (FRE#EH 4 /A a]), China Resources Enterprises
Limited (EBAIZEAR 2 7A]), China Resources Logic Limited (ZEBEEIZA
FR/A\]) as an executive human resources manager, project manager and
business manager etc. In 2002, Mr DING was appointed as the senior manager
of enterprise and development department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“China Resources Group”), the general manager of
information center of China Resources Group (ZE;E 5% {5 2.7 1)), the director
and assistant general manager of China Resources Investment Enterprise Ltd. (£
R EER AR AT, the managing director of China CONIC Import & Export
Co. Ltd. (P B N7 QAR A A, the general manager of China Resources
SZITIC investment Ltd. (Z2)F)XBI#%I% & BR /A 7)), and the director of the joint
venture company between China Resources Group and Wal-Mart China. Mr
DING has extensive working experience in company restructuring, mergers and
acquisitions, strategic planning and business management. Mr DING received
his Bachelor’s degree in Law from China University of Political Science and Law
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Hong
Kong. He is also a qualified solicitor in the PRC. Mr DING does not have any
relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr CHEUNG Koon Wan Johnson (3R 58 %), aged 58
Chief Architect

Mr CHEUNG joined the Group as the chief architect in February 2012 and is in
charge of the design and management department. Prior to joining the Group,
he gained his land development experience in Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, Chun Wo (China) Limited, Pacific Concord Holding Limited
and FEMRETEEEER AR 2], a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited and has extensive experience in project management. He
has obtained extensive experience in asset and facility management as well as
hospitality and gaming expertise through working as property operation and
project manager at the Hong Kong Jockey Club which operates two world
class racecourses and four clubhouses (three in HK and one in Beijing) as well
as hundreds of off-course betting centres. He also worked for China Light and
Power Limited (one of the two electrical utilities in Hong Kong). Mr CHEUNG
received his professional training in architecture through obtaining his B.Sc.
(Arch) and B.Arch. from McGill University in Canada and further pursued
professional surveying training through obtaining the Postgraduate Diploma in
General Practice Surveying and Master Degree in Real Estate from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr CHEUNG is a member of Royal Institute of British Architects,
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Hong Kong Institute of Architects
and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr CHEUNG does not have any
relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Ms LIU Qing (£1%), aged 47
Vice President

Ms LIU joined the Group in 2004 and was appointed as a vice president of the
Company in August 2014. In addition, she serves as a managing director of
Shenzhen New Top Spring Investment Fund Management Company Limited
CRIFBIORIER S EE AR AF]). Ms LIU is also the general manager of
the finance department of the Group and the director of several subsidiaries.
Ms LIU is in charge of the financial management, investment and fund
management in China. Prior to joining the Group, she took up positions
in Shenzhen International Trust and Investment Co., Ltd. (&II|BEER{Z5E%
&AHMPRAT), being the chief financial officer of Shenzhen SZITIC Property
Development Co., Ltd. (FIIFEIE Bt EMZEERA T and Shenzhen Water
Flower Property Co., Ltd. (RIIZKETEERE HEBR A 7). Ms LIU has extensive
working experience in real estate project developments and operations, group
control and financial investment and financing market. Ms LIU completed her
bachelor education in Accounting at Jinan University. Ms LIU does not have any
relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr CHAN King Tak (B %%&), aged 36
Chief Financial Officer

Mr CHAN joined the Group in April 2010 and was appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company in August 2014. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked for KPMG from April 2004 to November 2009 and served as an audit
manager providing audit and consulting services to clients listed in Hong Kong,
China and Singapore. He has extensive experience in accounting, auditing,
financial management, corporate financial, capital market and corporate
governance matters. Mr CHAN received his Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) degree in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. Besides, he
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr CHAN does
not have any relationships with any Directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Mr WONG Tak Chun (F&&), aged 35
Company Secretary and Head of Investor Relations

Mr WONG joined the Group as the company secretary and the head of investor
relations of the Company in February 2017. He is a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. He obtained
a bachelor degree in Economics from the University of British Columbia in 2005
and obtained a master degree in corporate governance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2014.

Mr WONG has more than twelve years of experience in accounting, corporate
governance, corporate finance, capital markets, and investor relations. He
worked as an assistant manager in KPMG from August 2005 to May 2010.
From May 2010 to June 2013, he served as the company secretary and finance
manager of Central China Real Estate Limited (stock code: 0832). He served
as the deputy chief financial officer since February 2014 and the company
secretary since April 2014 of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited (stock code:
1107) until January 2016. He served as the company secretary and the chief
financial officer of Helidongsheng International Logistic Company Limited*
(A~ AR REXGMR /A F]) in Hunan, the PRC, from March 2016 to
February 2017. Since 17 January 2017, Mr WONG has been appointed as the
independent non-executive director of Dadi Education Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8417).

Mr WONG does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is a
real estate property developer in the PRC and is specialised in the development
and operation of urban mixed-use communities, and the development and sale
of residential properties in the Pearl River Delta, the Yangtze River Delta, the
Central China, the Beijing-Tianjin and the Chengdu-Chongging regions in the
PRC. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 13
to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included
in the sections of Chairman’s Statement, and Management Discussion and
Analysis of this report, respectively. The future development of the Group's
business is discussed in the section of the Chairman’s Statement of this
report. In addition, further details regarding the Group’s principal risks and
uncertainties are included in the section of the Corporate Governance Report
of this report. The sections of the Chairman’s Statement, the Management
Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report form part of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the financial
position of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 152 to 272 of this report. The Board has recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK22 cents per Share attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the holders of PCSs for the year ended
31 December 2016 (for the year ended 31 December 2015: HK22 cents) to
Shareholders and holders of PCSs whose names appear on the register of
members or the register of holders of PCSs of the Company on Friday, 9 June
2017. Upon approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 23 May 2017 (“AGM"), it is
expected that the final dividend will be payable on or around Friday, 16 June
2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND
REGISTER OF HOLDERS OF THE PCSs

For the purposes of determining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend
and vote at the AGM and their entitlements to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members and the register of holders of the PCSs of the Company
will be closed as set out below:

(i)

For determining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM or any adjournment of such meeting:

The register of members and the register of holders of the PCSs of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 18 May 2017 to Tuesday, 23 May
2017 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of the Shares
and PCSs will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM or any
adjournment of such meeting, (a) in the case of the Shares, all transfers
of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 May 2017; and (b) in the case
of the PCSs, the notice of conversion in prescribed form, together with
the relevant certificate of the PCSs and confirmation that any amounts
required to be paid by the holder of the PCSs have been so paid, must
be duly completed, executed and deposited with the Company at Rooms
04-08, 26th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 May 2017.

The record date for such purposes is Tuesday, 23 May 2017.
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(i)  For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders and the holders of
PCSs to the proposed final dividend:

The register of members and the register of holders of the PCSs of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 6 June 2017 to Friday, 9 June
2017 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of the Shares
and PCSs will be effected.

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, (a) in the case of
the Shares, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong Share Registrar at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 June 2017; and (b) in the case of the PCSs, all
transfers of the PCSs accompanied by the relevant certificate of the PCSs
must be lodged with the Company at Rooms 04-08, 26th Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 29 May 2017.

The record date for such purposes is Friday, 9 June 2017.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 273 to 276 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements,
respectively. Further details of the Group’s major investment properties are set
out in the section of Management Discussion and Analysis of this report.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Details of the properties under development for sale of the Group during the
year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. Further details of the
Group's major properties under development for sale are set out in the section
of Management Discussion and Analysis of this report.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Details of the completed properties for sale of the Group during the year are set
out in note 17 to the financial statements. Further details of the Group’s major
completed properties held for sale are set out in the section of Management
Discussion and Analysis of this report.
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LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE

Details of the leasehold land held for development for sale of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. Further details of the
Group's major leasehold properties held for development for sale are set out in
the section of Management Discussion and Analysis of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders and the holders of PCSs of
the Company, as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and the Company’s memorandum and articles of association,
was HK$1,678,623,000 (2015: HK$2,264,226,000). Under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to Shareholders and holders of PCSs subject to the provisions of
its memorandum and articles of association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Articles
of Association, dividends shall be distributed out of the retained profits or other
reserves, including share premium and contributed surplus, of the Company.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“KP1")

(a) Contracted sales

Definition and calculation: Contracted sales measures the sale
performance of the Group’s properties and car park units by
multiplying the contracted saleable GFA with the contracted ASP.

Purpose: The Group monitors its product mix to be launched for
sale on the basis of the contracted saleable GFA and the contracted
ASP. The contracted saleable GFA and the contracted ASP provide
direction for the Group to determine its sale strategies in the
forthcoming year. The extent to which this objective has been
achieved is assessed by comparing the Group’s actual contracted
sales to the contracted sales target, as it is an indicator showing the
Group's achievement in its sales planning.

Quantified KPI data: The contracted sales, contracted saleable GFA
and contracted ASP was approximately HK$4,048.3 million, 187,383
sg.m. and HK$20,797.5 per sq.m., respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: approximately HK$8,015.3 million,
396,453 sq.m. and HK$19,736.0 per sq.m.).

(b) Gross profit margin

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin measures the
profitability that the Group generates from its revenue by comparing
the revenue net of direct costs as a percentage of the revenue. It
indicates the financial success and viability of the Group’s principal
business.

Purpose: The Group aims to enhance its gross profit margin. The
extent to which this objective has been achieved is assessed by
comparing the Group’s gross profit margin from one year to the
next, as it is an indicator showing the Group’s profitability.

Quantified KPI data: The gross profit margin was approximately
18.2% for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately
30.4%).
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(c)

(d)

Profit for the year

Definition and calculation: Net profit measures the revenue derived
from the Group's business, less all expenses and taxes. It indicates
the Group’s earnings from its business operations and other related
activities.

Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The net profit provides
direction for a better control and utilisation of expenses. The extent
to which this objective has been achieved is assessed by comparing
the Group's net profit from one year to the next, as it is an indicator
showing the Group's earnings from its business operations and other
related activities.

Quantified KPI data: The net profit was approximately HK$903.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$1,053.8 million).

Net gearing ratio

Definition and calculation: Net gearing ratio measures the financial
leverage of the Group by comparing the total borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents, and restricted and pledged deposits as a
percentage of total equity. It indicates the proportion of equity and
debt the Group has been using to finance its assets.

Purpose: The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net gearing ratio. The net gearing ratio provides direction for the
Group to optimise its financing and business development activities.
The extent to which this objective has been achieved is assessed by
comparing the Group's net gearing ratio from one year to the next, as
it is an indicator showing the Group's level of leverage.

Quantified KPI data: The net gearing ratio was approximately 43.3%
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 72.5%).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$5,235,000 (2015: HK$15,425,000).
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(2)

Issue of convertible bonds

On 28 December 2015, the Company entered into the second tranche
subscription agreement (“Second Tranche Agreement”) with Lord
Business Holding IV Limited and Caiyun (collectively, the “Second
Tranche Investors”), pursuant to which, on the terms and subject to the
conditions of the Second Tranche Agreement, the Company has agreed
to issue, and the Second Tranche Investors have agreed to subscribe and
pay for, 6.00% secured convertible bonds due 2019 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$100 million (the “Second Tranche Bonds”). The
Second Tranche Bonds will be consolidated and form a single series with
the first tranche bonds. The new shares to be allotted and issued upon
conversion of the Second Tranche Bonds will be allotted and issued by the
Company pursuant to a specific mandate granted to the Directors. The
ordinary resolutions proposed at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 14 March 2016 were duly passed by way of poll.

Caiyun, being one of the Second Tranche Investors, is an associate of
YMCI, a substantial shareholder of the Company, by virtue of it being a
wholly-owned subsidiary of YMCI and hence a connected person of the
Company. The entering into of the Second Tranche Agreement by Caiyun
constituted a connected transaction for the Company, and is subject to
the announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the issue of convertible bonds were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 December 2015 and circular of the Company dated
26 February 2016.

Deemed disposal and formation of joint venture

On 5 December 2016, FINFHHRIREE S EIE AR A7) (Shenzhen
New Top Spring Investment Fund Management Company Limited*)
(“Shenzhen New Top Spring”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a capital increase agreement
("Capital Increase Agreement”), pursuant to which, (i) Shenzhen
New Top Spring agreed to make an additional capital contribution in the
amount of RMB 14,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,187,000)
in cash; (i) EEMEEAEIEABR 27 (Yunnan Rongzhi Capital
Management Company Limited*) (“Yunnan Rongzhi”) agreed to make
a capital contribution in the amount of RMB14,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$16,187,000) in cash; and (iii) an independent
third party agreed to make a capital contribution in the amount of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,600,000) in cash,
to the registered capital of JRJIFIEFNFRRIER EESERERAA
(Shenzhen Qianhai New Top Spring Equity Investment Fund Management
Company Limited*).

Yunnan Rongzhi is a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of YMCI.
Caiyun and Yunnan Rongzhi are fellow subsidiaries of YMCI. Therefore,
Yunnan Rongzhi is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The entering into of the Capital Increase Agreement constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company, and is subject to the annual
reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt from the
circular (including independent financial advice) and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further
details of the deemed disposal and the formation of joint venture were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5 December 2016.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Framework loan agreement and framework property
management service agreement

On 10 September 2014, Nanchang Top Spring entered into (i) a framework
loan agreement with ;&I KB EILEZEGR A 7] (Shenzhen Top Spring
Ding Sheng Investment Development Co. Ltd.*) (“Shenzhen Top Spring”),
Top Spring Insite Commercial Property Holdings Limited (“Top Spring Insite”)
and Metro Shanghai, pursuant to which Nanchang Top Spring, agreed to
provide, at its sole discretion, the respective loans to Shenzhen Top Spring, Top
Spring Insite and Metro Shanghai or their respective designated company based
on the same terms and conditions and in proportion to their respective equity
interests in Nanchang Top Spring (the “Framework Loan Agreement”); and (ii)
a property management service framework agreement with &M T 2S5 9% AR
AR 2 7] (Changzhou Top Spring Property Services Co. Ltd.*) (“Changzhou
Top Spring”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to which Changzhou Top Spring agreed to provide property management
services to Nanchang Top Spring in relation to the property development
projects of Nanchang Top Spring in Nanchang of the PRC (the “Framework

Property Management Service Agreement”).

As Nanchang Top Spring is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in which the Company indirectly owns 70% of the equity interests
and Metro, a substantial shareholder of the Company, indirectly owns 30% of
the equity interest through Metro Shanghai, and is a connected person of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. The provision of the loans
by Nanchang Top Spring to Metro Shanghai (or its designated company) under
the Framework Loan Agreement and the provision of property management
services by Changzhou Top Spring to Nanchang Top Spring under the
Framework Property Management Service Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company (“CCTs"”) under the Listing Rules.

The maximum aggregate annual caps (the “Annual Caps”) approved by the
independent Shareholders or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
aggregate annual transaction value of the CCTs actually recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out below:

FELR
(AR¥F )
BE=-ZE—XxE—H—H
BEZE—RE
+=A=+—HLt
Annual Caps
(RMB’000)

Actual Transaction From 1 January 2016
Amount (RMB’000) to 31 December 2016

(AR%F )

330,000 450,000

9,026 10,000
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio is more than 5%, the provision
of the loans by Nanchang Top Spring to Metro Shanghai (or its designated
company) under the Framework Loan Agreement is subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the highest applicable
percentage ratio is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the provision of property
management services by Changzhou Top Spring to Nanchang Top Spring under
the Framework Property Management Service Agreement is subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but is exempt from
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Framework Loan Agreement and Framework Property
Management Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 September 2014 and circular dated 3 October 2014.

Upon reviewing the CCTs and the report of the auditor of the Company, each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in accordance with
the Listing Rules 14A.55 that the CCTs have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the relevant CCT
and on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the CCTs in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance with the Listing Rule 14A.56.
The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding the CCTs, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

(i)  the CCTs have not been approved by the Board;
(i)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group,
such transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the

pricing policies of the Group;

(i) the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing respective CCTs; and

(iv) the aggregate amount of each of the CCTs has exceeded the Annual
Caps.
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BEZZ—"F+-A=1+—HBIFE - &"&E For the year ended 31 December 2016, sales to the Group's five largest

IAREPHBERIEAREFERALI A%
MEREFPHHERANEAREFERAL
0.3% °

customers accounted for approximately 1.1% of the Group's revenue for the
year and sales to the largest customer amounted to approximately 0.3% of the
Group's revenue for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 42.9% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier amounted to approximately
11.1% of the Group'’s purchases for the year.

HE-Z-—RE+-A=1+—HIEE K&
ERAHEENREBEEAEEFTFERBEY
42.9% @ MEAEEENEERAGAEEFE
PRIEFEAI11.1% °

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and

BMEESRFEFNTAIETHRA LSRR
(REERAM  RARREHTRATEE BB
5% Em) N AEBEAAREF LEEHES

EfTiEas -

S
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suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

ZEBH

Date of
appointment

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

BEAH
Date of
resignation

HITES Executive Directors
EEREAE(ERETR Mr WONG Chun Hong (Chairman and 25 August 2009 N/A
BEFEITEUAEEL) (P FET) Co-chief Executive Officer) (Note 1) —ETNE TiEA
NA-+EH
£ e Ms LI Yan Jie 25 August 2009 N/A
—EENF A
NA=-+EH
PR EI5 5t A4 (BB 1TIARE,)  Mr CHEN Feng Yang (Co-chief Executive Officer) 1 June 2013 N/A
—E—=F"A—H TERA
TRtIEE Mr WANG Tian Ye 1 October 2015 N/A
—E—RF+A—H TiEA
FHITES Non-executive Directors
HFELRE(BER) Mr XU Lei (Vice-Chairman) 1 October 2015 N/A
—E—RF+A—H i A
BRI S A Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence 1 July 2014 N/A
—E-NFLA—H TiEA
T EEAE(FE2) Mr LEE Sai Kai David (Note 2) 25 August 2009 1 September 2016
—TThF —E—R"FhA—H
NAZ+HH
BYFHITES Independent non-executive Directors
BROOKE Charles Nicholas Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas(Note 3) 30 November 2010 2 December 2016
Fe A (FfFE3) —E-FF T RF+-AZAH
+—A=+H
BRERANSE A& Mr CHENG Yuk Wo 30 November 2010 N/A
—T-TF NEA
+—A=+H
SOMREIR Professor WU Si Zong 30 November 2010 N/A
—E-TF TiEA
+—A=+H
REA A (H5T4) Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi (Note 4) 1 October 2015 N/A
—E-hF+A—H TNEA
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Notes:

(1) Mr WONG Chun Hong ceased to act as an authorised representative of the Company
with effect from 18 January 2016.

(2)  Mr LEE Sai Kai David ceased to be a non-executive Director with effect from 1 September
2016.

3) Mr BROOKE Charles Nicholas ceased to be an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the audit committee with effect from 2 December 2016.

(4)  Mr LEUNG Kwong Choi was appointed as a member of the audit committee with effect
from 2 December 2016.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between persons
who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

By virtue of Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr CHEN Feng Yang,
Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence and Mr CHENG Yuk Wo will retire from office
and, being eligible, will offer himself/herself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that, as at the date of this report, all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out in the section of Biography of Directors and Senior Management.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and based on the confirmations from
the Directors, save as disclosed below, there has been no change in the
information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B
of the Listing Rules since the Company'’s last published annual report:

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Imagi International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
on 28 January 2016. He has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Somerley Capital Limited and Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
on 9 March 2017 and 19 December 2016, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract or
appointment letter (as the case may be) which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, performance and contributions of the Directors and also the change
in market conditions.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, there is no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of the
financial year under review in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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Name of Director

BERHIBRED (T2
Mr WONG Chun Hong
("Mr WONG") (Note 2)

FWELT((Fat])(HH3)
Ms LI Yan Jie (“Ms LI") (Note 3)

REBEE(REE]) (M)
Mr CHEN Feng Yang
("Mr CHEN") (Note 4)

TROAE(ERE] (HIFS)
Mr WANG Tian Ye
("Mr WANG") (Note 5)

BEI ([ BEE]) (i)
Mr CHIANG Kok Sung Lawrence
("Mr CHIANG") (Note 6)

BEmiE(TmEE]) (Ki7)
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo
("Mr CHENG") (Note 7)

RBRAE ([ RHB]) (MizE8)
Professor WU Si Zong
("Professor WU") (Note 8)

Type of interest

REEE R

Interest in a controlled
corporation

LRI A

Settlor of a trust

EREAA

Beneficial owner

EanfBA

Beneficial owner

EafBA

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

EafBA

Beneficial owner

BB

Beneficial owner

e}

THEAA

eneficial owner

oo\

REEREEERAR
ZT—NFIR

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares of the

Company

BERASE
()
(a)

Number of
Shares held
(Shares)

()

148,500

295,593,500

2,805,600

110,000

1,890,000

BRBRENE

(R)
(b)

Number of

Share options

held (Shares)
(b)

1,400,000

13,120,000

15,634,000

10,000,000

1,000,000

1,420,000

1,420,000

BEXATE
RESHA
(&)

()

Number of
PCSs held
(Shares)
(0

238,552,800

FERGR
HRRGAR
(Kt=£1)

(a) +(b) + (c)
Total number
of Shares and
underlying
Shares held
(Note 1)
(a)+(b)+(c)

148,5008 4% 17 (L)
148,500 Shares (L)

L
L
L
L

534,146,3008% A5 (7
534,146,300 Shares
1,400,00088 A5 {7
1,400,000 Shares

13,120,000 & {7 (L)
13,120,000 Shares (L)

18,439,6008% & 17 (L)
18,439,600 Shares (L)

10,110,0008% k& 17 (L)
10,110,000 Shares (L)

2,890,000 17 (L)
2,890,000 Shares (L)

1,420,000 813 (L)
1,420,000 Shares (L)

1,420,000 81 (L)
1,420,000 Shares (L)

EERTRE
BREDL
(%)

Approximate
percentage of
issued Shares

(%)

0.01

4512

0.12

1.1

0.85

0.24

0.12
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Notes:

(N

2)

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in the Shares or underlying
Shares.

Kang Jun Limited ("Kang Jun”) is wholly-owned by Mr WONG. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr WONG is deemed to be interested in 148,500 Shares held by Kang Jun.
Chance Again is wholly-owned by BVI Co. The entire issued share capital of BVI Co
is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Wong Family
Trust and the beneficiaries of which include Mr WONG's family members. Mr
WONG is the settlor and the protector of the WONG Family Trust. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr WONG is deemed to be interested in 295,593,500 Shares held by Chance
Again and 238,552,800 underlying Shares in relation to the PCSs held by Chance
Again, and Mr WONG's long position of 1,400,000 options granted to him by the
Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 1). These share options,
all of which remained exercisable as at 31 December 2016, were exercisable at the
subscription price of HK$2.264 per Share during the period from 26 June 2013 to
25 June 2022.

Ms LI’s long position in the underlying Shares comprises (i) 420,000 options
granted to her by the Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 1),
(i) 2,700,000 options granted to her by the Company under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (Lot 2) and (iii) 10,000,000 options granted to her by the Company
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 3). These share options, all of which
remained exercisable as at 31 December 2016, were exercisable as to (i) 420,000
share options (Lot 1) at the subscription price of HK$2.264 per Share during the
period from 26 June 2013 to 25 June 2022, (i) 2,700,000 share options (Lot 2) at
the subscription price of HK$4.140 per Share during the period from 20 June 2014
to 19 June 2023, and (iii) 10,000,000 share options (Lot 3) at the subscription price
of HK$3.300 per Share during the period from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025.
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Mr CHEN's long position in the Shares and underlying Shares comprises (i) 1,512,000
Shares beneficially owned by himself, (i) 1,293,600 Shares granted to him by the
Company under the Share Award Scheme, (iii) 3,234,000 options granted to him
by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, (iv) 12,400,000 options
granted to him by the Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Schemes, which
comprises (a) 1,400,000 options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
(Lot 1), and (b) 1,000,000 options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme (Lot 2) and (c) 10,000,000 options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (Lot 3). These share options, all of which remained exercisable as
at 31 December 2016, were exercisable as to (i) 3,234,000 share options (Pre-IPO)
at the subscription price of HK$1.780 per Share during the period from 23 March
2012 to 2 December 2020, (ii) 1,400,000 share options (Lot 1) at the subscriptions
price of HK$2.264 per Share during the period from 26 June 2013 to 25 June
2022, (iii) 1,000,000 share options (Lot 2) at the subscription price of HK$4.140 per
Share during the period from 20 June 2014 to 19 June 2023, and (iv) 10,000,000
share options (Lot 3) at the subscription price of HK$3.300 per Share during the
period from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025.

Mr WANG's long position in the Shares and underlying Shares comprises (i)
110,000 Shares beneficially owned by himself, and (ii) 10,000,000 options granted
to him by the Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 5). These
share options, all of which remained exercisable as at 31 December 2016, were
exercisable at the subscription price of HK$3.45 per Share during the period from
23 October 2016 to 22 October 2025.

Mr CHIANG's long position in the Shares and underlying shares comprises (i)
1,890,000 Shares beneficially owned by himself, and (i) 1,000,000 options granted
to him by the Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 3). These
share options, all of which remained exercisable as at 31 December 2016, were
exercisable at the subscription price of HK$3.300 per Share during the period from
28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025.

Mr CHENG's long position in the underlying Shares comprises (i) 420,000 options
granted to him by the Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot
1) and (i) 1,000,000 options granted to him by the Company under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 3). These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 31 December 2016, were exercisable as to (i) 420,000 share
options (Lot 1) at the subscription price of HK$2.264 per Share during the period
from 26 June 2013 to 25 June 2022 and (i) 1,000,000 Share options (Lot 3) at the
subscription price of HK$3.300 per Share during the period from 28 April 2016 to
27 April 2025.
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(8) Professor WU's long position in the underlying Shares comprises (i) 420,000
options granted to him by the Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
(Lot 1) and (ii) 1,000,000 options granted to him by the Company under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 3). These share options, all of which remained
exercisable as at 31 December 2016, were exercisable as to (i) 420,000 share
options (Lot 1) at the subscription price of HK$2.264 per Share during the period
from 26 June 2013 to 25 June 2022, and (i) 1,000,000 Share options (Lot 3) at the
subscription price of HK$3.300 per Share during the period from 28 April 2016 to
27 April 2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors in the
business which is considered to compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Mr XU Lei, a non-executive Director, is the chairman of the board of Yunnan
Metropolitan, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and engaged
in real estate development in the PRC, and is therefore considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, Yunnan Metropolitan mainly operates in the Central-Western China
region including Yunnan province, Sichuan province, and Shaanxi province in
the PRC.
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The Board considered that the business of Yunnan Metropolitan does not pose
material competitive threat to the Group due to the following reasons:

1. Asthe Group's business focuses in the Pearl River Delta, the Yangtze River
Delta, the Central China, Beijing-Tianjin and Chengdu-Chongging regions
in the PRC, the Directors consider that Yunnan Metropolitan and the
Group target at different regions of the PRC for their businesses.

2. The Board is independent from the board of directors of Yunnan
Metropolitan and Mr XU Lei does not control the Board. The Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently from, and at arm’s
length from, the businesses of Yunnan Metropolitan.

Each of the Directors is aware of his/her fiduciary duties as a Director which
require, among other things, that he/she acts for the benefit and in the best
interests of the Company and avoids any conflicts between his/her duties as a
Director and his/her personal interest.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors are considered to have interests
in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of their
office or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any of the Directors.

The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’ liability insurance
during the year under review and as at the date of this report, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme on 2 December 2010 under which the Company granted share options
and awarded Shares to certain eligible employees. During the year ended 31
December 2016, 1,502,666 Pre-IPO share options had been exercised by the
grantees and a total number of 14,832 share options had been lapsed upon the
resignation of certain grantees. Upon completion of the Bonus Issue on 20 June
2013, adjustment was made to the number of the share options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme in which 9,478,516 share options were additionally
granted to the holders of the share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. As a result, 11,494,096 share options (representing approximately
0.97% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report)
were outstanding as at 31 December 2016 under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The Company has also adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 28 February 2011 for the purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contribution that eligible employees have made or may make to the Group. On
26 June 2012, 20 June 2013, 28 April 2015, 8 September 2015, 23 October
2015 and 5 December 2016, the Group granted 15,720,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 1), 14,000,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 2), 82,650,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 3), 3,000,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 4), 10,000,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 5) and 31,000,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 6), respectively, at the exercise
price of HK$2.264 per Share (adjusted), HK$4.14 per Share, HK$3.3 per Share,
HK$3.65 per Share, HK$3.45 per Share and HK$2.796 per share, respectively,
to certain Directors, senior management and selected employees of the Group.
Upon completion of the Bonus Issue on 20 June 2013, adjustment was made
to the number of the share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
(Lot 1) in which 5,808,000 share options were additionally granted to the
holders of Lot 1 under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, a total number of 840,000 Post-IPO share options
had been exercised by the grantees and 6,210,000 Post-IPO shares options
had been lapsed upon resignation of grantees. As a result, 126,553,500 share
options (representing approximately 10.69% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report) were outstanding as at 31 December
2016 under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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BEZZ—XRNET-A=1+—HILEE ' WAKIE  Movement of the outstanding share options under the Pre-IPO and Post-IPO
BEAAREREN R E A AR ESERESZ]  Share Option Schemes for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:
AT BRSBTS

B BT By BAM
B B B B
TEE Share Share Share Share

Exercise options options options options 31 December
price granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2016
BT

EPNGE::] Pre-IPO 1.78 13,011,594 - 1,502,666 - 14,832 11,494,096

BRRAZEE  PostIPO

FHt Lot 1 2264 12,103,500 - 840,000 - 420,000 10,843,500
FHt Lot 2 414 8,150,000 - - - 300,000 7,850,000
F=#t Lot 3 33 69,650,000 - - - 4,790,000 64,860,000
E e Lot 4 365 2,700,000 - - - 700,000 2,000,000
FRf Lot 5 345 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
FAH Lot 6 2.7% - 31,000,000 - - - 31,000,000
g Sub-total 102,603,500 31,000,000 840,000 - 6,210,000 126,553,500

w@st Total 115,615,094 31,000,000 2,342,666 6,224,832 138,047,596
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(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

Purpose and Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
December 2010 to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that certain of its employees or employees of companies in which
the Group holds an interests (excluding the subsidiaries of the
Group) (“Invested Entities”) have made or may make to the
Group.

Implementation

On 3 December 2010, options to subscribe for a total of 34,371,667
Shares were granted to 98 employees of the Group and an Invested
Entity (“Selected Grantees”) under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1,502,666
Shares options had been exercised by the grantees and a total of
14,832 Shares options had been lapsed upon the resignation of
certain grantees. As at 31 December 2016, there were options
to subscribe for a total of 11,494,096 Shares (representing
approximately 0.97% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this report) granted to 50 Selected Grantees under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and remained outstanding (“Pre-
IPO Options”). Further details of the options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and remained outstanding at the end
of the year under review are set out in note 27(a) to the financial
statements.

The Pre-IPO Options were transferred to Great Canyon Investment
Limited, a special purpose vehicle incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands under the share option trust (“Share Option Trust”) which
holds the Pre-IPO Options on trust for the benefit of the Selected
Grantees prior to the vesting of the Pre-IPO Options in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and instrument constituting the Share Option Trust. For the
implementation of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Trust was established on 3 December 2010 for the benefit
of the Selected Grantees and HSBC Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited
("HSBC Trustee”) acts as the trustee thereof.

All the Pre-IPO Options were granted at a consideration of HK$1.00
paid by each Selected Grantee and no further options will be
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on or after the
Listing Date.
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below, the Pre-IPO Options are to be exercised on or after the
Listing Date and are subject to a vesting period of three years
commencing from the Listing Date during which 30% of the
total Pre-IPO Options granted to a Selected Grantee will vest
on each of the first and second anniversary dates of the Listing
Date and 40% of the total Pre-IPO Options granted to such
Selected Grantee will vest on the third anniversary date of the
Listing Date.

Notwithstanding the paragraph above, unless it is provided for
in the employment contract with the relevant Selected Grantee
and/or written documents for granting an offer, any Pre-IPO
Option granted to a Selected Grantee whose employment
with the Group or an Invested Entity is less than one year as
at the Listing Date shall be subject to the vesting period of
three years from the first anniversary date of the employment
commencement date of such Selected Grantee, during which
30% of the total Pre-IPO Options granted to such Selected
Grantee will vest on each of the second and third anniversary
dates of the employment commencement date and 40% of
the total Pre-IPO Options granted to such Selected Grantee
will vest on the fourth anniversary date of the employment
commencement date.

Any vesting date of a Selected Grantee is subject to
postponement of one year in the event that the performance
appraisal of such Selected Grantee is rated at the lowest range
for two consecutive years. Notwithstanding the postponement
of the vesting date, the vesting period shall remain as a period
of three years from the Listing Date or, as the case may be, the
first anniversary date of the employment commencement date,
and any Pre-IPO Option granted to a Selected Grantee but not
vested at the end of the vesting period shall be deemed to
have been surrendered by such Selected Grantee forthwith.

The Pre-IPO Options will become exercisable for a period to be
notified by the Advisory Committee to each Selected Grantee
and will not be more than 10 years from the date on which the
Pre-IPO Option is deemed to have been granted in the manner
as stipulated in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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(iv) Exercise price of the Pre-IPO Options

(v)

The exercise price payable upon the exercise of any Pre-IPO Options
is at HK$2.492 per Share, subject to any adjustment made in the
manner as contemplated under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Upon completion of the Bonus Issue on 20 June 2013, the exercise
price of Pre-IPO Options was adjusted to HK$1.780 per Share.

Other material terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to those of
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme except in respect of the following
material terms:

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is not conditional upon
listing of Shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and is not subject to any other conditions;

the provisions on the granting of options to connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) were not included; and

the Advisory Committee may only grant options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on a business day (as
defined in the Listing Rules) during a period commencing on 2
December 2010 and before the Listing Date. No further options
(other than options to subscribe for a total of 34,371,667
Shares already granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, of which 11,494,096 options remained outstanding as
at 31 December 2016) will be offered under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and accordingly, the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme does not contain provision relating to the “refreshing”
of the 10% limit or the seeking of separate approval for
granting options beyond the 10% limit as anticipated in Note
1 of Rule 17.03(3) of the Listing Rules, or the restrictions on
the number of shares issued or to be issued under options in
any 12-month period to any participant of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme not exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as
anticipated in the Note to Rule 17.03(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 28
February 2011 to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph (ii) below) have made or
may make to the Group.

Participants of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in
which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(“Affiliate"”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially and wholly-owned by any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate
(“Eligible Persons”).

Subscription price of Shares

The subscription price for any Share under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Board and notified to
each grantee and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option, which must
be a business day as defined in the Listing Rules; (i) an amount
equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of grant
of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. The
subscription price shall also be subject to any adjustments made in a
situation contemplated under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes involving the issue or grant of options or similar rights over
Shares or other securities by the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (subject to adjustment under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme) unless Shareholders” approval has been obtained.
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(v)

Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and in compliance
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the Company may refresh
the scheme mandate limit under the Post-IPO Option Scheme
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at a general meeting
provided that the number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Schemes and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of approval of such refreshment by Shareholders in
general meeting. At the 2016 AGM, the scheme mandate limit was
refreshed pursuant to which Directors are authorised to grant share
options according to the Post-IPO Option Scheme to subscribe for up
to 118,377,577 Shares.

Upon such refreshment, all options granted under the Share Option
Schemes and any other option schemes of the Company (including
those exercised, outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Schemes or any other share option
schemes of the Company) prior to the approval of such refreshment
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating whether the
refreshed scheme mandate limit has been exceeded.

Notwithstanding the above, pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Listing Rules, the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Schemes
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
share options shall be granted under any share option schemes of
the Company (including the Share Option Schemes) if this will result
in the 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

No option may be granted to any Eligible Person which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options already granted or to be
granted to such Eligible Person under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such new grant exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of such new grant. Any grant of further
share options above this limit shall be subject to certain requirements
provided under the Listing Rules.

Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive (as defined in
the Listing Rules) or substantial Shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(but excluding, for all purposes, any independent non-executive
Director who is a proposed grantee).
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Where any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
would result in the total number of the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of the grant:

(@) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such further grant of options must be approved by the Shareholders.

Time of exercise of the Options

Subject to certain restrictions contained in the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, an option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and the terms of grant thereof
at any time during the applicable option period, which is not more
than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Eligible Person to the Company on
acceptance of the option offered as consideration for the grant. The
offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 business
days from the date of offer.

(viii) Remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of
10 years commencing on the effective date of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, that is 22 March 2011, after which no further
options will be issued but the provisions of the Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme.
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(ix) Present status of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 26 June 2012, 20 June 2013, 28 April 2015, 8 September
2015, 23 October 2015 and 5 December 2016, the Group granted
15,720,000 share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
(Lot 1), 14,000,000 share options under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme (Lot 2), 82,650,000 share options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (Lot 3), 3,000,000 share options under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (Lot 4), 10,000,000 share options under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 5) and 31,000,000 share options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Lot 6), respectively, at
the exercise price of HK$2.264 per Share (adjusted), HK$4.14
per Share, HK$3.3 per Share, HK$3.65 per Share, HK$3.45 per
Share and HK$2.796 per Share, respectively, to certain Directors,
senior management and selected employees of the Group. Upon
completion of the Bonus Issue on 20 June 2013, adjustment was
made to the number of the share options under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (Lot 1) in which 5,808,000 share options were
additionally granted to the holders of Lot 1 under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the exercise price was adjusted to HK$2.264.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, a total number of
840,000 Post-IPO share options had been exercised by the grantees
and 6,210,000 Post-IPO shares options had been lapsed upon
resignation of grantees. As a result, 126,553,500 share options
(representing approximately 10.69% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report) were outstanding as at
31 December 2016 under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds agreements entered into during the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out below:

On 28 December 2015, the Company entered into the First Tranche
Subscription Agreement (the “First Tranche Agreement”) with the first
tranche investors pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to issue,
and the first tranche investors have agreed to subscribe and pay for, the
first tranche bonds in the aggregate principal amount of US$100 million.
Assuming full conversion of the first tranche bonds at the initial conversion
price of HK$3.8298 per Share, the first tranche bonds will be convertible
into 202,478,518 Shares (subject to adjustment). Details of the conditions
precedent under the First Tranche Agreement are set out from pages 4 to
6 of the announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2015. All
conditions precedent had been satisfied and the completion of the First Tranche
Agreement took place on 6 January 2016. The Company received from the
first tranche investors the aggregate principal amount of US$100 million and
the first tranche bonds in the aggregate principal amount of US$100 million
were issued to the first tranche investors on 6 January 2016. As at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, no conversion rights in respect
of the first tranche bonds had been exercised. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2015.

On 28 December 2015, the Company entered into the Second Tranche
Agreement with the Second Tranche Investors pursuant to which, the Company
has agreed to issue, and the Second Tranche Investors have agreed to subscribe
and pay for, the Second Tranche Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
US$100 million. Assuming full conversion of the Second Tranche Bonds at the
initial conversion price of HK$3.8298 per Share, the Second Tranche Bonds will
be convertible into 202,478,518 Shares (subject to adjustment). Details of the
conditions precedent under the Second Tranche Agreement are set out from
pages 6 to 8 of the announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2015.
All conditions precedent had been satisfied and the completion of the Second
Tranche Agreement took place on 21 March 2016. The Company received from
the Second Tranche Investors the aggregate principal amount of US$100 million
and the Second Tranche Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of US$100
million were issued to the Second Tranche Investors on 21 March 2016. As at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, no conversion rights
in respect of the Second Tranche Bonds had been exercised. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement and circular dated 29 December 2015
and 26 February 2016, respectively.

The Directors considered that the issue of the first tranche bonds and the
Second Tranche Bonds represented an opportunity to broaden the capital base
of the Company and to gain immediate access to funding on attractive terms.
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PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES (“PCSs")

Details of the deed poll in relation to the bonus issue of the PCSs subsisting at
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below:

On 20 June 2013, the Company executed the deed poll in relation to the
bonus issue of HK$25,092,080 PCSs. The bonus PCSs will be irredeemable
but will have conversion rights entitling the bonus PCS holders to convert into
an aggregate of 250,920,800 Shares (subject to adjustment). The conditions
precedent of the bonus issue of the PCSs are set out on page 9 of the
Company’s announcement dated 27 March 2013. All the conditions precedent
of the issue of the PCSs had been fulfilled on 20 June 2013. As at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, HK$1,236,800 PCSs had been
converted into 12,368,000 Shares, and there were HK$23,855,280 outstanding
PCSs which will be convertible into 238,552,800 Shares (subject to adjustment).
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27 March
2013.

The Directors considered that the bonus issue of the PCSs was a feasible and
practical solution to restore the minimum public float of the Shares.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(i) Purpose and Participants of the Share Award Scheme
The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 2 December
2010 to recognise and acknowledge the contributions of certain of its
employees or employees of the Invested Entities, especially those whom
the Company considers have contributed to the early development
and growth of the Group and to align their interests with those of the
Shareholders.
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(ii)

(iii)

Implementation

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, a total of 35 employees of the
Group and the Invested Entity (“Selected Employees”) were awarded
6,452,000 Shares (after the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 11 March 2011 (the “Prospectus”)))
(“Awarded Shares”). None of the Awarded Shares was awarded to
the Directors. On 3 December 2010, 2,024 Shares were contributed
and transferred by Chance Again to the Selected Employees which were
immediately transferred to Marble World Holdings Limited (“Marble
World”), a special purpose vehicle incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands under the Share Award Trust which holds such Shares and will
hold further Shares to be issued to it pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue
on trust for the benefit of the Selected Employees prior to the vesting of
the Awarded Shares in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Share Award Scheme and instrument constituting a trust of which HSBC
Trustee acts as the trustee and the beneficiary objects include employees
of the Group and the Invested Entities as grantees under the Share Award
Scheme (“Share Award Trust”). For the implementation of the Share
Award Scheme, the Share Award Trust was established on 3 December
2010 for the benefit of the Selected Employees and HSBC Trustee acts as
the trustee thereof.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has granted all Awarded Shares
to certain eligible employees under the Share Award Scheme. As a result,
based on the Directors’ knowledge, no Awarded Shares was outstanding as
at 31 December 2016 under the Share Award Scheme.

Vesting of the Awarded Shares
o Prior to the vesting of the Awarded Shares, the Selected Employees
are not entitled to any rights attaching to the unvested Awarded
Shares, including but not limited to voting rights, rights to dividends
or other distributions.

o Subject to the following paragraphs and the terms of the Share
Award Scheme, the grant of the Awarded Shares to a Selected
Employee is subject to a vesting period of three years commencing
from the relevant date on which the Awarded Share(s) was/were
awarded (“Date of Award"”), during which 30% of the total
Awarded Shares granted to such Selected Employee will vest on
each of the first and second anniversary dates of the Date of Award
and 40% of the total Awarded Shares granted to such Selected
Employee will vest on the third anniversary date of the Date of
Award.
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Unless it is provided for in the employment contract with the
relevant Selected Employee, any Awarded Shares granted to a
Selected Employee whose employment with the Group or an
Invested Entity is less than one year at the Date of Award shall be
subject to the vesting period of three years from the first anniversary
date of the employment commencement date of such Selected
Employee, during which 30% of the total Awarded Shares granted
to such Selected Employee will vest on each of the second and
third anniversary dates of the employment commencement date
and 40% of the total Awarded Shares granted to such Selected
Employee will vest on the fourth anniversary date of the employment
commencement date.

The vesting date is subject to postponement of one year in the event
that the performance appraisal of such Selected Employee is rated at
the lowest range for two consecutive years.

Notwithstanding the postponement of the vesting date, the vesting
period shall remain as a period of three years from the Date of
Award or, as the case may be, the first anniversary date of the
employment commencement date, and any Awarded Shares granted
to a Selected Employee but not vested at the end of the vesting
period shall be deemed to have been surrendered by such Selected
Employee forthwith.

The Awarded Shares will be vested to each Selected Employee at nil
consideration.

As at the vesting of the Awarded Shares, the Awarded Shares
together with all the dividends and other distributions accrued
thereon from the Date of Award to the vesting date of the relevant
Awarded Shares (both dates inclusive), and all rights and benefits
deriving from such Awarded Shares on or after such vesting will be
vested in the relevant Selected Employees.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 27(b) to the
financial statements.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year under review.

There is no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year
under review.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS
IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to any Director or the chief
executive officer of the Company, the following persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive officer of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at the general meetings of any other
members of the Group:

BERAR
HERGEH
(Rat1)
BETER (a) +(b) +(c) + (c)
BERGEA FERRE HBEAATER  B5HAR) R
(&) 2A(R) #5HE (R) (d) Total number
(@ (b) () Number of of Shares and HERTRG
Number of Number of Number of Convertible underlying BB EL(%)
Sharesheld  Share options PCSs held bonds held Shares held Approximate
5 (Shares) held (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Note 1) percentage of
Capacity (@ (b) (9] (d) (a)+(b)+(c)+(d) issued Shares
Shares (L) (%)
Chance Again([f{££2) BREEA 295,593,500 - 238,552,800 - 534,146, 30084 (L) 4512
Chance Again (Note 2) Beneficial owner 534,146,300 Shares (L)
BVl ColffizE2) R R 295,593,500 - 238,552,800 - 534,146, 30085 (1) 4512
BVI Co (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 534,146,300 Shares (L)
corporation
ELERET(HT) EHRETA 295,593,500 - 238,552,800 - 534,146,300 %47 (L) 45.12
HSBC International Trustee Trustee of a trust 534,146,300 Shares (L)
(Note 2)
prEnt(Brt))(FE2R3) REkER 295,742,000 1,400,000 238,552,800 - 535,694,808 15 (L) 4525
Ms LIU Choi Lin ("Ms LIU") Interest of spouse 535,694,800 Shares (L)
(Notes 2 &3)
#E(fiizE4) BRlEEA 327,599,500 - - 101,239,259 428,338, 759517 (1 36.23

Caiyun (Note 4) Beneficial owner

428,838,759 Shares (L)
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BERGR
RERGAH
(rzE1)
BETRR (@) + (b) + (¢) + ()
BERAEA BEERE HBEAATER  BHHAR) R
(R) #E(R) E5YE (R) (d) Total number
(a) (b) (© Number of of Shares and HERTRA
Number of Number of Number of Convertible underlying B2 (%)
Sharesheld  Share options PCSs held bonds held Shares held Approximate
=t (Shares) held (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Note 1) percentage of
Capacity 6) (b) (0 (d) (a)+(b)+(c)+(d) issued Shares
Shares (L) (%)
EpmERIRA (M) TR ERR 327,599,500 - - 101,239,259 428,838,759 % (7 (L) 36.23
YMCI (Note 4) Interest in a controlled 428,838,759 Shares (L)
corporation
APG Algemene Pensioen REEE 80,856,500 - - - 80,856,5000 k5 (L) 6.83
Groep NV Investment manager 80,856,500 Shares (L)
Metro Holdings Limited TR ERR 228,390,110 - - - 228,390, 110MRE5 (L) 1929
([Metro )(¥3ts)
Metro Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled 228,390,110 Shares (L)
("Metro") (Note 5) corporation
ONG Ching PingZe(fi3t6)  REEERER 228,390,110 - - - 228,390, 110MRE 15 (L) 19.29
Mr ONG Ching Ping (Note 6) Interest in a controlled 228,390,110 Shares (L)
corporation
ONG JennZ £ (ff3t6) REEEER 228,390,110 - - - 228,390, 105843 (1) 19.29
Ms ONG Jenn (Note 6) Interest in a controlled 228,390,110 Shares (L)
corporation
ONG Ling Lingz £(f3t6) REEEER 228,390,110 - - - 228,390, 10880 (1) 1929
Ms ONG Ling Ling (Note 6) Interest in a controlled 228,390,110 Shares (L)
corporation
ONG Sek HianZE £ (izt6) R ERS 228,390,110 - - - 228,390, 110MRE 15 (L) 1929
Mr ONG Sek Hian (Note 6) Interest in a controlled 228,390,110 Shares (L)
corporation
Lord Business Holding IV Limited ~ S H22E LR - - - 141,734,963 141,734,963 (L) 1197
([Lord Business |)(fizt7)
Lord Business Holding IV Limited ~ Interest in a controlled 141,734,963 Shares (L)
(“Lord Business") (Note 7) corporation
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity ~ SHEAERER - - - 141,734,963 141,734 96315 () 1197
Fund LP.(H5E7)
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity  Interest in a controlled 141,734,963 Shares (L)
Fund L.P. (Note 7) corporation
Pacific Alliance Group Asset XEEERG - - - 141,734,963 141,734 9635 (1) 1197
Management Limited(#57)
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Interest in a controlled 141,734,963 Shares (L)
Management Limited corporation

(Note 7)
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FERRR
RERGEH
(R=E1)
BEARR (@) + () + (c) + (d)
KERG#A KERRE HEAKATAR  E5HE(R) R
() gE(R)  RFHE(R) (d) Total number
(a) (b) (© Number of of Shares and HERTRA
Number of Number of Number of Convertible underlying BB 2 (%)
Sharesheld  Share options PCSs held bonds held Shares held Approximate
=20 (Shares) held (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Note 1) percentage of
Capacity (@) (b) (9] (d) (a)+(b)+(c)+(d) issued Shares
Shares (L) (%)
Pacific Allance Group Limited ~ SEAEIER - - - 141,734,963 141,734,963 %15 (1) 1197
(Fizt7)
Pacific Alliance Group Limited ~ Interest in a controlled 141,734,963 Shares (L)
(Note 7) corporation
Pacific Alliance Investment R EERES - - - 141,734,963 141,734 9635417 (1 11.97
Management Limited(F3£7)
Pacific Aliance Investment Interest in a controlled 141,734,963 Shares (L)

Management Limited (Note 7) ~ corporation

PAG Holdings Limited (Fi57) ~ BREAA - - - 141,734,963 141,734,963 15 (L) 11.97
PAG Holdings Limited (Note 7)  Beneficial owner 141,734,963 Shares (L)
PERNAEEEARA(TS) EREAA - - - 101,239,259 101,239,259% 817 (1) 8.5
China Great Wall Asset Beneficial owner 101,239,259 Shares (L)
Management Corporation
(Note 8)
RABCERRAERAR RS - - - 101,239,259 101,239,259% 815 (1 8.5
([R4RE]) (M)
Great Wall Pan Asia International ~ Interest in a controlled 101,239,259 Shares (L)
Investment Co., Limited corporation
("Great Wall Pan Asia")
(Note 8)
PERAEEEEAA(NEY) EREEA - - - 60,743,555 60,743 555043 (1) 5.13
China Orient Asset Management  Beneficial owner 60,743,555 Shares (L)
Corporation (Note 9)
PE - Notes:
(1) [LIHEBBAATRARBIRMNIABFERMDETE - (1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company.

(2)  Chance Again8BVI Co2 & # A - BVI Co2 3B %  (2)  Chance Again is wholly-owned by BVI Co. The entire issued share capital of BVI Co is

TRAREZEFETIEAERTIGETHNZTITA wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Wong Family Trust. Mr
2EHEE  c BEERERFTIGETIHNEIAREE WONG is the settlor and the protector of the Wong Family Trust. By virtue of the SFO,
A o RIBEFES LB GRD] - ZEEHR AR Chance Mr WONG is deemed to be interested in 295,593,500 Shares held by Chance Again and
AgainF§ A #7295,593,500 4% B 17 K F Chance Again 238,552,800 underlying Shares in relation to the PCSs held by Chance Again.

F7G BK A IR AR 8 55 B 9 238,552,800 AR HH A A

MHREA R

(3) BRI RELRENRE - REZHFRBERM - EZ  (3)  Ms LIU is the spouse of Mr WONG. By virtue of the SFO, Ms LIU is deemed to be
R ARE L ERA = FTARD RABRBAR interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which Mr WONG is interested.
MHREA R -
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(4) 327,599,500 Shares and 101,239,259 underlying Shares in relation to the Second
Tranche Bonds were held by Caiyun, which is wholly-owned by YMCI. Accordingly, YMCl is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares and the underlying Shares held by Caiyun.

(5) 227,970,810 Shares were held by Crown Investments Limited which was in turn wholly-
owned by Metro China Holdings Pte Ltd which was in turn wholly-owned by Metro.
419,300 Shares were held by Meren Pte Ltd which was in turn wholly-owned by Metro.
By virtue of the SFO, Metro is deemed to be interested in 227,970,810 Shares and
419,300 Shares held by Crown Investments Limited and Meren Pte Ltd, respectively.

(6) Mr ONG Ching Ping, Ms ONG Jenn, Ms ONG Ling Ling and Mr ONG Sek Hian are the
executors of the estate of Mr ONG Hie Koan. Metro was 34.43% controlled by Mr
ONG Hie Koan. By virtue of the SFO, Mr ONG Hie Koan is deemed to be interested in
227,970,810 Shares and 419,300 Shares held by Crown Investments Limited and Meren
Pte Ltd, respectively.

(7) 141,734,963 underlying Shares in relation to the first tranche bonds were held by PAG
Holdings Limited. PAG Holdings Limited owned 99.17% of Pacific Alliance Group Limited.
Pacific Alliance Group Limited owned 90% of Pacific Alliance Investment Management
Limited. Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited owned 100% of Pacific Alliance
Group Asset Management Limited. Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited
was the general partner of Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. Pacific Alliance
Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. owned 100% of Lord Business. Accordingly, Lord Business
is deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares in which PAG Holdings Limited is
interested.

(8) 101,239,259 underlying Shares in relation to the first tranche bonds were held by China
Great Wall Asset Management Corporation, which was 99.99% owned by Great Wall
Pan Asia. Great Wall Pan Asia is deemed to be interested in 99.99% underlying Shares in
which China Great Wall Asset Management Corporation is interested.

9) 60,743,555 underlying Shares in relation to the first tranche bonds were held by China
Orient Asset Management Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person (other than a
Director or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

To protect the Group from potential competition, Mr WONG entered
into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-Competition”) with the
Company pursuant to which he represents, warrants and undertakes to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of the other members of the Group),
among other things, that other than through the Group, neither he nor any
of his associates is currently interested, involved or engaged, or is likely to
be interested, involved or engaged, directly or indirectly, in any business
which is or is about to be engaged in any business which competes or is
likely to compete directly or indirectly with the Group’s business. Details of
the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in the paragraph headed
“Non-Competition Undertakings from Mr WONG” in the section headed
"Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders and the Scarborough
Group” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from Mr WONG in
respect of his compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.

In order to ensure compliance by Mr WONG of the Deed of Non-
Competition and to manage any potential conflict of interests arising from
the business of the Controlling Shareholders and to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders, the Company has adopted the following corporate
governance measures (the “Corporate Governance Measures”):

(@) the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed, on an annual
basis, the compliance with the undertakings by Mr WONG under the
Deed of Non-Competition;

(b)  Mr WONG provided all information requested by the Company which
is necessary for the annual review by the independent non-executive
Directors of his compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition such
as: (i) information on business opportunities including project names,
amount of investment and the geographical location which may be
identified by him or any of his associate(s); and (ii) information on any
property developments conducted by him or any of his associate(s)
during the year or a negative confirmation, as appropriate;

() the Company disclosed decisions on matters reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors relating to (where applicable)
(i) compliance and enforcement of Mr WONG's non-competition
undertakings; (ii) the exercise of the pre-emption rights where a
business opportunity is referred to the Group; and/or (iii) any decision
on the enforcement of breaches of his non-competition undertakings
either through the annual reports of the Company, or by way of
announcement to the public;
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(e)

Mr WONG made an annual declaration on compliance with his non-
competition undertakings in the annual report of the Company and
ensure that the disclosure of details of his compliance with and the
enforcement of his non-competition undertakings is consistent with
the principles of disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

Mr WONG abstained from voting in all meetings of the Shareholders
and/or the Board where there is any actual or potential conflicting
interest;

the Board has a balanced composition of executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors so that
there is a strong element on the Board that can effectively exercise
independent judgement. With expertise in different professional
fields, the Company believes that the independent non-executive
Directors have the necessary caliber and expertise to form and exercise
independent judgement in the event that conflicts of interest between
the Group and the controlling shareholders arise;

in the event that potential conflicts of interest materialise, that is,
where a Director has an interest in a company that would enter into
an agreement with the Group, the Director(s) with an interest in the
relevant transaction(s) would not be allowed to attend the relevant
Board meeting, and would be excluded from the Board deliberation
and abstained from voting and would not be counted towards quorum
in respect of the relevant resolution(s) at such Board meeting;

in the event that potential conflicts of interest materialise, the
controlling shareholders would be required to abstain from voting in
the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company with respect to the relevant
resolution(s); and

the Group is administratively independent from the controlling
shareholders as it has its own company secretary, authorised
representatives and administrative personnel.

The Directors consider that the above Corporate Governance Measures
are sufficient to manage any potential conflict of interests between the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates and the Group
and to protect the interests of the Shareholders, in particular, the minority
Shareholders.

The Directors confirm that each of the Corporate Governance Measures has
been performed satisfactorily during the financial year ended 31 December
2016.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance policies and procedures in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those have a significant
impact on the Group. The Group would seek professional legal advice from
its legal advisers to ensure transactions and business to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations. During the
year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and to
adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving
and waste reduction. The Group has implemented internal recycling programme
for office consumables such as toner cartridges and paper to minimise the
operational impact on the environment and natural resources.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and will
implement further eco-friendly measures and practices closely enhancing
environmental sustainability.

For details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report in
this report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important and valuable assets. The
Group will provide trainings for employees to enhance their knowledge in
corporate values and culture and to implement them thoroughly. Meanwhile,
the Group accelerates development of young leaders and nurtures them
in establishing study-oriented teams and keeps them abreast of updated
knowledge and timely development.

The Group also aims to provide competitive and attractive remuneration
packages to retain the employees. Management reviews annually the
remuneration package offered to employees of the Group. Meanwhile, for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributed to the success of the Group’s operations, the Group adopted the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Share Award Scheme and the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. Information about these scheme is set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Schemes” in the Directors’ Report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values long standing relationships with its suppliers and customers.
The Group aims at delivering high quality properties and services to its
customers and developing mutual trust and enhancing communication and
commitment between the Group and its suppliers, especially the commercial
banks and financial institutions as the Group’s businesses are capital intensive
which require on-going funding to maintain sustainable growth.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a

On 14 February 2017, the Group successfully bid a parcel of
commercial land in Nanjing through public auction at a consideration of
RMB290,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$323,733,000). The
Group entered into a land grant contract for the land with a total site area
of approximately 23,295 sg.m. on 2 March 2017. As at the date of this
report, the Group had yet to obtain the land use rights certificate of this
commercial land.

On 10 March 2017, Top Spring Australia, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
with the Trustee, the Vendor, the Silver Pond Vendor and Mr Wong
Chun Hong, pursuant to which (i) the Vendor agreed to sell, and Top
Spring Australia or its nominee agreed to purchase, the Sale Units at the
consideration in the estimated amount of AUD1,436,074 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,401,033); and (ii) the Silver Pond Vendor agreed
to sell, and Top Spring Australia or its nominee agreed to purchase, the
Sale Shares at the consideration of AUD49 (equivalent to approximately
HK$287). Upon completion, Top Spring Australia will own (i) 49% of the
units in the Trust; and (i) 49% of the issued shares of the Trustee, and
have 49% interest in 20 parcels of land with an estimated net saleable
GFA of approximately 30,537 sg.m. in St. Leonards of Sydney, New
South Wales, Australia. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase agreement, the
Group shall make a capital contribution in the amount of AUD78,681,823
(equivalent to approximately HK$460,288,665) as soon as practicable
after the completion of the Acquisition. The completion of the Acquisition
is subject to certain conditions precedent including but not limited to
the approval of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the sale and
purchase of the Sale Units and the Sale Shares at a general meeting of the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Listing
Rules. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10
March 2017.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this report.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

*  For identification purposes only

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

WONG Chun Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2017
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Top Spring
International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Top Spring
International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on
pages 152 to 272, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group held a portfolio
of investment properties, investment properties under
development and investment properties classified as held for
sale located in Mainland China with a fair value of HK$6,709.3
million which, in aggregate, accounted for 25.8% of the
Group's total assets.

These properties principally comprise residential, retail and
office premises.

The fair values of the investment properties, investment
properties under development and investment properties
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2016 were assessed
by the directors based on independent valuations prepared by
a firm of qualified external property valuers.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties, investment properties under development and
investment properties classified as held for sale included the
following:

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuers engaged by management
and on which the directors’ assessment of the fair values
of investment properties, investment properties under
development and investment properties held for sale was
based;

o assessing the external property valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued and
considering their objectivity and independence;

e with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property valuers
their valuation methodology and the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in their valuations;
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The determination of these fair values involves significant
management judgement and estimation, particularly in
relation to selecting the appropriate valuation methodology,
capitalisation rates, market rents and average market price
of the comparable properties. The net changes in fair value
of investment properties, investment properties under
development and investment properties classified as held for
sale recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represented 58% of the Group’s profit before taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

We identified the valuation of investment properties,
investment properties under development and investment
properties classified as held for sale as a key audit matter
because of the inherent risks involved in estimating the values
of the properties, particularly in light of the current economic
circumstances and the various property market cooling
measures introduced by local governments in various cities
across Mainland China.
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evaluating the external property valuers’ valuation
methodology and challenging the key estimates and
assumptions (including capitalisation rates, prevailing
market rents and comparable market transactions) adopted
in the valuations, on a sample basis, by comparison with
available market data and/or government produced market
statistics;

comparing tenancy information, including committed rents
and occupancy rates, provided by the Group to the external
property valuers with underlying contracts and related
documentation, on a sample basis; and

conducting site visits to investment properties under
development, on a sample basis, to observe the
development progress and challenging management’s
development budgets reflected in the latest forecasts
with reference to market statistics for estimated
construction costs, signed construction contracts and/
or unit construction costs of recently completed projects
developed by the Group.
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As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate carrying value of the
Group's properties held for development (“PHD"), properties
under development (“PUD") and completed properties held
for sale (together “inventories”) totalled HK$9,019 million.
These principally comprise residential and office properties in
Shenzhen, Hangzhou, Nanjing and Nanchang held for sale.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The calculation of the net realisable value for each
property development project at the financial reporting date is
performed by management.

The calculation of the net realisable value of inventories
involves significant management judgement and estimation
in preparing the updated estimations of the costs to complete
each property development project for PHD and PUD as well
as in assessing the expected future selling prices for each
property development project (with reference to recent sales
transactions in nearby locations and the rates of new property
sales) and the estimated future selling costs (including price
discounts which may be required to stimulate sales).

We identified assessing the net realisable value of inventories of
the Group as a key audit matter because of the inherent risks
involved in estimating net realisable values, particularly in light
of the current economic circumstances and various property
market cooling measures introduced by local governments in
various cities across Mainland China.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

. assessing the qualifications, experience and expertise of
management in the nature and locations of the properties
being valued;

e discussing with management their valuation methodologies
and key estimates and assumptions adopted in the
valuations;

e evaluating the valuation methodologies and challenging the
key estimates and assumptions adopted in the valuations,
including expected future selling prices, by comparing
expected future selling prices to, where available, recently
transacted prices for similar properties and the prices of
comparable properties located in the nearby vicinity of each
development; and

. conducting site visits to properties under development
for sale, on a sample basis, to observe the development
progress and challenging management’s development
budgets reflected in the latest forecasts with reference to
market statistics for estimated construction costs, signed
construction contracts and/or unit construction costs of
recently completed projects developed by the Group.
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During the year, the Group issued two tranches of convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of US$200 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,551 million). The convertible
bonds can be converted into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$3.8289 per share.

/

o m‘m
3

Upon initial recognition, both the host liability and the
conversion option embedded in the convertible bonds are
stated at their fair values. The host liability is then stated at
amortised cost while the conversion option embedded in
the convertible bonds is recorded as a derivative financial
instrument and stated at fair value. Any gain or loss upon initial
recognition is amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds.

The fair value of both the host liability and the conversion
option upon initial recognition and the fair value of the
conversion option at 31 December 2016 was assessed by the
directors based on independent valuations prepared by a firm
of qualified external valuers. Determining these fair values
involves a significant level of management judgement around
the assumptions adopted and internal and external factors that
may impact the assumptions. The significant internal factors
are dividend yield and probability of redemption while the
significant external factors are spot prices at the valuation date,
the conversion price of the convertible bonds, the maturity
date, the risk-free rate, share price volatility and the discount
rate.

We identified assessing the valuation of convertible bonds as a
key audit matter because of the degree of complexity involved
in the valuation and the degree of judgement exercised
by management in determining the inputs adopted in the
valuation models.

RN ET A REZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AL TR ESNREETHRTRFEEATEIE
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o ZERTEHFRENSE
FIAEEREMIRTEER -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of convertible
bonds included the following:

bR A M BImRARAET

e  obtaining and inspecting the external valuation reports
prepared by the external valuers engaged by management
and on which the directors’ assessment of the fair value of
both the host liability and the conversion option was based;

° assessing the qualifications, experience and expertise of the
external valuers;

e involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
critically assessing the choice of option pricing model
adopted by the external valuer, the key inputs which
required significant estimation and judgement in their
selection and which can have a significant impact on
the derived fair value, specifically the dividend yield, the
probability of redemption, the discount rate and the share
price volatility assumptions. These key inputs were assessed
with reference to external data or internal information; and

e assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to the key assumptions adopted in
the valuation with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland China

BRI & B IR L7 R 2B B AR

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(u).

BRENSE

The key audit matter
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LAT in Mainland China is one of the main components of the
Group's taxation charge.

LAT is levied on sale of properties, at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% based on the appreciation of land value.
At the end of each financial reporting period, management
estimates the provision for LAT based on its understanding
and interpretation of the relevant tax rules and regulations,
the estimated total sales of properties less total deductible
expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use rights,
property development costs, borrowing costs and development
expenditure. When the LAT is subsequently determined, the
actual payments may be different from the estimates.

We identified assessing provision for LAT in Mainland China
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the estimated
provisions for LAT are based on management'’s judgement and
interpretation of complicated tax laws and regulations.

EMNES NAEEZBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

PR o B P - B 1T O B R F B I
TRIE :
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Our audit procedures to assess the provision for LAT in Mainland
China included the following:

e assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls over
the calculation of the estimated LAT provisions;

e engaging our internal taxation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the Group’s LAT provisions as at 31 December
2016, which involved challenging the management’s
assumptions and judgements based on our experience,
knowledge and understanding of the practices of the
application of the relevant tax laws by the various local tax
bureaus;

e  evaluating management’s assumptions and judgements
based on our assessment of the value of the estimated
sales of properties and the deductible expenditure;

e obtaining final tax settlement notices in respect of LAT
issued by local tax bureaus during the year; and

° re-calculating the provisions for LAT of the Group and
comparing our calculations with the amounts recorded by
the Group.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OUR AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wong Chun Pong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BE_Z-RFT_A=+—BLFECAETIIR)
Fortheyearended31 December 2016

REBEBREEERAR

ZT—NFIR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N Revenue 3 5,558,731 10,519,689
B A Direct costs (4,548,121) (7,324,878)
EF Gross profit 1,010,610 3,194,811
BRI RIEE Valuation gains on investment properties

HERNREMER and investment properties classified as

(EHELE held for sale 12821 436,025 458,981

EH A Other revenue 4 191,122 233,361

Eigss (B8 ) g5 Other net income/(loss) 5 735,933 (121,260)
ﬁﬁ% MEHERAY Selling and marketing expenses (182,533) (243,960)
ITHAX Administrative expenses (750,868) (658,953)
REERELENRF Profit from operations 1,440,289 2,862,980
BEKAK Finance costs 6(a) (679,414) (509,340)
FE(RE A R &R Share of losses of associates (6,037) (49,820)
JE(EE B EEIE Share of losses of joint ventures (474) (6,997)
KRBT E R Profit before taxation 6 754,364 2,296,823
g, (Bk) Income tax credit/(expense) 7(a) 149,221 (1,243,072)
FEER Profit for the year 903,585 1,053,751
BUR AL B4 Attributable to:
R E AR Equity shareholders of the Company 866,428 773,443
RV Non-controlling interests 37,157 280,308
FERER Profit for the year 903,585 1,053,751
BRERNGET) Earnings per share (HK$)
SN Basic 10 0.61 0.55
i3 Diluted 10 0.42 0.54

%160%\;2725 R AR X ST mE — 3
o FERF AR BIREZR AR ER N AL FIoKk 2R 4% AT A%
%(Fmﬁ‘nﬁﬂﬁ 55 DEBEBAREEEFESR

ﬂ VR IB B BTRE28(b) ©

profit for the year are set out in note 28(b).

The notes on pages 160 to 272 form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company and holders of
bonus perpetual subordinated convertible securities (“PCSs") attributable to the
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-Z-RE+-A=+—HBIFECETIIR)
For the year ended 31 December 2016  (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FERF Profit for the year 903,585 1,053,751
FEHMZEWR(EFRSE Other comprehensive income for the year
AEE) (after reclassification adjustments)
REreeEFHIEZIBZEMIEE - Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
PEH Z5E Exchange differences
—REIBHNITE A AIHY — on translation of financial statements of
B TSR R RS P A foreign subsidiaries (941,173) (577,436)
—HEWBRAREENSLE — reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal
ESS=F of subsidiaries (25,015) -
(966,188) (577,436)
L E AR REERERN Share of other comprehensive income of
Efh 2w associates and joint ventures (23,022) (20,125)
(989,210) (597,561)
FEX2HEWZHATE Total comprehensive income for the year (85,625) 456,190
BTN AL B4 Attributable to:
NN el Equity shareholders of the Company (42,338) 249,150
FEIEARAE A Non-controlling interests (43,287) 207,040
FEEWFEE Total comprehensive income for the year (85,625) 456,190

F1602272 B HIMT AR LS EE—809 ©  The notes on pages 160 to 272 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REZB—RF+ZA=+—HUABTIIR)

At 31 December 2016

FRBEE

8= EYES
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RNEEhENER
Hib e mEE
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Hib e mEE

B 5 REMEKIR
AR IR

SRR AR ER

ReMReFEEE

DRERREHER
REME

REAE

B 5 REMENTIR
RITREMIEE
TEERMTA
FEfTEIR

RBEEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Other property, plant and
equipment

Interests in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating leases

Interest in associates

Interest in joint ventures

Other financial assets

Restricted and pledged
deposits

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Other financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Prepaid tax

Restricted and pledged
deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment properties
classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank and other borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable

Net current assets

12

12

12

14
15
16

19
7(c)

17
16
18

19
20(a)

21

22

23
24

S
2016

T
$'000

T
$'000

6,046,160

303,408

3,391

6,352,959

87,718

225,822

246,818

424,444

7,337,761
9,019,239
47,979
2,623,876
133,295
2,488,695
3,713,086
18,026,170
663,104
18,689,274
6,710,457
3,013,730
155,273
2,286,283
12,165,743

6,523,531

15,752,308
253,701
2,496,253
283,132

1,847,879
3,789,854

24,423,127

1,216,821

25,639,948

10,042,749
6,615,267

4,830,203

21,488,219

T
$'000

7,116,034

362,090

3,881

7,482,005
21,095
230,580
24,143

11,939
545,727

8,315,489

4,151,729
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RZZE—RF+ZA=+—BOETIITR)
At 31 December 2016  (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—RF —E—FRF
2016 2015
Fr T Tt T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HEERRBARE Total assets less current
liabilities 13,861,292 12,467,218
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITREMEE Bank and other borrowings 23 2,152,264 2,938,677
AR ES Convertible bonds 24 1,384,699 _
ERES Bonds payable 25 1,275,239 -
BT Note payable 26 1,097,035 1,167,406
FEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 7(c) 1,116,909 1,058,260
7,026,146 5,164,343
EERE NET ASSETS 6,835,146 7,302,875
RA R & CAPITAL AND RESERVES
e Share capital 28(c) 118,378 118,143
] Reserves 5,780,518 6,107,708
ANFERBR Total equity attributable to
FE(LREZS 4 RE equity shareholders of
the Company 5,898,896 6,225,851
R ER Non-controlling interests 936,250 1,077,024

AR TOTAL EQUITY 6,835,146 7,302,875

FFEeN _Z—+FE=-A=+—8H#EREET] Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2017.
%é o

BEE EF 1)
Wong Chun Hong Wang Tian Ye
EFE -
Director Director

F1602272 B HIMT AR S EEE 5809 ©  The notes on pages 160 to 272 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHEZT—RFTZA=+—HLEFEUAETIIR)
For the year ended 31 December 2016  (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

B
B EARE EXR ; dE
Reserve
arising
from PRC  Property
Share Share issuance  Capital  Exchange  statutory revaluation Other  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium  of PCSs  reseve  reseve  reserves  reseve  reseve profifs Total interests  equity

e T T Tk fTr W W Tk Tk W W Tr TR

Note $000 §/000 $000 $000 §/000 §000 $000 §/000 §000 $000 $000 §000

R-Z-%%-B-ANK  Balanceat 1 January 2015
b33 116,073 1441328 2480 79577 39381 666204 49843 (480,452) 3825321 6,116,535 841,068 6,957,603

“E-1EEREY. Changes in equity for 2015

EERF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - TI3443 773443 280308 1,053,751
2 Other comprehensive income - - - - (54293) - - - - (524293) (73268 (597,561
2ENGEE Total comprehensive income - - - - (524,293 - - - TI3443 249150 207,040 456,190

BEERLREENR Issuance of new shares under Pre-PO
BERLFRERERE and Post-IPO Share Option Schemes

HEEGHRG 28(00) 1105 53290 - (B - - - - - N3 -3
BELAXATMARES  Issuance of new shares upon conversion
Bt of PCSs 28(c)i) 965 - (965) - - - - - - - - -
FEEENRHA Equity settled share-based transactions
ERN2S - - - B - - - - - B4 - B4
ERUEBRIERZEMRA  Share options and awarded shares
forfeted - - - B3] - - - - s - - .
B\ hETTRE Transfer to PRC statutory reserves - - - - - 109,788 - - (109,788) - - -
RENB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - U8 486
—RHERRRTE Contributions from a non-controlling
shareholder - - - - - - - - - - 1295 12,950
BEZEGEL Acauisition of additional interest n
HELRNEMER subsidiaries from non-controlling
shareholer - - - 2080 - - SOy - (909 B8 (31879
LEERERRE Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year 280) - - - - - - - - (155,604) (155,624) - (155,624)
R-B-R7E+ZR Balance at 31 December 2015

Zt-BiER 118,143 1494618 23855 90684 (130472) 775992 49843 (535531) 4338719 6225851 1,077,024 7302875
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-Z-RE+-A=+—HBIFECETIIR)
For the year ended 31 December 2016  (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AREBERRER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RKA
TER

it
EEH

RtEE  RE EREE EXRRE e RS REEA

Reserve
arising

from PRC  Property

Share  Share issuance  Capital Exchange statutory revaluation ~ Other Retained controlling  Total

capital premium  of PCSs  reserve  reserve reserves  reserve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
T i T T T i T T i T T i
§000 000 000 000  $'000  $'000  §000  §'000  §'000  $'000  §'000  $000

RZE-AE-F-H  Balanceat1January 2016
] 118,143 1,494,618 23855 90684 (130472) 775992 49,843 (535531) 4338719 6225851 1,077,024 17,302,875

“E-AEEREE. Changes in equity for 2016:

EEET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 866428 866428 37,157 903,585
Eh 2 Other comprehensive income (908,766) - - = (908,766)  (80,444) (989,210)

2ENGEE Total comprehensive income - - - - (908,766) - - - 866,428  (42,338) (43,287) (85,625)

RESRAFEER Issuance of new shares under Pre-PO
BRLREERERE and Post-IPO Share Option Schemes

YRR 28000 B5 11008 - - - - - - 45 - 4
REEE R A Equity settled share-based transactions
ERHRS = - - 24516 - - - - - 24516 - 4516
DRUBRERZERD  Share options and awarded shares

forfeited - - - (2709 - - - - 2,709 - - -
E\REETRE Transfer to PRC statutory reserves - - - - - 118059 - - (118,059) = o -
LE NG| Acquistion of subsidiaries - = - = = = - - - -1 I
mIEERRENE Acquisiton of additional interest in
HELTNEMER subsidiaries from non-controlling

sharefolders - - - - - - - (850) - (850) (3589)  (4439)
HEMEAT Disposal of subsidiaies - - - - - - - (1) - (198 (101530) (101,724)
TEEHERRE Dividend approved in respect of

the previous year 280) = - - - - - - - (312667) (312.667) - (312667)
R=B-AF1+ZA Balance at 31 December 2016
=t-RigE 118378 1505626 23855 105826 (1,039,238) 894,051 49,843 (536,575) 4,777,130 589889 936,250 6,835,146

F1602272 BN T AR LS EIE 809 ©  The notes on pages 160 to 272 form part of these financial statements.
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SERERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-Z-—RE+-A=+—BEFEUAETIIR)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REER Operating activities
e ER(BA),/ Cash (used in)/generated from operations
FEARS 20(b) (389,645) 1,126,659
EASHIE ¢ Tax paid:
B ERE — PRC tax paid (1,913,275) (1,122,200)
R (FREA), Net cash (used in)/generated from
FFELRESFE operating activities (2,302,920) 4,459
REETH Investing activities
BEWE  BE&REBRE Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment (14,646) (12,586)
HRIBERY Expenditure on development projects (123,808) (40,056)
HEEMYE  BE& Deposits and proceeds from sale of other
SERIRE M TS RIE property, plant and equipment 261 753
HEREMERDER Deposits and proceeds from sale of
BIEREMREYE investment properties and investment
E& RFTBIE properties classified as held for sale 1,923,166 1,593,404
BB B A B FTS R E Net cash outflow from acquisitions of
TR subsidiaries 20(0) (1,658,175) (185,054)
HEHMBARIMSRSE Net cash inflow from disposals of
TMAJEEE subsidiaries 20(d) 2,078,282 176,999
RmARUEE Proceeds from net repayment of advances
BELENBARIER to disposed subsidiaries by the respective
SFRRHI TS FRIE acquirers 20(d) 1,868,777 -
HE—fEE AR Proceeds from disposal of partial
SR FTS 08 interests in an associate = 2,220
U BE B 2 N RIS Payment for acquisition of associates (19,683) (42,664)
Wi —R& SRR Payment for acquisition of a joint venture - (6,253)
ML AT RAEM%TE  Capital contribution to associates and joint
ventures (200,281) (21,872)
BEASNCIEZEA Advances to associates (30,557) (1,223)
m—EaEhERR Advances to a joint venture = (49,334)
R FEIE A AR R B Advances to non-controlling shareholders (148,512) (203,498)
B —EHE A RS Dividends received from an associate 2,103 472
—BEELEERERRD Proceeds from repayment of
e ZIA advances to a joint venture 175,213 86,334
—ME R BB Proceeds from repayment of
FriS a8 advances to an associate 5,716 -
BEEEEERNMNR Payment for purchase of wealth
management products (159,187) (266,527)
HEFEEEEMASHIE  Proceeds from disposal of wealth
management products 349,388 132,949
BEEHEERENR Payment for purchase of available-
for-sale investments (240,795) -
HERMHHEIREFSFKIA  Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale investments 112,512 227,714
BUFLE Interest received 129,899 195,481
2R 1 K B R AT S 0 Increase in restricted and pledged deposits (153,645) (53,379)
RETHMELERSFHE Net cash generated from investing
activities 3,896,028 1,533,880
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BEZZ—R"Ft-A=t—RALEFECAETIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

RESEE Financing activities
EEBITRTIS ROE Proceeds from issuance of note - 1,217,264
BRI REMEER Proceeds from new bank and other

PS5 308 borrowings 4,577,280 3,635,473
JERHEHEITATS R Proceeds from issuance of bonds payable 1,360,088 -
AR E SR ITINE ,T)\IE Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 1,527,329 -
EERBRTEREMEE Repayment of bank and other borrowings (6,981,591) (8,943,884)
SR & B (1 (Increase)/decrease in restricted and pledged

m)/md deposits (790,969) 1,414,795
RS R EMEER A Interest and other borrowing costs paid (759,694) (958,248)
U BB BB N BIEBAMEZR 3 Payment for acquisition of additional

interests in subsidiaries (4,439) (37,879)
IR R E Contributions from non-controlling
shareholders - 12,950

BB AR R FE Repayment to non-controlling shareholders (61,350) (134,919)
TR EETTERS /1A Proceeds from issuance of new shares 4,578 21,354
BNARRER Hx%& Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the

KA AR FE 5 Company and holders of PCSs

ES RPN &5 28(b) (312,667) (155,624)
BEEHRE AR TS Net cash used in financing activities (1,441,435) (3,928,718)
REFRESLEEEE Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

#8401 GRA) B8 cash equivalents 151,673 (2,390,379)
R—B—BWRER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

HeEMEER 20(a) 3,789,854 6,374,760
ERSENTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (228,441) (194,527)
R+=-—A=+—HMWEELRKR Cash and cash equivalents at

HEZEER 31 December 20(a) 3,713,086 3,789,854

F160ZE272 B MM K ZENHREK 5 ©

The notes on pages 160 to 272 form part of these financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Top Spring International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability on 25 August 2009 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company'’s
shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 March
2011.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are property development, property
investment, hotel operations and provision of property management and
related services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the
Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(b) MIBHMERAMERELE

BE-T—RE+T-A=+—HILF
EoEeMEHRRBEARE REN
B w (el A ) R AN BB
EREIRABDEMNER o

BT MAFT AT EERERELK
K& HEATEERABHNTXHNE
STREEBUE AR BETIRE

—  REWE(ZRHME2))

- OBRATHHEESFNERIA
(2BMIF209) &

—  TESRIA(ZHMTE2M) -

BEHEIRRBEERFERERQ A
BEREEXNANNEEEYR(ZH
MEE2(2)) °

EREAABVHREENRERSBHRER
ZREEBIELFIE - EFFRERER -
UL EHE - AR MEBREFEBRE
REMEHRNEE - BfF - WARX
HEE - WEA RARRERABE
REMEABBLTHERGENS
TREMEA R SRR - MASERMAE
HET B AT RN RS BB B H AR
ESNEENABRAENKE - &
BRAERATBER IR L F (AT o

b

2E b RERRREFEEN - 1
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RRHEAELZE  AISEFHZ
ERTERR AR SR BRI R FERR o
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I HEE AR E 2 AR M 365

AJER ©

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as “the Group”) and the Group's interest in associates
and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

—  investment properties (see note 2(i));

financial instruments classified as available-for-sale securities
(see note 2(g)); and

derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note 2(z)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 36.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) HBATIRIFZERERE) (d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
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Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(z)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(z)). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2(f) and (m)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate
or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group'’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

()

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)).

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Other investments in equity securities
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The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair
value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows:

Investments in securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this, investments in
equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market
for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Dividend
income from equity securities are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(w)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(m)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Derivative financial instruments

(i)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(I)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(w)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(l)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 2(I).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 2(k)) and impairment
losses (see note 2(m)):

—  hotel properties;

other land and buildings; and

furniture, fixtures and other equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified
to profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Depreciation of investment properties and other
property, plant and equipment

U]

(0}

((ID)]

av)

v

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

No depreciation is provided on investment properties and
investment properties under development.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR OWN USE
No depreciation is provided until such time as the relevant assets
are complete and put into use.

HOTEL PROPERTIES

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of hotel
properties using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 30 years.

OTHER LAND AND BUILDINGS

Depreciation is provided on the cost of the leasehold land
of properties over the unexpired terms of the leases. Costs
of buildings thereon are depreciation on a straight-line basis
over the unexpired terms of the respective leases or 25 years if
shorter.

FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND OTHER EQUIPMENT
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of furniture,
fixtures and other equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 4 to 8 years.

Where parts of an item of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

o

(1)

CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS LEASED TO THE GROUP
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note
2(i)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

OPERATING LEASE CHARGES

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 2(i)) or is held for development for sale (see
note 2(n)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

U]

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

—  For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.



173

5 75 3R B =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BSEEBIHN - LUETTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(m) EEREE)

amn

HitvEEm A

AR RSN ERAR Y B & 15
SEARETERY - UBRITIE
ERBAEHBERETR(FE
BRAN) 32 B 2 HERR RO R E B 18
EETFELAERD -

- PE BEAREBURER
BERIIRANIERIN) -

— SEARBCERERE
BT + b FB {2

- BER

—  ARBEMBARKTIRN
MBRRMRE

EFEEAZETR - BIAME
BREENTTRESHE -t
EEME - ASFREATKE
TR EE S BB E AR ED
2 o

— FEAEEESE
BENAREOSER/ER
A BER &R B
BEZANERSE - R&F
EEREER - HEARE
BRan & MR R E
TS ESRERE
B R R B 0 B R BE 3R
T MBAEHBRE- - WE
EREEERBBLINE
EEMELEENRER
A RIEERBYELSR
ERARNR/ AR E E (B
ReEEEM)HATIEE
LAl

- HBAREEBRE
HWEEXEMBREESE
BmREERBE K
[ 558 - B8 RN
BEER ARSELEBEMN
HEANRERBEELE D
ERIEFRIEEEHR
SESEM(H—HEER)
MEEKREE  ERED
EROIR Dz B AL (B —
AER)NEENREE
HEERBETSRLE
R EAB B 2 7o B AR
ERA (WA FHE) LA
EBEHATEE)

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
() IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being
held under an operating lease;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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2 SIGNIFI

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(an

({(ID)

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING AND IMPAIRMENT

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see notes
2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost and net realisable value are determined as follows:

U]

()

(1

()

LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
The cost of leasehold land, which is held for development for
sale, represents the cost of acquisition and the premium, if any,
payable to the relevant government authorities. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates
based on prevailing market conditions.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The cost of properties held for/under development for sale
comprises specifically identified cost, including the acquisition
cost of land, aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an appropriate
portion of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note
2(y)). Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price,
based on prevailing market conditions, less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land and
development costs for that development project, attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price, based on prevailing market conditions,
less estimated costs to be incurred in selling the property.

LOW VALUE CONSUMABLES AND SUPPLIES

Cost is determined using the first in, first out (FIFO) method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(m)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which do not contain an equity component are
accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see note 2(h)). Any excess of proceeds over
the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component, including any gain or loss
arising from fair value measurement upon the issuance of the
convertible bonds (“initial gain or loss”). Transaction costs that
relate to the issue of the convertible bond are allocated to the
liability and derivative components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds. The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion
relating to the derivative component is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance
with note 2(h). The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method.

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative
and liability components are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued, except for the
unamortised initial gain or loss included in liability component
which is recognised in profit or loss. If the bond is redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Interest-bearing borrowings

(r)

(s)

(t)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
2(v)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

() SHORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

The employees of the Group participate in retirement plans
(defined contribution retirement plans) managed by respective
local governments of the municipalities in which the Group
operates in the PRC. The contribution to the retirement plan
is calculated based on fixed rates of the employees’ salaries
cost and charged to profit or loss as and when incurred,
except to the extent that they are included in the cost of
inventories not yet recognised as an expense. The Group has
no other obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of staff other than the contributions
described above.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(I) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The fair values of share options and awarded shares granted
to employees are recognised as employee costs with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using valuation techniques,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options and awarded shares were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
values of the options and awarded shares are spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options and
awarded shares that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options and awarded shares that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option/
awarded share is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option/awarded share expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Income tax (Continued)
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(i), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at
the end of the reporting period unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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2 FEEHBE® 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) FIBEHE) (u) Income tax (Continued)
BVERFR TR 45 64 RORIE R IR A e B H & Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
BESRYR - B T2 o fiAs therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
B sk AN D BB LT SE I THEF A offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
BNERfIE B E AT IE A G - I deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
RFE TS - AIBERIEEE Company has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
MIRSER T8 & B Rl 5 5l 5 BN HA R 18 against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
BERELERIBEE are met:
— (HANSHEEENEE  BIAX — inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
EESAN BRI FREEE SRR Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
RNEREERSERE X the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
— MAERCEHBEEEKERE @ BIFZ - in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
EEENBEARR SIS income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:
A TEF —IBERHIAERE
B :
— [F—EREEE % —  the same taxable entity; or
—  FrEERAAEES K E - different taxable entities, which, in each future period
ABRENMEERENREE in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
B EEARREARE - 558 or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
_JZITEi BRI IEE E intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
EFEABMBIEE ENT current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

Hfgn% HEE o simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFI

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

U]

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE ISSUED

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
trade and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by reference to
fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where
no such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
2(v)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(0}

OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(w) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

U]

SALE OF PROPERTIES

Revenue arising from the sale of properties is recognised
in profit or loss when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The Group
considers that the significant risks and rewards of ownership
are transferred when the properties are completed and
delivered to the buyers. Revenue from the sale of properties
is net of business tax and other sales related taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts. Deposits and instalments
received on properties and prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of financial position as
receipts in advance.
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2 SIGNIFI

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(an

(1

av)

)]

(Vi)

(vin

RENTAL INCOME FROM OPERATING LEASES

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

HOTEL OPERATIONS
Income from hotel operations is recognised when services are
provided.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SERVICES
INCOME

Property management and related services income is
recognised when services are provided.

DIVIDENDS
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

INTEREST INCOME
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.
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2 FESFHHXR@

(2) HEHENFRBEE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Non-current assets held for sale

fiIERmEEE (K EAR) HERE(E
RAEERLER S MIEEBRERE
RFANE R E AT AR R B - 8
BRAFRBEE(KLEARN) DR
REFERE - HEEESIES—E
MR E—RZTPHEN—HEE -
KEZERNZR ST REBNEE
HEMBNER -

A EAEE — B R RENB AR
IR M ERE - RIMBARS
EHEEMABDBEERELE -
& LD BHEF L ERE - Al
ERASEEENHERDRENE
ACIECE Sz iy S

REZRDBRFELER - FFRD
BE(R—EHEARNANMEER
BENABE)MFEAND BATRE
SERTBRRER - £1& > RUIFHER
FIELEREHER  FRBEE
(BRARBEENREVEREIN K
hEARARERERA R EERG
ERAME RHOEBIEEDIRR © AR
EBCRM T E TR T HAR & B % ¥
RANRENEAR - WERIFLE
BESHERME20MEEEAE -

MNFEDERFBERE RERNFEL
EREFFTEELNREBE 19
RBEMER - IFRBEERD BB
EHE - EFARHEL &ML EAR]
B - ZIERBEED BB ERE

(aa) B

() fHELATAL  BIRALZZA
THISIRAK B BN S E G B

() FEHIRAE IR ARER

(i) BAEEEEEATE
VAR

(i) ARAEBERANEEERE
MEI2EEENHKE -

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale
if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use
and the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed
of together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale. When the above criteria for classification
are held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group still retain
a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for investment properties which are measured at fair value),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to
this measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group are concerned are investment properties. These assets even if
held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(i).

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

(aa) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.
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() ZEBERAKEER-—
B r R E R (EHR!
A-HEA T&H%W%
DRI A R

BEE 7%;»3—?’%1—%6’\] Bt
RAFEELE(HE—
=18 WNSIEE e
BIMEEE QA AE
) o

(ii)

I |
}H{ED)?EJ\ED)J

F> 0 1

[

(i) MEERERRE-F=7

ALK -

Il

(ivv —RERRE=-TERBN
BELE MA—EBBA
ZE=TTERBOEE R

v EBERANEEHELEHE
BEBOERMEERNE
M 3% FBE B IR AR AFT 8 o

(vi) EREX(a)@P B AT
ek R -

(vii) (a@a)@)()FTERI A T¥ B e
EEAVENRBRESR
(HZEENTRR)EE
BEEEMKE -

(viii) ?ETE‘% s — A & B A 1A

(F%EEIE']**B

AR A THAERREKE BEEER
SFTARA e EZA TR T ZALT
TENREKE

(bb) 7 &R &

RED BRI TBEBRRAMZROZD
MEBEHE  DNERBAAKRERS
BITREEABTERERNUBER
Bl ARAEEARER R RED
RER - WRHEZEEBRRENER
iR o

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

2 FTESTTBER@ 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) BB () (aa) Related parties (Continued)
(b) Thﬁ”\L/\TTEEﬂf " RZER (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
HAZNEE [E 5 R conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (aa)(a).

A person identified in (aa)(@)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

(bb) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.
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2 FESHBE® 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(bb) 7 &Pk & (%) (bb) Segment reporting (Continued)
BRIEBALED I ETEREM Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
A6 BRIEHBOBEFBEULE financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
R BEMRRBEIEE - EEREN economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
F . XFREASER - S HERSIR products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
HRBFTAT EAREERFEE M or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
RIS R - E LI KB IZAE provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
KIFEERIE R E D BRI ST A B © Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
3 WA 3 REVENUE
WAIEF AR EHEERA - HEW Revenue represents income from sale of properties, rental income,
A BEEERAN B EEE XA income from hotel operations and income from provision of property
FARGHTEBIWA (IR ER 8 EHR L management and related services earned during the year, net of business
Hip B E BB E LI - oM tax/values added tax and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed,
™~ and is analysed as follows:

MIEEE Sale of properties 5,028,519 9,988,246
[EE N Rental income 277,958 323,686
EEEE Hotel operations 63,758 55,671
Y% E1E RAEREREIA Property management and related
services income 188,496 152,086
5,558,731 10,519,689
4 HAWA 4 OTHER REVENUE

RITHLSHA Bank interest income 77,777 108,067
HAbF BULA Other interest income 46,355 67,505
REEERBEA Construction management service income 17,993 16,038
REKLEHE(HIREMEARBEE  Rental income from operating leases,
BRoM TS U A other than those relating to investment

properties 17,003 15,219
HAbPRASUA Other service income 10,471 4,361
Hith Others 21,523 22,171

191,122 233,361
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5

Hiteas /(&518) F8

HE M S A R e s F R

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

5 OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSS)

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries

(KFE20(d)) (note 20(d)) 682,281 15,353
& — I A R E DR Net loss on disposal of partial interest in
JE5 1R R an associate = (35)
PETHEERER Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
B EEIRE RN FEE investments and wealth management
products 100,397 113,905
PE 3 I 25558 Net exchange gain 83,287 60,115
HEHMME - BEMREN Net loss on disposal of property,
B 1R plant and equipment (713) (456)
HEREMERDIEE Net (loss)/gain on sale of investment
FELEREYEN properties and investment properties
(F518),/WaF58 classified as held for sale (79,379) 41,518
TERE Provision on inventories (26,490) (314,994)
FERERD Reversal of provision on inventories 80,147 -
SEARIELENTEEESR Impairment loss on disposal group
S EEE (M E20(d)) classified as held for sale (note 20(d)) (179,217) -
BiHErTa I RES Amortisation of loss arising from the
EEREIE(HE24) issuance of convertible bonds (note 24) (67,498) -
MA AR S AR mEEARAER)  Fair value change on conversion option
DA BEZE(MFE24) embedded in convertible bonds (note 24) 149,425 -
Al B IR E R R EE R Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments - (36,428)
HAith Others (6,307) (238)
735,933 (121,260)
MEE Note:

() #BEZZ-—A"F+-A=t+-—HLFE"
AEEBREKA-—EBBLE - HHEER L
ERABEEENEERAR (KAEE—
BAEMAHEEERE) W EHES - 5
100,397,000 LA F W (=T —AF -
108,006,000/ 7T ) + Mz st A & AT i
ERBERVEBTREMNKFE -

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group completed the disposal of
its beneficial equity interest in Shanghai Fengdan Lishe Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (LB EEEHEMRZEERAF), an unlisted available-for-sale
investment of the Group, to an independent third party. This results in a net gain of
$100,397,000 (2015: $108,006,000) which was included in net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments and wealth management products.
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6 FBRBIATER 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRE A EFANRG, (GEA) AT &IAEET Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
BE :

(a) WERAK (a) Finance costs
RITNEMEER S Interest on bank and other borrowings 456,310 829,165
AR ES A (MEE24) Interest on convertible bonds (note 24) 177,931 -
EANEENFE Interest on note payable 134,356 70,149
e IEHERR B B F I R FI B Interest on amounts due to

non-controlling shareholders 9,966 14,211
ERESNFIE Interest on bonds payable 32,866 -
HiEERA Other borrowing costs 56,136 61,557
867,565 975,082

o BARbayEEE (BIEE) Less: Amount capitalised (Note) (188,151) (465,742)
679,414 509,340

M REBE-T-R"E+_A=1+—HILFE Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 5.23% to 12.00%

BERAEIZN F5.23% £ 12.00% K 4 F| & (2015: 4.57% to 12.00%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(ZZ—AF : 457%F12.00%)E X1 -

(b) BIFRZAK (b) Staff costs
e TERHMTZ Salaries, wages and other benefits 217,038 216,967
) E BB AR RET B R Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 27,789 28,455
A E RS (D A Equity settled share-based payment
expenses 24,516 23,455

269,343 268,877
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6 KREAER 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(0 HfEE (c) Otheritems
e KN Depreciation and amortisation 46,931 57,332
W BRI EER Less: Amount capitalised (930) (1,051)
46,001 56,281
B EMERKAR Cost of properties sold 4,263,065 7,066,683
BLEYENAS KA Rental income from investment
(PFF5E) properties (Note) (277,958) (323,686)
B BB Less: Direct outgoings 39,235 30,285
(238,723) (293,401)
ZERNE & Auditors’ remuneration
— BZRRTE — audit services 4,560 6,213
— H A ARTE — other services 3,140 2,665
MEEEE Operating lease charges:
— T REFHREHRE — minimum lease payments for land
IRE: and buildings 35,000 35,712
Wi aEHE—_E—RE+_A=1+—RHILEE Note: Included contingent rental income of HK$12,739,000 (2015: HK$15,567,000) for
AT S U A 12,739,000 (=T —F the year ended 31 December 2016.

£ 115,567,000/ 7T) °
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7 FREH 7 INCOME TAX
(a) REEBRNABHRESR), (@) Income tax (credited)/charged to consolidated
BXIE : statement of profit or loss represents:

REABIR Current tax
B EATSEE ([ ERSHL])  Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax
EgE] ("cIr) (171,121) 675,239
THIBER ([ TG ER ) Net provision for Land Appreciation Tax
S ("LAT") (357,164) 817,738
TEIOHE Withholding tax 164,141 84,380
(364,144) 1,577,357
EERE Deferred tax
Tt = RNE S R Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 214,923 (334,285)
(149,221) 1,243,072
BEEBEAHE((RBEXHSE]) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands
LHASHEMMAARAD - NEBEH (the “BVI") and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any
ARMEBREZEERFAERENE income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands.
fAIFT1S L o
ARAEENBEENBRATIREEZEZ No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group's
T-RAFRZF-RFETZA=1+— Hong Kong subsidiaries did not earn any assessable profits subject to
B FE I ERIRERIASRE BT Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
SHHNERTET - WU EREEF] 2016.
SBIEL R -
T EEFTE B Ty iR AN S B A R BB The provision for CIT is based on the respective applicable CIT rates
B2 E e EHE AR B & A &9 48 B i on the estimated assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries within
AEMSHBERGTE  MZERE the Group as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
ToiR 1R A BIAERAFT 1S B4R Al R 33 Bl rules and regulations of the PRC. The applicable CIT rate was 25%
FeoHE_ZE—XR"F+-A=+—H for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 25%).

IFEERERCEMBHHERA25%
(ZE—FH%F :25%) °
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7 FB8%H e

(a)

(b)

BABERNFEHR(ER),
MXiE (8
REBMPFBEEEMEENDER
B EmMREmE AR HILER
JELA30% 2= 60% ) R HE R R BN 11
BEH - MARKERRG - LihEE
i Th i & Y 3 P15 OB R A 1R A
Y(BELHERERESH  EE
@gz}:&}ﬁﬁﬁé@%%%&@ﬁi)%
E o

AEBAR —_TENF-HA—HZR&
AR SR B A B R R B A E AR
EDIK - AEE—FEMNBARRS
BRMEES WA R HEREMED
S FORIRE AR R GANTRHIR -

FR - BB BR A B oK A
ER-FIN—8 - —HER=8 %
PIXRG L REMNESBEEHFZR
MIGHEERA  WENBEFEN
EMESH (AELEHRBEERS
468,458,000 7T ) K 1 Hb 3% (E 77 {5
% 711500,923,000 7T & 1,012,522,000

FTigst (%) B EREA
BRFHENSTRBAERNOT :

7
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Income tax (credited)/charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents: (Continued)

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group and investment
properties held by the Group in the PRC for sale, at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which
under the applicable regulations is calculated based on the proceeds
of sale of properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use right, borrowing costs and all qualified property
development expenditures.

Withholding taxes are levied on dividend distributions arising from
profit of the PRC subsidiaries within the Group earned after 1
January 2008, rental income earned and proceeds from the sale of
investment properties in the PRC by a Hong Kong subsidiary at the
applicable tax rates.

During the year, as a result of final tax settlement notices issued by
the respective PRC tax bureaus for phase 1, 2 and 3 of The Spring
Land — Shenzhen, Shenzhen Hidden Valley and Changzhou Fashion
Mark, a provision of CIT of $500,923,000 with corresponding
deferred tax assets of $468,458,000, and LAT of $1,012,522,000
made in previous years were reversed.

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense
and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

BRI AT 2 A Profit before taxation 754,364 2,296,823
BRI BN L ETE(IREI  Notional tax on profit before taxation,
ARl EERNEARERTE) calculated at the rates applicable to
the jurisdictions concerned 226,988 570,558
JEERTRIM AR 2 Effect of non-taxable income (6,205) (17,779)
AR R S s 2 Effect of non-deductible expenses 113,595 53,149
BB FEEARERTIBEEY  Effect of prior years' unrecognised tax
Tz losses utilised (9,343) (50,584)
RS ARERYRIEERE/F  Effect of unrecognised temporary
& differences now utilised (44,298) (7,542)
RE)VATIEE B MRERE R Effect of unused tax losses and
EERRTE temporary differences not recognised 236,120 148,959
RIBEEECHRAMEBRLR LR  Effect of unused tax losses and
ZHAREATIEEE L TR temporary differences recognised in
EEE prior years now derecognised - (165,782)
TEHFTS B Withholding tax - 6,714
TR EFR B AR FIIERZE  Deferred tax effect on LAT provision (241,812) (112,359)
T REN LAT
~LARTF E B AR — Over-provision in respect of
prior years (1,012,522) -
—Hth — Others 655,358 817,738
LARTAF E B AR Over-provision in respect of prior years (67,102) -
BERERER), /FX Actual income tax (credit)/expense (149,221) 1,243,072




REEREEERAR
194 ZT—NFIR

BF % R AR B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRABHEBIN  ABITTHIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 Bl 7 INCOME TAX (Continued)
() ERAEEHREERER (c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

RIEA BN R AR BEEEH
(BE) /B EEKDH RENODE
T -

BLEE SER
FERKE ARARAN
9B RERME
Depreciation
allowances  Unrealised

in excess gain on

of related  intra-group
depreciation transactions
T Tr

$1000 §000

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

HibEER EBAK
BROIE  ETERR ArEE
BER  HEBR L]

Temporary Fair value

differences  Accruals and adjustment

Revaluation on LAT  provision on Unused  on business
of properties  provision inventories  taxlosses combination Others
P T T T T T
$1000 §000 §000 §1000 §000 §1000

BUTEREENE Deferred tax arising

ERE: from;
RZZ-1% At 1 January 2015

-A-H 88,064 (17,146)
REETNG/ Charged(credited) to

(;FA) profit orloss 76710 14393
EfRE Exchange adjustments (4,230) 315

843,084 (710,762) (87,852) (40,163) 811,693 (11,170) 875,748

145,526 (112,359) (40,105) 7426 (360,927) 4,091 (334,285)
(42,806) 35,755 5260 1,580 (25178 374 (28930)

R-Z-1F At 31 December 2015
TZA=t-BK  and 1 January 2016

IZE

-A-A 91,504 (2,438)
RERDAR/  Charged/credited) to

(tA) profit or loss 19,261 -
WENBLR Acquisition of

subsidiaries - -

HENEBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - -
ER% Exchange adjustments (6,799) 158

945,804 (787366 (122,697) (31,157) 425,588 (6,705) 512,533
6,122 409,159 52,811 16,873 (288,398) (905) 214923

- - - (40,922) 103,771 - 62,849
(2032) - 10,205 39,630 (100,494) - (52,691)
(61,666) 33,022 5238 2,569 (18,147) 476 45,149)

RIE-1F At 31 December 2016
+zA=t-R 103,966 (2,280)

888,228 (345,185) (54,443) (13,007) 122,320 (7,134) 692,465

SAMBRARACTHERLIEL  Net deferred tax assets recognised in

HIEAEFE the consolidated statement of
financial position (424,444) (545,727)
FAMBEIRRRANCHERLEL  Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in
HIEAEFE the consolidated statement of
financial position 1,116,909 1,058,260

692,465 512,533
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7 B
(d) RERIELEHBEEE :

(e)

K 3 T B RRMBERIRAE
o -
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

AR SR ER Deductible temporary differences 379,777 439,656

KRERTRIEEE Unused tax losses

I O)) — Hong Kong (Note (i) 8,400 8,400

—FR B (B EGT)) — PRC (Note (ii)) 1,229,363 697,152
1,617,540 1,145,208

MRE

()  RIEROTWRBER  RBPTIAEBEL
REH

(i)  ARBBBIAEEAINEREEFELS
BIHE RS IFANERREF
ABPAREBER_T—LFE-T
——FHIRREIE -

P 70 AJ BB 8 R S K SR AR AR A R AT
RAREHEAIIRE R ER R AE A
MIAER - AR E W RS T B
AR AR E B E R RORE AR
HEREREERIREE

RERELEHEEE !

EMEHRBEREEHMABE -
PRERGCER -_ZTNEFE—A—
BiEFTELERBFRE P BRI EET
&2 BRI B BB N10% K TE
M (BRIERIEDSHESITRD)
MR=ZEENF—A—HAEEMNE
DIREF AR R AARZTEN - R
BhRREEESNTE LR LA
B0 HEPBEDE25% A L
EMEEREBBEERAIERE
BALl TZBES%ETABN
Ko AEBYEFEETHRAMNBSA
AIRZZETZNF—R—BEMES
£ 7F)291,836,000 L (=& — A F :
257,752,0007C ) {E B IR E TR 1H & &
# RERASEIEFZEHEAR
BIRR SR - WORTE AT B AR R8T

BNIRZERR

(e)

Notes:
(i) The unused tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.

(ii) The unused tax losses can be carried forward to offset against taxable profits
of subsequent years for up to five years from the year in which they arose.
The unused tax losses expired between 2017 and 2021.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses of certain
subsidiaries as it is not probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

The Corporate Income Tax Law and its implementation rules impose
a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement,
for dividends, distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its
immediate holding company outside the PRC for profits generated
beginning on 1 January 2008 and undistributed profits generated
prior to 1 January 2008 are exempt from such withholding tax.
According to the China-Hong Kong tax arrangement and its
relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the
“beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC enterprise is
entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%. The Group did not
provide for deferred tax liabilities on profits generated by certain of
its PRC subsidiaries after 1 January 2008 amounting to $291,836,000
(2015: $257,752,000) since the Group controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable
that these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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8 EEME 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BEEARFHENE3IMNER AR (HE Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
BEFFZERDRME2S - EFENEHE Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
NN Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

§id BUR
Eshe LU WS RIRGTEIEE ; Rfysft
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share-based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total payments
(Rz)
(Note)
i T T T T T
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HiES Executive directors
Bl Wong Chun Hong - 4,690 1,986 18 6,694 - 6,694
Yy N Li Yan Jie - 2,489 1,583 18 4,09 3,103 1193
KER Chen Feng Yang - 3,655 4,672 - 8,327 2,967 11,294
BN Wang Tian Ye - 3515 3,504 18 1,037 - 7,037
FHES Non-executive directors
i Xulei - - - - = = =
gEw Chiang Kok Sung Lawrence 276 - - - 276 289 565
SHERZE-EAS—B  Lee Sai Kai David (resigned on
) 1 September 2016) 175 - - 1 787 - 187
BUFiTEs Independent non-executive
directors
gan Cheng Yuk Wo 260 - - - 260 29 549
RIR W Si Zong 252 - - - 252 29 541
2ET Leung Kwong Choi 260 - - - 260 - 260
Brooke Charles Nicholas Brooke Charles Nicholas
(W=Z—"E+-A-H (resigned on 2 December 2016)
i) 49 - - - 494 8 581

2317 14,349 11,745 66 28,4711 1,024 35,501
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8 EEMEw 8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EELikn BEEL  RIGHEIER
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' ~ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Share-based

fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total payments 2015 Total

v T T R i T v
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
bty 4 Executive directors
Bl Wong Chun Hong - 6,578 2,676 18 9,272 66 9,338
e Li Yan Jie - 3818 1,626 - 5444 3,716 9,160
A5 Chen Feng Yang - 3424 3,960 - 7384 3320 10,704
IRB(R=E-1F Wang Tian Ye (appointed on
+TA-BEZH) 1 October 2015) - 977 600 3 1,580 973 2553
FHE(R=F-1F Lee Sai Kai David (re-Cesignated on
NA-REER 1 September 2015 and resigned
R-E-AEAS-AEL)  on ' September 2016) - 2164 1,416 1 3592 2 3612
78S Non-executive directors
HE(R-F-1F Xu Lei (appointed on
+A-BEZf) 1 October 2015) - - - - - - -
67 Chiang Kok Sung Lawrence 276 - - - 276 300 576
FE(R-T-1F Lee Sai Kai David (re-designated on
NA-BHELR 1 September 2015 and resigned
RZF-7EAB-BEL)  on! September 2016) 391 - - 6 397 - 397
BUFuGES Independent non-executive
directors
Lol Cheng Yuk Wo 260 - - - 260 319 579
ESIES Wu Si Zong 269 - - - 269 319 588
ZET(R-2-1F Leung Kwang Choi (appointed on
+A-REZD) 1 October 2015) 65 - - - 65 - 65
Brooke Charles Nicholas Brooke Charles Nicholas
(W=Z—E+-A=H (resigned on 2 December 2016)
BHE) 494 - - - 494 319 813
1,755 16,961 10,278 39 29,033 9352 38,385
MisE R ZHHERBAQARBRENERTES Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under
BN EEHEE - ZFBREEATIR the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
B2 RSB E@RN IR 58 according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions
BETBORETE - ERBZECGE - ZEBEBE as set out in note 2(t)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments
HREBATGZ MM AT AR ERTF to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
EIERTFIER AR are forfeited prior to vesting.
ZERAHFB(BREXEKARER LR The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and

ARBESR B ) B B M EE27 © number of options granted, are disclosed in note 27.
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9 BREFMAL
(a) ZEBEHMAL

AEZBESFMALTESR =& (==
—hF  ZR)EENFHE BN

8 - R ATHFMAREMT -

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Five highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2015:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals
are as follows:

e R NEYEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,387 3,219
BIETEAT Discretionary bonuses 7,359 5,908
IRRETEIHER Retirement scheme contributions 8 -
B& 1D S 1+ Share-based payments 3,887 3,909

14,641 13,036

bt EEEMA TEFH AR AT

$6,000,001-$6,500,000
$6,500,001-$7,000,000
$7,000,001-$7,500,000
$7,500,001-$8,000,000

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

$6,000,001 - $6,500,000
$6,500,001 - $7,000,000
$7,000,001 - $7,500,000
$7,500,001 - $8,000,000

g%
2016

A
Number of
individuals

1

—T—hfF
2015

AEL
Number of
individuals
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9 BEHEALTwe 9

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Emoluments of senior management
Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed in notes 8 and 9(a), the emoluments of the
remaining senior management fell within the following bands:

(b) BREIRE K
5 M R O(e) BT BB 3 B A R 5
BEFHALI - ABHRE2E
SRR -

—E—RF —E—RF

2016 2015

A8 AEL

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

07t —500,0007T $Nil — $500,000 1 2
500,0017t— 1,000,0007T $500,001 — $1,000,000 1 -
1,000,0017t—1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1 1
2,500,0017T —3,000,0007T $2,500,001 — $3,000,000 2 1
3,000,0017T—3,500,0007T $3,000,001 - $3,500,000 - 3
3,500,0017T—4,000,0007T $3,500,001 - $4,000,000 2 -

—

4,500,0017T —5,000,0007T $4,500,001 - $5,000,000

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$866,428,000 (2015: HK$773,443,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,421,198,000 shares (2015: 1,414,035,000
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

10 SRER
(a) BRELRZBRF
TRIRERBFIE AN B IR R
£217866,428,0008 L (ZF—HF ¢
773,443,000/ 7T) R F A B #EITRD
hniEFE AL E1,421,198,0000% (==
—F4F :1,414,035,0000) 5t & :

IEEE I AR B Weighted average number of shares
BEEITERR Issued ordinary shares 1,181,433 1,160,734
AT REAE M4 N5k A Effect of share options exercised and

IR AT AR B 5 ([ kA bonus perpetual subordinated

AHES & convertible securities (“PCSs")

converted 1,212 9,964

BATHAR (S —E B RKA Effect of bonus issue of shares

AIARFE A ) MR & (with PCSs as an alternative) 238,553 243,337
R+—A=+—B&8mMEFEY  Weighted average number of shares at

PR 31 December 1,421,198 1,414,035
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10 SRERN @)
(b) BREBEEF
GRS BRI A R S R (R T
B R T AR () - 5t
BT

() A2FESZRREGRT(BE)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share is based on the adjusted profit
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares (diluted), calculated as follows:

() PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (DILUTED)

AR RS R BN BT

AJARESFE

RA AR EIR
BRENALEBEED

BITAHRRERELER
R SHE R

BT BRRESELERN
=g

Profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 866,428 773,443
Interest on convertible bonds 177,931 -
Fair value change on conversion option

embedded in convertible bonds (149,425) -
Unamortised loss arising from the

issuance of convertible bonds (218,633) -
Amortisation of loss arising from

the issuance of convertible bonds 67,498 -

R IR B A (H5F)

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders (diluted) 743,799 773,443

()  nEEFIRR B ()

(1) WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES (DILUTED)

ANt T A ER
BVERIEA R RIRB AR ST 2
NEREBITRDOZE

BB AR B

=47
FE

Weighted average number of shares 1,421,198 1,414,035
Effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company’s share option

schemes for nil consideration 10,123 10,959
Effect of deemed conversion of
convertible bonds 356,827 -

R+ A=1+—HaymiE Weighted average number of shares

Tk (EE)

(diluted) at 31 December 1,788,148 1,424,994
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1"

7 BB
AEEBIRBERB RS (Em RRF) 85
MWD EMEREER - ARBEIZRBRTARK
SEERETREREABRSANERLEK
ERKRAFHWAFERNTH - 254
ThERS D - BELEDBEHFAE
VARBRC T 215 0 &6 o

— MEBR ZAOBHBLREEER
2y -

— YERE: ZoRBELERNS |
P MEALNBRESELRNES
WAL R RO ETHED & - A
SEBARBHIREMEAS 2R
°

— BIEEE: ZNMEEEE  RAR

TRAEIE RS

— VEEBENBERE  Z0HTIER
AEENBBECRBEERTEYE
MERRHEFPREMEEE RARR
% AR REEARRMEER -

— BEMMRERE 2o SRR REMH
BR LRI -

11

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by
business lines (product and services). In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

—  Property development: this segment develops and sells residential
and retail properties.

—  Property investment: this segment leases shopping arcades, club
houses, serviced apartments and car park units to generate rental
income and to gain from the appreciation in the properties’ values in
the long term. Currently, the Group's investment property portfolio is
located entirely in the PRC.

—  Hotel operations: this segment operates hotels to provide hotel
services to general public.

—  Property management and related services: this segment mainly
provides property management and related services to purchasers
and tenants of the Group’s self-developed residential and retail
properties, and decoration services to group companies.

—  Medical and healthcare services: this segment provides medical and
healthcare services to general public.
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11 DEHRE @)

(a)

TERE - EERAR
M%ﬁ“%%ﬁ&%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%

CAKENEETRERAS
EMT%ﬁﬁﬁm#%%%EEm%
e AERAME:

DEHEEBRREHBNEE - FRY

BERRBEE  ERBEATRE
EhENER  REERE BN

M EERAEENEMPREE
(ﬁ%f&ﬁ&%%”%ﬁ%%%%)
BRSO - D EPRE B E R D B E
THEEIEHE B R E MR ﬁu&
DEEEREENRITMEAMESR -

WA&%&@F%%%%E%WWA
KX RERED R

WEDHRFFANTER ERIKE
JQ%%EBITDAJ BT HBRFE ~ B8 -
EREECHERFR ] ARl
EREE WG ACBIERRDEE
KB (EETIE o ot & [ 45X F9EEEBITDA
B AEEMABNSHIELE S
W EERATE B B A E B o B TE B (10
FEMREEE DT R A L0 ¥ BN E
B(HEERRBRESHBE@BER

ON) B R MEs B EIRE
BREMERDBAFIELENREY

EOHEZE AR E AR sk bR
SOVEE— -

BrERAS A A4S S EEEBITDARY 7 BF & £
%‘%ﬁﬁ%k1ﬁ@%k(ﬂ%
HEEE)  DEEEETEMNRS
MEEENFSBARRE ﬁ%&
B FERE  ERBDEERSH
REFELHENHERENREERE -
WEWEGHEZS 2EAFERE
R EME R D F RN E 2 ER TG
IERBOIEEMNDIER o

HERBREEERAT

ZENEFR

(a)

11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segments assets include all tangible, non-current and current assets
with the exception of interest in associates and joint ventures,
investments in financial assets, prepaid tax, deferred tax assets
and other corporate assets (other than those related to medical
and healthcare services segment). Segment liabilities include trade
and other payables attributable to the operating activities of the
individual segments and bank and other borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenues generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted EBITDA”

e. "adjusted earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive
at “adjusted EBITDA", the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items which are non-recurring or not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures (other than those related to medical
and healthcare services segment). Other revenue and net income/
loss, valuation change on investment properties and investment
properties classified as held for sale, and other head office or
corporate expenses.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings managed directly
by the segments, depreciation and amortisation, provision on
inventories, impairment losses on non-current assets and disposal
group classified as held for sale, valuation changes on investment
properties and investment properties classified as held for sale and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.
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11 HE;|E ) 11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) PEEBE - EBERERBHE) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
KEEF » AEBFRED M AER Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
EEBTHEREABMEREARE to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
BECE RHE D M RIBHERFHY of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for
T e the year is set out below.

—E-®F 2015
NEERR BER
NEERE NERA BIE2E 1A RERH
Property
management Medical and
Property Property Hotel and related healthcare
development investment operations Services Services
T R T i i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RENREPHBA Revenue from external customers 9,988,246 323,686 55,671 152,086 - 10,519,689
AHBUA Inter-segment revenue - 41,261 - 146,858 - 188,119
HEIBUA Reportable segment revenue 9,988,246 364947 55,671 298,944 - 107073808
BESHBERN/(B8)  Reportable segment profit/(loss)

(S 3BEEBITDA) (adjusted EBITDA) 2,393,351 140,267 1,457 (61,925) (5472) 2,467,678
2L ON Interest income from bank deposits 80,352 2,190 - 1,245 1 83,788
MERX Interest expenses (470,386) (38,618) - (336) - (509,340)
FRITEREH Depreciation and amortisation

for the year (25,622) (2,529) (24,115) (1,576) - (53,842)
GFERE Provision on inventories (314,994) - - - - (314,994)
RENERDEEFE(E  Valuation gains on investment
HENRENEN properties and investment
B properties classified as
held for sale - 458,981 - - - 458,981
BEADEE Reportable segment assets 22,995,148 9,003,574 274,697 145,847 25,251 32,444 517

FRFEERGHHEE  Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year 9,657 40,236 121 2,022 - 52,036

RENDEE Reportable segment liabilities (18,850,627) (1,528,923) (12,778) (95,539) (24575 (20,512,442)
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11 BEHE ) 11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(a) PHEBE -EBEERERB®E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
—E—-REF 2016
NEEBR BER
NERR NERE BREE RER® RERH
Property
management  Medical and
Property Property Hotel  and related healthcare
development investment operations services services
n n n n T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REIREPHIA Revenue from exteral customers 5,028,519 277,958 63,758 188,496 - 5,558,731
AEHEMA Inter-seqment revenue - 49,016 - 105,794 - 154,810
BEBUA Reportable segment revenue 5,028,519 326,974 63,758 294,290 - 5,713,541

HEABEA/(BE)  Reportable segment profit/(loss)

({&5HZERITDA) (adjusted EBITDA) 249,183 175,987 3,037 (32,859) (3,029) 392,319
RATEHFERA Interest income from bank deposits 56,621 3219 = 1,154 1 61,055
SRR Interest expenses (651338) (22,751) - (5,325) - (679414)
FRITEREH Depreciation and amortisation

for the year (15,222) (5,417) (22,800) (1,129 (9 (44,577)
FERE Provision on inventories (26,490) - - - - (26,490)
FEEEAR Reversal of provision on inventories 80,147 = = = - 80,147
DEBRELEMTESE  Impaiment loss on disposal group

BRESE classified as held for sale (179,217) - = = = (179,217)
REMERDEEFE(E  Valuation gains on investment

HENRENEN properties and investment

BEYE properties classified as

held for sale - 436,025 - - - 436,025
BENDEE Reportable segment assets 16,957,936 7,259,049 251,144 193,048 190305 24,851,482

FERFLETHNPEE  Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year 11,242 122,553 846 995 - 135,636

BEAHEE Reportable segment liabilities (14,762,913) (402,087) (12,736) (252,298) (2788)  (15432822)
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11

DEERE ()

(b) MESHUA B - BEER

BENYR

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

11 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

WA Revenue
WED A Reportable segment revenue 5,713,541 10,707,808
D EPEY A Elimination of inter-segment revenue (154,810) (188,119)
fr e WA (BEE3) Consolidated revenue (Note 3) 5,558,731 10,519,689
EZR Profit
REAREBINARBEEHRE Reportable segment profit derived from
DEPEF Group's external customers 392,319 2,467,678
FE{REEZ N BIESTE Share of losses of associates (6,037) (49,820)
EihEaE R Share of losses of joint ventures (474) (6,997)
HMA R ias 1R E Other revenue and net income/loss 927,055 112,101
e NN Depreciation and amortisation (46,001) (56,281)
BhE AN Finance costs (679,414) (509,340)
KREMERDEAZIERER  Valuation gains on investment
REMEN G ERE properties and investment properties

classified as held for sale 436,025 458,981
AOBBIRTERY Unallocated head office and

corporate expenses (269,109) (119,499)
SAEBTBIAT Consolidated profit before taxation 754,364 2,296,823
BE Assets
WEDEEE Reportable segment assets 24,851,482 32,444,517
REEE N R Interest in associates 87,718 21,095
REETENER Interest in joint ventures 225,822 229,901
HivemEE Other financial assets 105,022 277,844
FEfTELIE Prepaid tax 133,295 283,132
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 424,444 545,727
ROMBHLREEEE Unallocated head office and

corporate assets 199,252 153,221
MAEBEE Consolidated total assets 26,027,035 33,955,437
aE Liabilities
wmENITEE Reportable segment liabilities (15,432,822) (20,512,442)
FERT R IE Tax payable (2,286,283) (4,830,203)
EERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities (1,116,909) (1,058,260)
ROMBHEREEAE Unallocated head office and

corporate liabilities (355,875) (251,657)
HAMMAE Consolidated total liabilities (19,191,889) (26,652,562)

(c) HEESHR

RRARE LR REORF

T MU HbERER o

(c) Geographic information
No geographic information has been presented as the Group’s
operating activities are largely carried out in the PRC.
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12 REYE - HtexE - BER
RIBUREQY L b

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND

Interests in
leasehold
land held

Investment Furniture, for own
properties Other fixtures Use Under
Investment under Hotel ~ landand  and other operating
properties development  Sub-total  properties  buildings  fixed assets  Sub-total leases
T T S S T T S T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RAGE: Cost or valuation:

\“E-1%5-A-H At 1 January 2015 8,210,763 1,087,908 9,298,671 449,349 80,5% 195,138 725,083 6,858 10,030,612
ERaE Exchange adjustments (313,286)  (49.226)  (362512)  (19,846) (3591) 8737)  (32,174) (310)  (394,99)
AE Additions 6,675 33,381 40,056 nl 555 11,910 12,586 - 52,602
WEHBAA Acquisition of subsiciaries - - - - - 3N 37 - 377
BT Redlassification - - - - (2,265 2,265 - - -
BA20RANE Transfer to investment properties

HERENE classified as held for sale (2,166,475) - (2166,475) - - - - - (2166,475)
et Disposals (35,632) - (35,632) - (19 (4,505) (4524) - (40,156)
s Surplus on revaluation 375307 (33381) 341926 - - - - - 34196
RZF-1% At 31 December 2015

+-h=1-H 607735 1038682 7116034 429,624 75206 196448 701,348 6,548 7823930
g Representing:

Bk Cost - - - 4962 75206 196448 701,348 6,548 707,8%
B Valuation 6,077,352 1038682 7,116,034 - - - - - 7,116,034
607735 1038682 7116034 429,624 75206 196448 701,348 6,548 7823930
ZiTEY FER Accumulated amortisation,
HERE: depreciation and
impairment losses:
RZZ-1E-f-H At 1 January 2015 - - - 154,548 20,753 124,644 299,945 2,528 302473
e Exchange adjustments - - - (7,274) (1,051) 6,118) (14443 (122) (14,565
ERTH Charge for the year - - - 2,115 3457 29499 57,071 261 57332
HERERD Written back on disposals - - - - - (3315 (3,319) - (3315
R-F-1F At 31 December 2015

+ZA=1+-A - - - IN389 B159 144710 33928 2667 341,925

REFE: Net book value:
RZZ-1% At 31 December 2015
TZA=1-H 607735 1038682 7116034 258235 52,117 51,738 362,000 3881 7,482,005
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12 REY¥ - Ht% - BEER 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
REBURBELO LR o) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

HEsE

Hhtsh BRNERN

BENE REF E it
Interests in

|easehold

land held

Investment Furniture, for own
properties Other fixtures use under
Investment under Hotel  landand  and other operating
properties development Sub-total properties  buildings fixed assets  Sub-total leases

T T T T fr fr T T

§'000 §'000 §000 §'000 §'000 §000 §'000 §'000

HASME Cost or valuation:
R=E-~"%-A-A At 1 January 2016 6077352 1,038,682 7,116,034 429,624 75,276 196,448 701,348 6,548 7,823,930
EHSEE Exchange adjustments (#16,079)  (71,883)  (487,962)  (28,409) (5395  (12,406)  (46,210) (426)  (534,598)
T Additions UM 99,037 123,808 846 36 13,259 14141 - 137,949
WEHBAT Acquisition of subsiciaries 971,406 - 971406 - - 1221 121 - 96
BARHRANE Transfer to investment properties
HELENE classified as held for sale (1,128,575) - (1,128,575 - - - - - (1,128575)
ERERE Transfer from inventories 170,643 - 170,643 - - - - - 170,683
HENBAR Disposal of subsidiaries (941,709) - (941,709 - - (14,450) (14,450) - (956,159)
ik Disposals - - - - - (3.380) (3:380) = (3.380)
el Surplus on revaluation 20,265 %0 2251 - - - - - msts
RIZ-1E At 31 December 2016
T-F=1+-H 4,980,074 1,066,086 6,046,160 402,061 69,917 180,692 652,670 6122 6,704,952
0 Representing:
[ Cost - - - 402,061 69,917 180,692 652,670 6,122 658,792
e Valuation 4,980,074 1,066,086 6,046,160 - - - - - 6,046,160
4,980,074 1,066,086 6,046,160 402,061 69,917 180,692 652,670 6122 6,704,952
2HEY  FER Accumulated amortisation,
BEEE: depreciation and
impairment losses:
RZE—"E-f-H At 1 January 2016 - - - 171,389 23,159 144,710 339,258 2,667 341,925
ERa% Exchange adjustments - - - (12,604) (1,654) (9,540)  (23,798) (184)  (23,982)
ERTH Charge for the year - - - 22,800 3,368 20,515 46,683 248 46,931
LEHBAREAR Written back on disposal of
subsidiaries - - - - - (10,475)  (10,475) - (10,475)
HERER Written back on disposals - - - - - (2406)  (2406) - (2.406)
RIE—F At 31 December 2016
L T_Z_ﬂ ;j'_—_ﬁ o - - - 181,585 24,813 142,804 349,262 2,731 351,993
BEFE Net book value:
RIZ-E At 31 December 2016

+ZA=+-H 4980074 1,066,086 6,046,160 220476 45,044 37,888 303,408 3391 6,352,959
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12 BREYXE s HYyXE - ER 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REUREN T HER PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

() REVME - BRPREMER (@) Fair value measurement of investment properties,
PTHEABEHEREVEND investment properties under development and
AREEFE investment properties classified as held for sale
() 2AREESHR () FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

TREVAREFBIREME - BR The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment

RIREMER S BABIELER properties, investment properties under development and

EVERREPRLEE ARER investment properties classified as held for sale measured at the

HEEFENAREE - WIRRA end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into

BAMBHREENE I3 the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair

BEAENEES R=EXILE value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement

BEER - DER R EBEFEHR is classified is determined with reference to the observability and

AT R E T AR B A significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

HERM BRI MEEMETE I follows:

T

- EHE:EFERE— - Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
T ABBENANE inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
B - BRI = A HIfE )& 2 identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date
mZEEREELAEBR

- FoAEE:FRE_MK -~ Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
BASEBIFENRAAE inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
B B RREeEE—Hfma 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
BIRm ABELRAEHRA Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
TAIEENEEZ{ AR not available

& THBERABET
BEZEMETHSEROE

AR

— B=RHEE: ERTAH - Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
RN EZHARBTED unobservable inputs
NR(EE

DREERE

HAREE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 December 2015 categorised into
31 December F—R F_R
2015 Level 1 Level 2
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
ERUEDRBENE Recurring fair value
measurement
REMER Investment properties and
BREPRENE investment properties
under development 7,116,034 - - 7,116,034
PERRBELE Investment properties
BEME(ME21) classified as held for sale

(note 21) 1,216,821 - - 1,216,821
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12 REYE - HthY%¥ - BER
BREURBY L ER )

() REYX - BRIPREWER
TEAFELEREWEND
REEFEE)

N 2REESKRGE)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (cContinued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties,
investment properties under development and
investment properties classified as held for sale
(Continued)

() FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

RIB-—AE R=B-AE+ZA=t-H
+=A=t+-H AREBEARIER
HAREE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 December 2016 categorised into
31 December £—R ot =&
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
mEURAEENE Recurring fair value
measurement
REMER Investment properties and
BRPRENE investment properties
under development 6,046,160 - - 6,046,160
NEABELE Investment properties

BEME(ME21) classified as held for sale

(note 21)

663,104 = - 663,104

HEZZ—R"F+ZA=1—H
WHFER  F—REE-H M
WHEEY - TARBE=RNEA
YEL(ZE—AF  \) - A%
E R BOR R RS ERR AR
EHESEE RN AR EBESRZ
IR -

AEBEMARENE  BRTE
BEMERDBERBIELENRE
MER-_T—RE+_A=1—
RESEMGE - HEIIEHEEL
BIEMITEBRIT (A AR
RITAR AR LT - ZBIEED
TMRTIZHERBAEMEE
g8 HiHnbEgheis
Pt ERE Y B R — R
BRI - BERMEREEE
17 AEBERENSHHREF
E¥hE BT HERGEER
R EEREZ S ERETT

BEC

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group's investment properties, investment properties
under development and investment properties classified as held
for sale were revalued as at 31 December 2016. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, DTZ
Cushman & Wakefield (formerly known as DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited), who have among their staff Members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued, on a market
value basis. Management of the Group has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.
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12 REYE - HtexE - BER
REBEUREN RS

(a) REMX  BEPREUER

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (cContinued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties,

PEAFFEHEREYEND investment properties under development and
REEFTEE) investment properties classified as held for sale
(Continued)
() BREE=ZRAAEETENER (N INFORMATION ABOUT LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS
feBR % TABERAEE METLHE
Valuation Unobservable Weighted
techniques input average
REMERDEREE WABR )% st ineoriika ARE29LE ARE151T
HERENE Income (ARET/ ARBEANT (Z2—1%F:
Investment properties and capitalisation FH*/A) (ZT—RF: AR#1567T)
investment properties classified as method Expected ARE30TE RMB151
held for sale market rental ARB6407T) (2015: RMB156)
(RMB/sq.m./month) RMB29 to RMB411
(2015: RMB30 to
RMB640)
BAREE 3.5%%8.5% 6.6%
Capitalisation (ZZ-A%F: (ZZ—1F:
rate 3.8%%8.5%) 5.7%)
35% t085% 6.6%
(2015: 3.8% to (2015: 5.7%)
8.5%)
BERLERE THmE - AR#54,0137L
Direct  (ARBT/FHK) (ZZ-8fF:
comparison Average AR#51,7007T)
method market price RMB54,013
(RMB/sq.m.) (2015: RMB51,700)
BRPRENE EREERZE THmE - AE#4,9437T
Investment properties under development Direct (AR FEHK) (ZZ—RfF:
comparison Average AR#4,9507T)
method market price RMB4,943
(RMB/sg.m.) (2015: RMB4,950)

REME  BRPREMELD
BRFHFLENREMENAR
BEDEBRABRMOENE
EHBUREBKES WA SR
(EMBMEEHFEBAEN)ER
1t FREBF I REBERELSE
ATLEB Y AT I - RIR%
SNHHEFEAREMERE
E (B ITRMEE © FTEMm
B RERETHE R RIME
NRBFEREHAR - RAE
Bt &R AT M SHEE AR
mEE AR EHE -

The fair value of investment properties, investment properties
under development and investment properties classified as
held for sale is determined using income capitalisation method
or direct comparison method by capitalising the net rental
income allowing for the reversionary income potential of the
properties, or by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square meter basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's
properties compared to the recent sales. The valuation takes
into account expected market rental of the properties. The
capitalisation rates used have been adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings and the tenant quality. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the expected market
rental and average market price, and negatively correlated to
the capitalisation rate.
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12 REYE - HthY%¥ - BER
BREURBY L ER )

() REYX - BRIPREWER
TEAFELEREWEND
REEFEE)

(m

EME=RAABEBORN
()
RBE=F—AFT=A=+—
AILERRN - RSE=RARE
B EOEREBOT

TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (cContinued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties,
investment properties under development and
investment properties classified as held for sale
(Continued)

() INFORMATION ABOUT LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
The movements during the year ended 31 December 2016 in
the balances of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

KEYELE Investment properties and investment

BRPKEYFE properties under development
®n—AR—H At 1 January 7,116,034 9,298,671
FE 3, 8% Exchange adjustments (487,962) (362,512)
NE Additions 123,808 40,056
Uk BE T B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 971,406 -
HeE Disposals - (35,632)
HERE AR Disposal of subsidiaries (941,709) -
ERAEE Transfer from inventories 170,643 -
RS DR REE Transfer to investment properties

HEREME classified as held for sale (1,128,575) (2,166,475)
BaRERER Valuation gains recognised in

HEBZE profit or loss 222,515 341,926
R+—-—A=+—H At 31 December 6,046,160 7,116,034
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12 REYE HhW%¥ - BER
BREURBY L ER )

(a) REMX BRIPREVER
TEAFELEREWEND
REEFEE)

FRE=RRIABENENER
(#&)

(m

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties,
investment properties under development and
investment properties classified as held for sale
(Continued)

() INFORMATION ABOUT LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

SEERBIFIE Investment properties classified as

HEREYZE held for sale
n—A—H At 1 January 1,216,821 -
[E 57, A% Exchange adjustments (57,044) (40,222)
B Additions 505 162
k= Disposals (1,839,263) (1,026,649)
BRI EME Transfer from investment properties 1,128,575 2,166,475
B IRER S Valuation gains recognised in

il EdE (f5E21) profit or loss (note 21) 213,510 117,055
R+ZA=+—8H At 31 December 663,104 1,216,821

BREME - BRTPREVEED
BARKELENREDENAA
BEFABENGAERR LN
EMERDBERBIELENRE
YR HEYW S T8 B PRER o

Fair value adjustment of investment properties, investment
properties under development and investment classified as
held for sale is recognised in the line item “valuation gains on
investment properties and investment properties classified as
held for sale” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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12 BEYE - BWE - BER 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REUREN T HER PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTEREST IN
LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)
(b) MEMNKREFESNUOT : (b) The analysis of net book value of the properties is as
follows:

TR In the PRC
—AREIFED — under long leases 2,133,456 3,095,021
— AFRERFRA — under medium-term leases 4,181,615 4,335,246
6,315,071 7,430,267
() RELLHEHEHENEEEE (c) Assets leased out under operating leases
AEBEBRECEHEHHELIEFTHR The Group leases out a number of building facilities under operating
e ZEME—ROTREA—Z+H leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 15 years,
F o WEEERRABGERENHE with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all
2 BizEE - terms are renegotiated.
N & ERFEEAMAEA/FE All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
REVMETERNMEME  HEHHE the definition of investment property are classified as investment
RIEYE - property.
REBBRBEIIHBLEHENARE The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
FEUH AR S RIBARZELA T cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—FR Within 1 year 186,289 278,366
—FRERAFUARN After 1 year but within 5 years 377,690 614,113
hFE After 5 years 141,797 266,471
705,776 1,158,950
(d) ~&EEOEFTRENE  BEMEN (d) The Group’s certain investment properties, hotel properties and
R H A+ 3 R A F 2 M IR ARG R other land and buildings were pledged to secure bank loans, details

TER - BEFBHANE23 - of which are set out in note 23.
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13 KRB ARMKRE 13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
TREHWFEZERERELSE - BENK The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
BENNBRARGS - BB AHEN - BT principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
BN EENAERR of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

e d b
mf}é’g% Proponiofiﬁffzrs}ﬁjp interest
MREAEE
Place of BEIR
incorporation/ ARRA/ AEEN m-H
establishment TMessE ENEz  BAAE KELF
and operation  Particulars of issued Group's <2 BB
WEARERE and type of and paid-up capital/  effective Heldbythe Heldbya TEX#
Name of subsidiary legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Top Spring Real Estate (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. e 653,060,0007C 100% - 100% WEFRREE
FEERHEMNERAR) PRC® $653,060,000 Property development and
investment
Shenzhen SZITIC Property Development Co,, Ltd. ~ HE* AR #3,500,000,0007T 100% - 100%  REER NEEEREE
(RUNREIRFHEREERAR) PRC* RMB3,500,000,000 Investment holding, property

development and investment

Changzhou Top Spring Water Flower Property AR 90,000,000%7T 100% - 100% MEZFERRE
Development Co., Ltd. PRCE US$90,000,000 Property development and
(BNFEE I DEHEREERAR) investment

Shenzhen City Hua Long Property Development FIE * AE50,000,0007T 100% - 100% WEZFERRE
Co., Ltd. PRC* RMB50,000,000 Property development and
(RUMEEFHEREERAR) investment

Dongguan SZITIC Property Development Co,, Ltd. ~ # ¥ AR#20,000,0007T 100% - 100% WEZERRE
(BEMARREHEREERAR) PRC* RMB20,000,000 Property development and

investment

Shenzhen Water Flower Property Co., Ltd. AR * ARE331,384,0217C 100% - 100% WEZFERRE
(Y mKETEBREER L) PRC* RMB331,384,021 Property development and

investment

Changzhou Top Spring Landmark Real Estate FE 60,000,000 T 100% - 100% MEZERRE
Co., Ltd. PRC* 1S$60,000,000 Property development and

(BMNFEEHLEEEARAA) investment



21 5 TOP SPRING INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

501 75 i 2% B =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B BHEBIN - ETLIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13 RHEBATNERE @) 13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
o gt fl
AYRERLH ProportioTi%ffners?ﬁL interest
UREAER
Place of BRTR
incorporation/ BERE/  AZEH B-8
establishment HMErHE ERER  BAAR WEAF
and operation  Particulars of issued Group's BA <2
WEAR B and type of and paid-up capital/  effective Heldbythe Heldbya FEX#
Name of subsidiary legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Top Spring Realty (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. g 18,750,000% 7 100% - 100% MEREREE
FEEZ (B ERAR) PRC* US$18,750,000 Property development and
investment
Top Spring International (Yuhang) Landmark Co., Ltd. fE# 10,000,000 7T 100% - 100% WEEFRREE
FREER (RN EEERAR) PRC* US$10,000,000 Property development and
investment
Tianjin Hyperion Construction Co., Ltd. R AE%50,000,0007C 58% - 58% MEEEREE
(R2EEERRERAR) PRC* RMB50,000,000 Property development and
investment
Tianjin Hyperion Investment Development Co., Ltd. ~ HE* AR100,000,0007T 58% - 58% MEREREE
(REREERERRBERAF) PRC* RMB100,000,000 Property development and
investment
Tianjin Jin Jun Investment Development Co., Ltd. B ARHT5,000,0007 58% - 58% MEREREE
(REREREZRERAF) PRC* RMB75,000,000 Property development and
investment
Nanchang Top Spring Real Estate Co., Ltd. R AE800,000,0007C 70% - 0% MEREREE
(BERZEEBRAF) PRC? RMB800,000,000 Property development and
investment
Nanjing Top Spring Water Flower Property i AE#50,000,00070 100% - 100% WEERRRE
Development Co., Ltd. PRC* RMB50,000,000 Property development and

([FERRE B DEHEREERAR) investment
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13 RHBATINIEE @) 13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
— ARSI
mfi = Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ Proportion of ownership interest
WUREAER
Place of ERTR
incorporation/ BERE/ AEEH H-8
establishment HMessE ERER  BALAF KELF
and operation  Particulars of issued Group's 2] 2]
WEARER and type of and paid-up capital/  effective Heldbythe Heldbya FEX#%
Name of subsidiary legal entity registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Nanjing Top Spring Real Estate Co., Ltd. e AR300,000,0007T 100% - 100% MEFRREE
(ERRZEEBRAA) PRC* RMB300,000,000 Property development and
investment
Hangzhou Lai Shui Property Development Co, Ltd. s AEH50,000,0007 100% - 100% DEEERRIRE
(AMFKEHERZEERAR) PRC* RMBS50,000,000 Property development and
investment
Shenzhen Yongfengyuan Culture Development e 13 80% - 80% MELRLLE
Co,, Ltd. PRC* 1 share Property development and
(RYImKEREERRERLE) investment
Shenzhen Zhong Yi Ming Hao Real Estate e AR50,000,0007T 80% - 80% MEREREE
Development Ltd. PRC* RMB50,000,000 Property development and
(AT asEEEREERAE) investment
MSREF Century Palace (Residential) Limited B/ HEH 1R 70% - 70%  MERE
[ERTAFIEHEESHLZE(DE) Hong Kong/PRC 1 share Property investment
BIRAE) (Note) (fit3E)
MizE : ARRIEEMB AR - WIEERLTAFER Note: An indirect subsidiary of the Company and not a member of the Morgan Stanley
REARISBEEENEMES - group of companies or any fund they manage.
# INEBERE # Wholly foreign-owned enterprise
a PINEBERGDEERE a Sino-foreign equity joint venture

* BRAR * Limited liability company
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13 AMBARINIRE ) 13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
TR EHAEENBRAREERS The following table lists out the information relating to Nanchang Top
¥ ERRALHGEEERABINER - Spring Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BE% 5 E B A R]) and Shine Rise
REZEFRRIEBEREERER - T2 International Limited, subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
MBS AR E B S E QR MEE controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial information presented
BRI B RE © below represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

EiERERERA R HEREEXARAT

Shine Rise Nanchang Top Spring

International Limited Real Estate Co., Ltd.
—T—RF —E-—X —T-REF
2015 2015
T T
$'000 $'000
FEE R IR L {71 NCI percentage 30% 30% 30% 30%
REEE Current assets 949,682 1,957,403 2,451,153 3,154,653
FERBEE Non-current assets 318 1,033,714 1,931,301 2,301,795
BB E Current liabilities (519,550)  (2,149,250)  (1,468,184)  (2,569,379)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (212,250) (538,725) (356,793) (404,944)
BEFE Net assets 218,200 303,142 2,557,477 2,482,125
R EREEE Carrying amount of NCI 65,460 90,943 767,243 744,638
A Revenue 34,181 93,127 1,379,560 3,910,515
FE(E8B)/BF (Loss)/profit for the year (20,939) 253,186 247,588 876,566
E A% Total comprehensive income (84,942) 155,796 75,352 771,100

DB P IR A (Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

(E518),/ & (6,282) 75,956 74,276 262,970

RFEHERER S M RRE Dividend paid to NCI - - - _

KEFEMERENE Cash flows from operating activities (469,591) (479,043) 337,056 666,180
BEFZESAEHRENE Cash flows from investing activities 1,570,854 1,138,159 53,489 (171,657)

METEMERERE Cash flows from financing activities (1,218,622) (546,306) (326,614) (1,207,786)
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14 BENTER 14 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

BIEEEFE Share of net assets 58,515 21,095
FEU —[EEE & A RIFUR Amount due from an associate 29,203 -
87,718 21,095
FiEME AT EEMARIELE - EMEM All of the associates are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market
HHRE o prices are not available.
(ERIZEE ZH & AR BREER Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

fERIFEE ZHEE N A Aggregate carrying amount of
?JFQ%?%?&%%E’]EEE%@{E individually immaterial associates in
the consolidated financial statements 87,718 21,095
ANEBREIGZEHE NFE5E Aggregate amounts of the Group's
share of those associates’
FEEIE Loss for the year (6,037) (49,820)
Hip 2wk Other comprehensive income (4,471) (6,046)

2HEWNEREE Total comprehensive income (10,508) (55,866)
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15 REELENER 15 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

E(EEEFE Share of net assets 225,822 51,497
Bl —HeEERE Amount due from a joint venture - 179,083
225,822 230,580
RZZE—RF+=-_A=+—8 " EK—FMH The amount due from a joint venture as at 31 December 2015 was
SEPENTEREER  REFESE unsecured, interest-bearing at 5.1% or 16.5% per annum and has no
% 16.5E B BN EEF RN o ZER fixed terms of repayment. The balance was recovered during the year.
NG EID
FTBRAENENALFTARERE e All of the joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
TSHE - market prices are not available.
BERPEEBAELEMERER Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually material:

ERIZEEZ R A ERAT TSI Aggregate carrying amount of

REBREAE individually immaterial joint ventures in
the consolidated financial statements 225,822 51,497
AEBELZEAEEAE Aggregate amounts of the Group's
share of those joint ventures’
FEEB Loss for the year (474) (6,997)
Hip 2wk Other comprehensive income (18,551) (14,079)

PENEEEE Total comprehensive income (19,025) (21,076)
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16 HitemEE 16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

FEENHRE S Non-current portion

AIEHERE - JELET Available-for-sale investments, unlisted 246,818 24,143

BIHEAER 5 Current portion

EEEER ' FELT Wealth management products, unlisted 47,979 253,701
17 #& 17 INVENTORIES

MEER Property development
FHER R A SHMEL T Leasehold land held for development

for sale 1,945,075 549,041
BEHE FERRTYE Properties held for/under development

for sale 4,609,497 12,098,115
FECRIWE Completed properties for sale 2,463,744 3,104,278

9,018,316 15,751,434

Hib 2 Other operations
KEEEERIEER Low value consumables and supplies 923 874

9,019,239 15,752,308
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17 F& ) 17 INVENTORIES (Continued)
(@) YEEEESHTOT : (a) The analysis of carrying value of properties is as follows:

Ny In the PRC
—RHEE —under long leases 6,673,973 9,994,710
—EEE — under medium-term leases 2,138,073 5,657,724
NEE In Hong Kong
—EEE — under medium-term leases 206,270 99,000
9,018,316 15,751,434
BIE Including:
—JEHRIB— BT IHIYE - Properties expected to be completed
after more than one year 5,879,435 8,001,001
(b) RNREEEFTHEZREMEHENTELD (b) The Group’s certain leasehold land held for development for sale,
T FEEEPMERFEDRT properties under development for sale and completed properties
Y EEE IR IR ARG IRTTE R EAth & for sale were pledged to secure bank loans and other borrowings,

B BEFBHAN 23 - 255426 ¢ details of which are set out in notes 23, 25 and 26.
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18 EZ R HMEWRIER

e
R

B EE AR AR

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEUBRR - TENTRIB K Debtors, prepayments and deposits
< (BEEG) ~ i K (vii)) (Notes (i), (iii) and (vii)) 2,250,320 1,887,497
JE U — R & R BIFRIE(v) Amount due from an associate (Note (iv)) - 5,842
FEUL — R A & 5 7E (i aE(v)) Amount due from a joint venture (Note (v)) = 47,756
FEURIE 2 B A 3R 308 (BT EE(vi)) Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders (Note (vi)) 373,556 555,158
2,623,876 2,496,253

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

REEEEEBRRENMITE290) ©

RZZE—ARF+Z A=+ ONEBREER
0 + P R A IR @ KB 30I8974,846,000
JT(=Z—A% : 1,005,673,0007C) °

R-ZB-—RAF+-AZ+—ANEHBE
BE-EZEBIRE-—HBRANES
81,184,0007T °

RIE-—AF+-A=+—BNEHRREIE
- S RERFARKE -

RZZE-—AF+ZA=+—BNEHRREIE
| REFE125%t ERERFAKE -

B & Ut — & FE 12 AR AR 53K IE 5,170,000 7T (=
T—AF :2,388,0000) A% BN FTEL
RBEIER - REFR3%(ZT—AF 3%
80,12.5% )&t B AT FE B SR © ;2 HE R
R H R E -

ANEEMEREKEZERILELTRE - ©
ZE-RFRZIT-AF+ZA=1+—HS
51193% 292 % & Uk B 5 BR 3R 4% 1 B s idh R
DR—EF o

48 3 ) A R M 0 B R IR B SO R
RSB TREREF AR -

CEHE Y ERENERTREEYEF A
W ZERPEAKERBERIFEBER
gEATMOBEREUEEENERR
o RIBBELR  ERERSBRNERE
EWEEREY - MAZSERTDIFE R
28 AR RS ESRELRERE -

Notes:

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 29(a).

The balances at 31 December 2016 included deposits and prepayments for
acquisition of land use rights of $974,846,000 (2015: $1,005,673,000).

The balance at 31 December 2015 included deposits for acquisition of a subsidiary
from a related party of $81,184,000.

The balance at 31 December 2015 was unsecured, interest-free and recovered
during the year.

The balance at 31 December 2015 was unsecured, interest-bearing at 12.5% per
annum and recovered during the year.

Apart from the amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of $5,170,000
(2015: $2,388,000) which is interest-free, all of the balances are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 3% (2015: 3% or 12.5%) per annum and recoverable on
demand. The balances are neither past due nor impaired.

All of the Group'’s trade debtors were not impaired, of which 93% and 92% at 31
December 2015 and 2016 respectively was not past due or less than 1 year past
due.

Receivables which were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables which were past due but not impaired relate to independent
customers, for which have a good track record of trading with the Group or
sufficient rental deposits are held to cover potential exposure to credit risk. Based
on past experience, management considers that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
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18 EZRHEMEBWRE )
MiEE - (48)
(vii)  BRER DT
RREPEEER - AR S REMEKEK

RN KR 5 8RR (HIBR RER ) AR IR
HERRREITOT

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(viii)  Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis based on due date at the end of
the reporting period:

Raf@amBp IR —EA

Current or under 1 month overdue 30,933 41,299

BB —EAETER=(EA

More than 1 month overdue and up to

3 months overdue 354 617
BEERA=EAZTZRAEA More than 3 months overdue and up to
6 months overdue 755 212
BERANEAZTZN—F More than 6 months overdue and up to
1 year overdue 2,676 2,111
BHABIE—F More than 1 year overdue 2,837 3,258
37,555 47,497
(ix) AHEEETREWESDEBEARGRTE (ix)  The Group's certain rental receivables were pledged to secure bank loans, details of

WH) - FBERHTE23 -

which are set out in note 23.
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19 ZREIRSIEFEFER 19 RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

SR FR(HEEG) Restricted deposits (Note (i) 94,668 65,110
EHEAE R PIFEG)) Pledged deposits (Note (ii)) 2,394,027 1,794,708

2,488,695 1,859,818
A FERBIER Y (P REC) Less: Non-current portion (Note (i) - (11,939)
mENEE D Current portion 2,488,695 1,847,879

Bt EE Notes:

() REMAEREEAY  ANEEETETYER (i) In accordance with relevant construction contracts, certain of the Group’s PRC
BEEMPENEARERIEERITERESFR subsidiaries with property development projects are required to place at designated
THETEENGFR - WL e /R EERE bank accounts certain amount of deposits for potential default in payment of
SR AR - ZFRRTFFERER construction costs payables. Such guarantee deposits will be released after the
FET RS R AR R o settlement of the construction costs payables.

iy BEBERIEAEERERTFRITUAERR (i) Pledged deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
TRV EMTFE R ° 17302,370,725,000L (== facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to $2,370,725,000 (2015:
—HF :1,680,143,0007T) F LA ARS A2 $1,680,143,000) have been pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are
HEE  ALBRARBDEE - WEFR(Z therefore classified as current assets. No deposits (2015: $11,939,000) have been
T—AF 1 11,939,0007T) &I ARG K H pledged to secure long-term borrowings and banking facilities and classified as

BERRITHE  UHEARFRDEE - non-current assets.
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19 ZRFREEHFER @ 19 RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)
REBETRITFADEBIEAUATRZIE The Group's certain bank deposits which were pledged as securities in
HYIE(R - respect of:

RITER Bank loan facilities 2,370,725 1,692,082
RITRTAEEYEER Mortgage loan facilities granted by
IR E R the banks to purchasers of the Group’s
properties 23,302 102,626
2,394,027 1,794,708
20 RERREEEER 20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) RERBLEEERBRE - (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

RIRITHRE RFHRRE Cash at banks and in hand 3,713,086 3,789,854
RZE—RF+-A=+—H R At 31 December 2016, cash at banks and in hand included proceeds
THREERFHEBSPERANERS from the pre-sale of properties totalling $53,547,000 (2015:
T e BB E A AR IR 5 BRI AR B $597,689,000) placed in designated bank accounts by certain of
B AERE S R FE TE ERITER P R the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in accordance with relevant documents
K TE & YIS P18 FUIB 42 %E53,547,000 issued by local government authorities. Such deposits can only be
JTL(=ZZF—AF : 597,689,0007T) ° used for purchases of construction materials and the payments of
ZEFRRES IR ERITHUER 5 7] construction fees of the relevant property development projects
RYERBEYEREIERBEREN when approval from the designated bank is obtained. Such deposits
BRI NEES - ZEFIEREE will be released after the completion of the pre-sale of the relevant

TEREY)EE TR A& BRBR © properties.
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20 BERKREEEER @)

(b) BmEmBAEGEMELERSNHY

S

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from
operations:

BB AT A Profit before taxation 754,364 2,296,823
AT - Adjustments for:
FEMA Interest income 4 (124,132) (175,572)
BB PR Finance costs 6(a) 679,414 509,340
WrEE ey Depreciation and amortisation 6(c) 46,001 56,281
LEMERDTERFE Valuation gains on investment
HENREMEN properties and investment properties
B classified as held for sale 12821 (436,025) (458,981)
PTAESRI AR Valuation gains on derivative financial
HEWE instrument 24 (149,425) _
ARRES VA Amortisation of initial loss on
=0k £ convertible bonds 24 67,498 -
FEEE Provision on inventories 5 26,490 314,994
PEERFENERN Provision on disposal group classified
AR R as held for sale 5 179,217 -
FERERD Reversal of provision on inventories 5 (80,147) -
HEEMME  BE Net loss on sale of other property,
NEAERE R FEE plant and equipment 5 713 456
A HERERRE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
&8 investments 5 = 36,428
HEREMERSEA Net loss on sale of investment
BEHEMIREY % properties and investment properties
o) pi= Ve classified as held for sale 5 79,379 (41,518)
HERBARRWEZSEEE  Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (682,281) (15,353)
HE—fEE AT Net loss on disposal of partial interest
G Fage o) Gpi=bet=il in an associate 5 = 35
HERHEBERERBE  Net gain on disposal of available-
EIRE@MWE TR for-sale investments and wealth
management products 5 (100,397) (113,905)
Rt SR (ST EIFAST  Equity settled share-based payment
expenses 6(b) 24,516 23,455
FEIRESE AR E1E Share of losses of associates 6,037 49,820
FElEEEREEE Share of losses of joint ventures 474 6,997
P& 5 25558 Net foreign exchange gain (151,006) (58,175)
EEEEH Changes in working capital:
FEOEm,E (Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,253,565) 4,035,985
B NhEMEWFRIEEI  Increase in trade and other receivables (576,082) (436,008)
B 5 NE A ENAFRIE Increase/(decrease) in trade and
i, Crd) other payables 1,299,312 (4,904,443)
REEE(FTEIR), Cash (used in)/generated from operations
FEERE® (389,645) 1,126,659
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(0 WRHMELQF

U]

(an

(1

()

MZTE—XRE=ZAMA - KEE
(BR—H2EMBAR)HEE
SNEZHA B hEERE
AUk EE EFIRZREBRAA
85% Mtk - REAHXABARE
752,752,000 7T ° R U B 78 A
% EEREREBRIBIKE
REBMWB AR -

R-ZE—XR"EZA+HA - K&
EE BB E=FE RN E
EHE - NKEFERERERA
A+ R{E A& £ 588,087,000
JC o RIBEETTRK 8 - FEEIR A
RARIKAEEENBAR -

R-T—RNFNAZRH  KEH
(BR—H2ENB AR EE L
F=FEINRDEE G - AR
BFHRIREESEEARAA
BINWAS% ARIE - REEHEA
R #6,500,0007T ° FAUREE FERK
% MERBEXBAEEWNER
Ej °

RZE—RNFLAZ+=H" K
SE(ER—H2ENBAR))H
BN S = RIS R D EE R A
BB R MEGEIEEFRA
AI([E/EBTE |)80% A% E - KRB
A # AE#110,000,0007T ° 7
IR 18 - BUSERK AR E
MEBAR -
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
() Acquisitions of subsidiaries

U]

(0}

(1

()

On 4 March 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a share transfer agreement with an
independent third party to purchase 85% equity interest of
Shanghai Huan Jian Investment Co., Ltd. for an aggregate
consideration of RMB752,752,000. Upon completion, Shanghai
Huan Jian Investment Co., Ltd. became a subsidiary of the
Group.

On 15 March 2016, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party for the acquisition
of Unique Prosper International Limited for an aggregate
consideration of US$88,087,000. Upon completion, Unique
Prosper International Limited became a subsidiary of the
Group.

On 2 June 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a share transfer agreement with an
independent third party to purchase an additional 45% equity
interest of New Top Spring Investment Fund Management
Company Limited (an associate of the Group), for an aggregate
consideration of RMB6,500,000. Upon completion, New Top
Spring became a subsidiary of the Group.

On 23 September 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party to purchase 80% of the equity
interest of Shenzhen Wei Hai Dun Investment Company
Limited (“Wei Hai Dun"), for an aggregate consideration of
RMB110,000,000. Upon completion, Wei Hai Dun became a
subsidiary of the Group.
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20 HENRHRESEEER @ 20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(o) WEKMIBAT(E) (c) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Continued)
(V) ZEWEEBEEHAEENEER (V) The effect of such acquisitions on the Group's assets and
BEMNFEFYWT liabilities is set out as below:

Etz - BB R&E Other property, plant and equipment 1,221
FE Inventories 1,163,942
LB Investment properties 971,406
B 5 R EM WA Trade and other receivables 25,594
HEtherEE Other financial assets 5,961
ReRREFMEER Cash and cash equivalents 50,381
i) SNl 0k Interest in an associate (4,547)
E o5 REMENRIE Trade and other payables (215,530)
RITREMEE Bank and other borrowings (271,588)
FERIEE E Deferred tax liabilities (62,849)
REBEGUBEEFE Net assets acquired attributable to the Group 1,663,997
IR R Non-controlling interests (7,632)
WEEEEMEmE Goodwill arising from acquisition 52,191
RE Considerations 1,708,556
ERKERBARNEERRE Analysis of net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ZEBEMBR SR L FEI T respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries:
T~
Tt
$'000
ENHEERE Cash considerations paid (1,708,556)
I BE IR & Cash acquired 50,381

(1,658,175)
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20 BERBLSEEEB @)
(d) HEHELQT

o

R-ZE—R"FRA+NE K&
B Egh Al BRER AR AE ([ 7
F'U':F‘J)JiT[ A5 ([HEZE R
) R

)y AEEBERHGRELEM
ﬂ@¢lﬁh#ﬂ %E
ih%&ﬁﬁ@

8 F E%ﬁ@@
EIR ﬁ?%%ﬂ@%mé
MEERAR - FIlmE
%ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬂx%
RERESRXEEARA
A BREREXEESR

BARMNKEBEE(ER)
ﬁ@@ﬂ(%ﬁFEF“
B ) B2 B3P RR AR 2 DA K
BEEEEHAORINE
E% D ([ 652 |) B R
S

(i) BA/TEARAEEEN
BiIEQm -~ BiEEREE
BB ABRMNOER

S TEEZRIEEFR AR
([=EEZR])BRFIITEE
KEBEARAR([EYNEE])
(BRE2EHEaNHEBAE)
A51% M AR - AKLBIER
ERIEEREEBARAR(IL
REE | )EBA9% AR -
RIAERGRE - L REEBRR

U BRI B AR ) 2 ER A AN A 25
TEEH = NEE ZR51%
TEEMELEER AR R
#5 & E gl Al P B R R IR IE A
B EPARAHERS ©

BREASEHBEFERA T
—A"NFtA=Z+= a%azm
FMRMTIERBE - HEE
ERRRAEZNERERA
AE#2,114,410,0007C * LA K
BEFEmASEEESBERZA
AIXMHERSEBAARE
1,973,570,0007T °

m

i

m%'mﬁﬁ%é&ﬁﬁﬁgﬁ
ETiEHﬂFj /‘\itﬂ)\El
B A% 1 8 3 m% & RIS
BERAEZHREZAEARKE
445,770,0007T * MmANEEEE
BRAMRYIBRBERENB AR
ERARE40,520,0007T °
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries

On 19 May 2016, the Group entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with Sunac China
Holdings Limited (“Sunac China”), pursuant to which

(i)  the Group conditionally agreed to sell, and Sunac China
conditionally to purchase the entire equity interest in
Shanghai Huan Jian Investment Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Li Te Man Real Estate Co., Ltd., Nanjing Top Spring
Metropolitan Property Development Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Panye Technology Development Co., Ltd., Hui Dong
Lai Yang Tian Property Co., Ltd., Hui Dong Lai Hai Tian
Property Co., Ltd. and Top Spring Zhiye (Fuyang) Co.,
Ltd. (collectively, the “Target Companies”) and the
equity interest in Jun Hong Da Information Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. ("Jun Hong Da"); and

(i) Sunac China shall settle the respective loans owed by the
Target Companies and Jun Hong Da and their respective
subsidiaries to the Group.

Sanhe Xue Zhe Zhi Jia Investment Co., Ltd. (“Sanhe Xue Zhe
Zhi Jia") was 51% owned by Shenzhen Sheng Shuo Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Sheng Shuo”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Jun Hong Da, and 49% owned by Beijing
Huaxia Shunze Investment Group Limited (“Beijing Huaxia”).
Subsequent to the entering into of the Framework Agreement,
Beijing Huaxia exercised its pre-emptive rights over the 51%
equity interest in Sanhe Xue Zhe Zhi Jia by acquiring the entire
equity interest in Shenzhen Sheng Shuo and hence, the transfer
of the entire equity interest in Jun Hong Da from the Company
to Sunac China would not proceed.

Pursuant to the second supplemental framework agreement
entered into between the Group and Sunac China on 22 July
2016, the total consideration of disposal of the equity interest
in the Target Companies shall be RMB2,114,410,000, and the
amount of loans owed by the Target Companies to the Group
to be settled by Sunac China shall be RMB1,973,570,000.

In addition, pursuant to a share transfer agreement between
Jun Hong Da and Beijing Huaxia dated 8 July 2016, the
consideration of disposal of the equity interest in Shenzhen
Sheng Shuo shall be RMB445,770,000, and the Group shall
repay the loans of RMB40,520,000 owed to Shenzhen Sheng
Shuo and its subsidiaries.
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20 BERKREEEER @)

(d) HEHRBRRE

K2EARBIZARNSEA R LT
JNRTBFIFEMRBEEERDENLR
HARBERBEEKANE - RizEH
BARSEARBIEHEN L EHERIE
2 5142179,217,000 7T K9 R (B E5 18 -
mzeBmErt Al EtkamEE (R
BIFES) ©

BEEARNEHESEE XEalPE &
RRRDRRZE—R"FNA+TRAE
MZZT—RENATN\BEHAMNKEK
BRI RE LEE - REEER - BIE
REORYIBBENEAAEEMBEA
Ejo

REKBE - BRAFRNAEEN
EXeme A ARE1,649,910,000
JC - mEelR B ENSRECEEA
% °

AEBZILENEENABENERS
FRADHTANT

REBEBREEERAR

ZT—NFIR

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

With reference to the carrying amount of underlying assets held
by each of the companies comprising the Target Companies
and Shenzhen Sheng Shuo and their fair value less cost to sell,
impairment loss of $179,217,000 was made upon the classification
of these subsidiaries as disposal group classified as held for sale and
the amount has been included in “other net income” (see note 5).

The disposal of the Target Companies was approved in the
extraordinary general meetings of Sunac China and the Company on
16 August 2016 and 18 August 2016 respectively. Subsequent to
the disposals, the Target Companies and Shenzhen Sheng Shuo are
no longer subsidiaries of the Group.

On the completion date, the amounts of loans owned by the Target
Companies to the Group changed to RMB1,649,910,000 and the
amounts settled by Sunac were adjusted accordingly.

The Group’s assets and liabilities disposed of and net cash inflow
from the disposals are analysed below:

EME Investment properties 941,709
H¥ - BB RE Other property, plant and equipment 3,975

kS Goodwill 52,191

RIS E Deferred tax assets 10,205

78 Inventories 7,602,128
H 5 Rk EAEW A Trade and other receivables 851,357

TR IE Prepaid tax 73,598
ReRASFMEIEER Cash and cash equivalents 762,434
PR & B IRE R Restricted and pledged deposits 160,139
B 5 NME bR FRIE Trade and other payables (5,905,690)
RITREMEE Bank and other borrowings (2,071,888)
RIERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (62,896)
FEEAR R Non-controlling interest (101,530)
AEBEELGEEEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group disposed of 2,315,732
HAb RO Release of other reserve (194)
PEE 34 (R # o) Release of exchange reserve (25,015)
HEM B A mM Uk (FEES) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) 682,281

MBS e E Consideration received, satisfied in cash 2,972,804
RAFEEEITZHORE Consideration to be paid subsequent to current year (111,632)
FriEmRe kReSEER Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (762,434)
BEMAFHE Net cash inflow 2,098,738
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R ERESE
BARAR(AEHIOR])
REAEENEZENBAR - R
E—R"ETARA  KEER
RABRERZ —FHR RN E AR
EHREEANERERAR(E
ARSI ARSECEEER
REERAR(BERRE]) 7L
EE W - B

() AEERBURSIEING
E ARE14,500,0007T

(i) EEMERBEARESLE
AR#14,500,0007T

(i AMEERENAREHE
AE#11,000,0007T °

RFERE - ADEERR MR
AN AR #10,000,0007CIE N E
AER#50,000,0007T M E
A IRAE R 100% EE E AT E
FTHOR O IR E A H49% o

BBRTAORAS LY A A S AT
BAF -
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
() Shenzhen Qian Hai New Top Spring Equity Investment

Fund Management Company Limited (“Qian Hai New
Top Spring”) was originally a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. On 5 December 2016, the Group entered into
the Capital Increase Agreement with Yunnan Rongzhi, a
fellow subsidiary of a shareholder of the company Capital
Management Company Limited (“Yunnan Rongzhi”) and
Xizang Jing Ning Corporate Management Company Limited
("Xizang Jing Ning”), pursuant to which

(i) the Group agreed to make an additional capital
contribution in the amount of RMB 14,500,000 in cash;

(i)~ Yunnan Rongzhi agreed to make a capital contribution in
the amount of RMB 14,500,000 in cash;

(i) Xizang Jing Ning agreed to make a capital contribution in
the amount of RMB11,000,000 in cash.

Upon the completion, the registered capital of Qian Hai
New Top Spring was increased from RMB10,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000 and the equity interest held by the Group was
diluted from 100% to 49% of the enlarged registered capital
of Qian Hai New Top Spring.

Qian Hai New Top Spring ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Group.
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20 HENRHRESEEER @ 20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(d) HEKBAT (&) (d) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
ZHEFHUAEBNEENBEY The effect of such disposal on the Group’s assets and liabilities is set
2850 out below:

HEMea&EE Other financial assets 7,814
B 5 R EAFEWIE Trade and other receivables 231
ReRASEFEIER Cash and cash equivalents 4,269
HEEENEE Assets and liabilities disposed of 12,314
HANERHOREE Capital injection to QianHai New Top Spring 16,187
REEDERERIEM Increase in interest in joint venture 28,501

BHESEMESIRSFREOMMT © Net cash outflow from the disposal is analysed below:

HERS MRS SEEE Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (4,269)
AE Capital injection (16,187)

(20,456)
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21 PERFFEHENRENE 21

REBEE-_ZT—XR"E+_A=+—HBLHF
B AEBBAETREMERKTISHE
EVHEEETHEREMERE 3]
SEHRNME - Bt WEREWE
BIBR®E(E1,128,575,0007C( —FE— R 4F :
2,166,475,00070) E B[ REWME | D
BAIDEARBELEREME] - 2R
FHEHSREMEMEK213,510,0007T
(ZZ—F%F : 117,055,0007T) R AREEIE
AR ER(FE12) ©

RZE-RF+A=+—H UkEHE
AREHEREMECEMURGRITE
B FIBENHEE23 - BEEARFAE
FTERRITERR RS -

22 ESREMESRIE 22

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group put certain
investment properties in the market for sale and entered into binding
agreements with purchasers for the sale of certain of these investment
properties. Accordingly, these investment properties with carrying amount
of $1,128,575,000 (2015: $2,166,475,000) have been reclassified from
“Investment properties” to “Investment properties classified as held
for sale”. Valuation gains of $213,510,000 (2015: $117,055,000) for
investments properties classified as held for sale were recognised in profit
or loss in this year (note 12).

At 31 December 2015, these investment properties classified as held for
sale were pledged to secure a bank loan, details of which are set out in
note 23. The pledge was released upon settlement of the respective bank
loans during the year.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

FERTBR I FEAT & A (KT5Ex)) Creditors and accrued charges (Note (i) 5,173,023 4,322,821
HekEftize Rental and other deposits 217,890 133,729
TEUGRIA Receipts in advance 828,304 4,953,225
FEAT IR AR AR 5R B (B () Amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders (Note (ii)) 489,259 587,960
e S A Rk IE (PR RE(Gii)) Amount due to related companies

(Note (iii)) 1,981 45,014

6,710,457 10,042,749
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22 ESREMBEMAFERIE @
fIEE -

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

REEFMAE S RHMEMNFIBEEHHER
—FEREELBRBRARIEEREE -
M A& $13,426,185,000 7T ( — T — 4 -
1,649,937,00070) (BIEM KR REE AB AT
15 B R 1 5 {8 69 3,372,806,000 7T (= &
— T4 1 1,634,536,00070) KIEETE RS
HEEBSN - FREE -

4 FE 1~ SE 42 A% A% B8 )T 250,330,000 (=&
— A4 : 368,118,0007T) BR BN - FiB 4
B AEEA RarPBEARBITAET
H—FHARBELEEERNR20E(ZE—F
F 20 )T B RER —FRNRIRERERE -

ZEAREER - REIREREE -

RBESEEE - BEEE SR ELERR
ERM R 58 SR S50 B SRR I
T

REBEBREEERAR

ZT—NFIR

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

All of the Group’s trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand except for
an amount of $3,426,185,000 (2015: $1,649,937,000), including accruals of
$3,372,806,000 (2015: $1,634,536,000) in relation to estimated value of future
settlement apartments to be compensated to residents, which is expected to be
settled after more than one year.

Apart from the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of $250,330,000
(2015: $368,118,000) which are interest-free, all of the balances are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 20% (2015: 20%) above the 1-year RMB benchmark lending
rate as determined by the People’s Bank of China and repayable within one year or
on demand.

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing
analysis based on due date at the end of the reporting period:

— @A RNEE sk EEKEE Due within 1 month or on demand 696,511 1,640,249
—(EABE={EARNEH Due after 1 month but within 3 months 148,939 213,409
=EA®ENEARNEE Due after 3 months but within 6 months 49,078 8,319
ME A% B —F N5 E Due after 6 months but within 1 year 253,810 133,632
—F12E| 5 Due after 1 year 53,379 15,400

1,201,717 2,011,009
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23 RITRHMEE 23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
N-_E—RNE+-A=+—H BT EHE At 31 December 2016, the bank and other borrowings were analysed as
HEESTIT follows:

RITER Bank loans

—HEH — Secured 4,658,202 7,620,354
— IR - Unsecured 154,985 59,693
4,813,187 7,680,047

HiEE Other borrowings
— BB — Secured - 823,897
— I — Unsecured 352,807 1,050,000
352,807 1,873,897
5,165,994 9,553,944
RZZF—ARF+ZA=+—H  #B7K%HE At 31 December 2016, bank and other borrowings were repayable as follows:

A ERERERWT

—FRIBAFARBERE Within 1 year and included in current

liabilities 3,013,730 6,615,267
—FRBBMIFTAFERBES : After 1 year and included in

non-current liabilities:
—FRERFRN After 1 year but within 2 years 296,200 1,085,764
MEEBERFER After 2 years but within 5 years 1,401,163 1,443,410
AFE After 5 years 454,901 409,503

2,152,264 2,938,677

5,165,994 9,553,944
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23 RITREMEE @)

REEABRAF

23 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

B EE - Notes:

(i) RZZE—X"E+-A=+—8 RTERE (i) At 31 December 2016, the bank loans bore interest ranging from 1.45% to
FEFIENT1.45% % 12.00% (= F—HF : 12.00% (2015: 1.6% to 12%) per annum and were secured by the following assets:
1.6%Z12%)5H 2 A T EEVEER

BEME Investment properties 4,307,881 6,110,781
JEIEYE Hotel properties 220,476 258,235
EmtREF Other land and buildings - 14,445
FERETHE LM Leasehold land held for development for sale - 450,041
FEEREPYE Properties under development for sale 667,985 7,193,278
HEEBRTIYE Completed properties for sale - 1,205,063
[REESEEEE N Pledged deposits 2,370,725 1,692,082
ElES Rental receivables 8,196 4,796
DA EHENIREME Investment properties classified as held for sale - 1,216,821
45T Total 7,575,263 18,145,542
(i) RZEBE—RE+-A=+—8  HibmEiK\P (i) At 31 December 2016, the unsecured other borrowings are from a shareholder

(iif)

BEREBARARN—EBRE - EFEFE6.9%
FE(ZZ—AF  6.9%59%) » WER—
FREE -

RZZ-AF+ZA=+—8  HMAER
EERE—RBULE=T  RENE10.94%
SR UMAREETREMERAEER
B R R AR S R AR

(iif)

of the Company, interest-bearing at 6.9% (2015: 6.9% or 9%) per annum and
repayable within one year.

At 31 December 2015, the secured other borrowing was from an independent
third party, interest-bearing at 10.94% per annum and secured by certain of the
Group's investment properties and equity interests in a subsidiary within the Group.
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24 TRES
R-ZE—XRNE—A~BE=A-+—8"
RN BIEEFT A S 5816 B 100,000,000

24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 6 January and 21 March 2016, the Company issued two tranches of
convertible bonds with each principal amount of US$100 million due in

ENLR - NFHHEOMM AT RRE
% » H 50,000,000 T K A #2 i 1& 5 3
TFARRB)—BBRE - Mﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬂ
6.00%#H 8 ' BBFFIZHAFE
Tiiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂi%%ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁs.szsm‘%ﬁ o
ZEEFRAERE TH B QR AR

2019 respectively, in which US$50 million of the convertible bonds was
issued to a shareholder of the Company. The bonds are interest-bearing
at 6.00% per annum which is payable semi-annually in arrears and are
convertible at initial conversion price of HK$3.8289 per share. The bonds
are secured by equity interests of the Group’s certain subsidiaries and
guaranteed by the Group's certain subsidiaries.

wmIERA - AAAREEE THEQREE
(O

The effective interest of the convertible bonds is 12.29% to 13.98%
per annum. Upon the issuance of the convertible bonds, a loss of
$218,633,000 was offset against the liability component of the
convertible bonds and will be amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds.

AMBREFOERFNER1229%
F13.98% - KA B 7T A R R 1B 5 B
218,633,0007CHE BRI R ESFNEE
B HEE - WA ATHARR(E 5 HAR VR 8 o

BRABRBREFNBRBEESFTAEAL
BEFNAAEE WIIER/ITESHT
B (ff7E29(F)) -

Conversion option embedded in the convertible bonds represents the
fair value of the holder’s option to convert the bonds and is recorded as
derivative financial instruments (note 29(f)).

WA AR A B F R R R RERR A AT #R
BEHAMAT

The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group are analysed as follows:

BEEARIBD  ITEARBS st

Liability Derivative

component component Total
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000

AR ESETRAAEE

Fair value upon issuance of

convertible bonds 1,441,264 304,698 1,745,962
BT EE LR Initial loss on the issuance of
convertible bonds (218,633) - (218,633)
BT R ES Net proceeds for the issuance of
e I8 %58 the convertible bonds 1,222,631 304,698 1,527,329
51 EsE (FFFES) Amortisation of initial loss (note 5) 67,498 - 67,498
FEMAX (M3E6()) Interest expenses (note 6(a)) 177,931 - 177,931
FAZNEF SR Interest expenses paid
during the year (83,361) - (83,361)
EHREREN R EE Fair value change on conversion
5 (Pi5Es) option (note 5) - (149,425) (149,425)
RZT—R"F+ZA=+—H At31 December 2016 1,384,699 155,273 1,539,972
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25

26

27

BNEE

RZZE—RENATHBE » KRARHEITR
%5 A AR® 990,000,000t T — N\4F
EIHM R - B BIRF R EI10.595%
B BEESNMRFE - ZE2EHAAE
ER=ZE—X"F+_A=1+—HBEEES
755,749,0007T( —E—F4F : FERRT
#)2£2,029,800,0007T ) K& T E M E1E
B WAASEEETHBREER -

B ES

(@) RZZE—R"FOA=-++tH A£H
TR S5 A AR 350,000,0007C
RZZE-NFIEN—HES - ZE
FIEFREE25% 8 - IHBHEFX
NARAE - ZEFBAAEEEREE
#1,547,173,000 7t M & T 1756 B &
PR E 1t R AN S B — AT B A R A
IR AR 2 (EHE AR ©

RZZE—XFNLANB "EEE
BEETEZHFEEEEZESHRM
AERREERHBERZ AR
4,000,000,000 7T B 2 &) & % 2 H &Y
HEBEBERGE - AEBEER T —XRF
NATHAEETENHSEEARE
800,000,0007T + ZEHF F|%E5.8%H
&% o

REEFEURDAERNRS

(a) BERABRERBRESE
RNARIRAE R AFEERIERE
2B ARRESERENR
BREAEEEE (BEASERET
EAARNES) AR EBEDERE
1.00 T AN AR 1 - LAREEAR A IR
meRZE—ZF+=-A=H " RBE
BRARBENERETSSARD
34,371,667 10 BE AR #E o BERER L
mHEA(RFERME)BREARRA
ABANEEAEFARE =F% <2
BB HEANRL AR+ 8
MR - FRRITHEEA2.4927T -
BIAARRGERARBEEERN
40% ° BEITAI R ERk 18 (R EE28(0)
(i)  BRATEEAEZE1.7807T °
BOERER TRHE AR - AIRE
RAE—RRE B - WA 284

st
= o
>t

(b)

REEREEERQT

T—AFH

25 NOTE PAYABLE

On 15 June 2015, the Company issued a note with principal amount of
RMB990,000,000 due in 2018. The note is interest-bearing at 10.595%
per annum which is payable quarterly in arrears. The note is secured
by the Group’s certain investment properties with carrying amount
of $755,749,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: properties under
development for sale of $2,029,800,000) and guaranteed by the Group's
certain subsidiaries.

26

27

BONDS PAYABLE

(a)

(b)

On 27 April 2016, the Group issued a tranche of bond with principal
amount of RMB350,000,000 due in 2019. The bond is interest-
bearing at 6.25% per annum which is payable semi-annually in
arrears. The bond is secured by the Group’s certain leasehold
land held for development for sale with carrying amount of
$1,547,173,000 and equity interest of a Group's subsidiary.

On 9 September 2016, the Group has received the Approval
Letter from the China Securities Regulatory Commission for
Public Offering of Corporate Bonds to qualified investors of up to
RMB4,000,000,000. The Group has issued the first tranche of bond
amounted to RMB800,000,000 on 14 September 2016 with a
coupon rate at 5.8% per annum.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company has a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any company in the
Group, to take up options at consideration of $1.00 per grant to
subscribe for shares of the Company. On 3 December 2010, a total
number of 34,371,667 share options were granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. The options will fully vest after three years
from the Listing Date or, as the case may be, the first anniversary
date of the employment commencement date of the relevant
grantees, and are then exercisable within a period of 10 years from
the date of grant. The exercise price per share is $2.492, being 40%
of the price of IPO of shares of the Company. Upon completion
of the bonus issue (see note 28(c)(ii)), the exercise price per share
was adjusted to $1.780. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.
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27 BREEZELUROAEERNRKS 27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(#8) (Continued)
(a) BXABREABRESTS(®) (a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(i) BHEZRZEERNT : (i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

IEHA BEHxHE BRENSOER

Number of Vesting Contractual life
instruments conditions of options

A—2EERHNRERE -

Options granted to a director:

-RZE-ZEFT-A=H 1,166,667 i B R AT (30%) M (60%) K T
—on 3 December 2010 =%(100%) 10 years

One year (30%), two years (60%) and
three years (100%) from the Listing Date

MesRERERESRLMBRE
Options granted to senior management
and employees:

-RZE-BE+-A=H 33,205,000 1T B R — 5 (30%) M4 (60%) 2 +&F
—on 3 December 2010 =%(100%) 10 years

One year (30%), two years (60%) and
three years (100%) from the Listing Date

ERENEREES
Total share options granted 34,371,667
(i) FERENZE RiNEFHITEE (i) The number and weighted average exercise price of share
U options are as follows:

—E—RE “T—hF

2016 2015

BREHE ERES R

Number of options Number of options

T4 T

‘000 ‘000

REXHATTHE Outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,012 20,584
FRITEE Exercised during the year (1,503) (7,572)
FRZU Forfeited during the year (15) -
PELHRITE Outstanding at the end of the year 11,494 13,012

RELA]F1T(E Exercisable at the end of the year 11,494 13,012
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27 REZELURMDAEBRNRS 27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(#&) (Continued)
(a) BXAFRRERBRETS () (a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(i) FEAESEE RN TarTEE (ii) The number and weighted average exercise price of share
PUNNENE) options are as follows: (Continued)

BE_T-AER_FT—RF
TZA=+T—HILLFE 1ER
BEERAFMBEEBEETEIX
H AT RB A HE o

HE-Z—XF+=ZA=+—
HIEFE  BiTEERERT
2 B HEA By hnE B R 2.91
T(ZZE—RF :3577T) - N
T-XNFt+-A=T—H¥EX
T B BB AR N 19 1T (R B
A1.780T (ZFE—FH 4 : 1.780
T0)  IEFERBALNFRE
39(ZF—FF 1 49)F o

(b) BXAMBEARMREGE (b)
RIEBE X AFAEERRDZE TS
RARRMAEBETFREREETEH
6,452,000% (& AL 21718 ) R QA
By - URERSHAEEZHER
FIEH M ERA RS EERFIamEAR
RNEIREFZE B - BEREBESR
—HBY  AIUTHREERERR
5+ WAZINE R RS AR o 225
BB EL BB = F R T2
B BERIBEMNAER  HEEE
TFEHERELEBEIEZHRBRI -
AN R B 2D AR 17 1 LA RR 19 528
EREAEAENROEE (BR i
%) o BITHRR A E (B M EE28(0)
(i) * BFIEEA H£2,067,2004% 2 EH AL

{/\ °

BE_T—hFER-_T—XRF+=A
=+—HILEFE  BERBEIEFRAH
BHERIR G SRENRT B B AR D o

No share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
granted during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year ended 31 December
2016 was $2.91 (2015: $3.57). The share options outstanding
at 31 December 2016 had a weighted average exercise price
of $1.780 (2015: $1.780) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 3.9 (2015: 4.9) years.

Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme

Under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, a total number of 6,452,000
(after capitalisation issue) shares of the Company was awarded to
certain employees of the Group as a means of recognising their
contributions to the early development of the Group and aligning
their interests with the shareholders of the Company. The eligible
employees received an offer to be granted by the awarded shares
at nil consideration but subject to a six-month lock-up period. The
awarded shares will fully vest after three years from the date of
award and are valid and effective for unlimited period unless a
triggering event has arisen upon the occurrence of certain events.
The shares awarded by the Company will be settled with the
shares (after capitalisation issue) held by a share award trust. Upon
completion of the bonus issue (see note 28(c)ii)), a total number of
2,067,200 awarded shares were adjusted.

No shares were awarded under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.
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(Continued)

€-)

(b) BEXPAHBENRDRBE

(9]

(&)
BHGRRAEAT

miE SR EHRG

Shares awarded to employees:
—-RZE-ZF+=-A=H
—on 3 December 2010

(b) Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

THEHHE
Number of
instruments

B

Vesting condition

6,452,000 A EIREET—4F(30%) « MF(60%) %
=4 (100%)
One year (30%), two years (60%) and

three years (100%) from the date of award

BE—Z—AFR-_ZF—XF+=A
=+—HIEFE  BENKRITEREE

Btn o

BRXARMBERBRETS
ARBRM—IBERARBEERER
‘e NHERLEXRTYRENRES
ERERAIEHAREFLNER -

BRARBERBEEAEETHE
Bt - AIARIRRE AR SRR AR
AEEMEEHR(TBEBRH A
&) RIEARRETE -

R-Z—XFE+-AFHB  ARFR
BER A AREERERETEINEHD
BRI 00 TR ERM AR REE R
31,000,000 17 B i # - & 15 B8 i
B TRHE AENRERRAT] KR
EEO. 1AL Mk o L EERES
RENBHEF =FR<2HEE I
AIRZZEZNFRIITE - TEER
2.7967C c RAREBRANEER T
AR T B A2.77T °

(9]

There was no outstanding awarded shares during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2016.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company has a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme which was to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the employees
and directors have made or may make to the Group.

An option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the directors of the
Company, which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
grant.

On 5 December 2016, 31,000,000 share options were granted at
a consideration of $1.00 per grant paid by the employees of the
Company under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of $0.1
each of the Company. These share options will fully vest after three
years from the date of grant, and then be exercisable until 2026.
The exercise prices is $2.796. The closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the grant was $2.7.
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27 BEEZELUROAEERNRRS 27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(#8) (Continued)
() BEX L HBREEARNDERZ (c) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(&)
(1) BRHEEZZAEEDT : (I) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:
TIE¥A BRE R BRENSHES
Number Contractual life
of instruments Vesting conditions of options
MEFE MR :
Options granted to directors:
—ZE-ZFRXAZTRA 4,400,000 R AHHE—FG0%) - MEG0%) R T4
- 26 June 2012 =%(100%) 10 years
——E-=FXB-FH 5,700,000 One year (30%), two years (60%) and
-20 June 2013 three years (100%) from the date of grant
-ZZ-AFNA=T/\B 34,000,000
- 28 April 2015
-ZZ-RFTA=t=H 10,000,000
- 23 October 2015

meRERERESR L MBRE
Options granted to senior management
and employees:

~ZE-ZFRAZFAA 11,320,000 R B —5F(30%) - ME60%) % T
- 26 June 2012 =%(100%) 10 years
——E-=FXB-FH 8,300,000 One year (30%), two years (60%) and
-20June 2013 three years (100%) from the date of grant
~ZZ-RFEEA=FTN\R 48,650,000
—28 April 2015
-ZZ-RF AR 3,000,000
- 8 September 2015
—-—Z—"E+t-AAhA 31,000,000
-5 December 2016
ERENEREES

Total share options granted 156,370,000
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27 REEZELURODAERNRZS
()
(0 BARLAMBEARGEDE
()

() BBRGEMEE RnEFHITEE

27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(c) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

() The number and weighted average exercise price of share

R options are as follows:
—ET-hF
2015
ERES A
Number of options Number of options
T4 F
‘000 ‘000
REXHATTHE Outstanding at the beginning of the year 102,603 26,910
FRRE Granted during the year 31,000 95,650
FNTE Exercised during the year (840) (3,479)
FRRIK Forfeited during the year (6.210) (16,478)
PR B ARITE Outstanding at the end of the year 126,553 102,603
PELLA]FITE Exercisable at the end of the year 31,295 16,572
HE—_Z—FXRF+-_A=1+—H The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for

IEFE - BITEERERTTEE
B mmEFHRER3.157(=
T—FHF :3.707T) °

RIE—RF+-_A=1+—HH
AT Y B IR A 4 91T (5
BEAR329L(ZFT—HF : 3.27
TL)  MEFHFBRENFERA
8AF(-FE—FHF : 89%F) -

BREAABERRBR
tERBER BRI E MU
MRBEARBEIZEERLE
BEAR(EENE - EROBKR
BRI AR EEGRRE AR
[EEAFE - BRENADOFH
R IRAN —RBARIE - 18
HRPITENBRESMHA—IR
ARERA -

(1

shares options exercised during the year ended 31 December
2016 was $3.15 (2015: $3.70).

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a
weighted average exercise price of $3.29 (2015: $3.27) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.4 years (2015:
8.9 years).

(ll) FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the binomial lattice model.
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27 REGEURODRBERNRS
() BEXRAMBERRDRBE
()
) WREAAEERBR(E)
RoB—~a+= ARANBEK
RAAEERRBRNT

RETEAMNARER

(B

1T1E(E

TR IR (AR — IR B
P ER PR O DA P 155 08 1R )

B F B (AR — IR B R
PR R e IR 9 HRSIR)

TEHINR B
5 [ B ) =R

TEHR R AR IR AR AT BRTE R 52 T &
mRAREENA A LB AR
MERKESE - RERSRE
ARRWFAHIRSLLEEFL -

BARRERIS SRR L © Uik
I AT AP BURE AR T A
HIW AR (EBERE - RHOERE
I PR TIS IR -

27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(c) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(1) FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)
Fair value of share options and assumptions issued on 5
December 2016 are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date $0.563
Share price $2.700
Exercise price $2.796

Expected volatility (expressed as

weighted average volatility used in

the modelling under binomial

lattice model) 40.67%
Option life (expressed as weighted

average life used in the modelling

under binomial lattice model) 10 years
Expected dividends 8.14%
Risk-free interest rate 1.495%

The expected volatility is based on the price volatility of the
shares of comparable companies which are listed and publicly
traded in the Stock Exchange over the most recent period.
Expected dividends are derived based on expected dividend
payout ratio of the Company.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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28 A~ EERERE
(a) AR DWEE
REEE SR B DO FHR
FiRss 2 MHE RN R AR
BE o AARNFYEF K HHIES]

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

R &(E
Reserve
arising
from
Share Share issuance Capital Retained
capital premium of PCSs reserve profits
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
W=Z-Rf-F-H Balance at 1 January 2015
ke 116,073 1,441,328 24,820 105,637 925,967 2,613,825
“E-TEEREH . Changes in equity for 2015:
EEERREANE  Lossand total comprehensive
Et income for the year - - - - (117,720 (117,720
BEERAPEES  Issuance of new shares under
BREEIRER the Pre-IPO and Post-IPO Share
RRRERERE Option Schemes (Note (c)(i)
HEESE)
GBI 1,105 53,290 - (33,041) - 21,354
BELBAATEE  Issuance of new shares upon
BERTIRN conversion of PCSs (Note (c)(i))
(BF&E(c)i) 965 - (965) - - -
REE BRI B Equity settled share-based
ERNRS transactions - - - 23,455 - 23,455
PRI R )2 Share options and awarded
KB shares forfeited - - - (5,367) 2,446 2,921)
TEERENRE Dividend approved in respect of
(P35 (0) the previous year (Note (b)) - - - - (155,624) (155,624)
R-8-1% Balance at 31 December 2015
tZA=t-H
ftes 118,143 1,494618 23,855 90,684 655069 2,382,369




REEREEERAR
246 —TRER

51 75 i 2% B =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GBI LOETTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 A&~ RERERE @) 28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(a) RERAEARTDNEEN () (a) Movements in components of equity (Continued)

TR
FREtEE  AtEE  REEW

Reserve

arising

from
Share Share SN Capital Retained
capital premium of PCSs reserve profits
i T T i i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

W=Z2-AE-F-0 Balance at 1 January 2016
ik 118,143 1,494,618 23,855 90,684 655,069 2,382,369

ZE-REEE®H:  Changesin equity for 2016:

FEEEER2ENE  Loss and total comprehensive

ek income for the year - - - - (299,086) (299,086)
REERAEEERE  Issuance of new shares under the

IRHESTEI R B RABIE  Pre-IPO and Post-IPO Share

ERBREFEIEITH  Option Schemes (Note (c)(f)

Rin (B zEC)) 235 11,008 - (6,665) = 4,578
BREEENRD A Equity settled share-based

AR S transactions > - - 24,516 - 24,516
BRMERER Share options and awarded shares

el g forfeited - - - (2,709) - (2,709)
TERIENRE Dividend approved in respect

(FiFE(b)) of the previous year (Note (b)) - - - - (312,667) (312,667)

RZE-RE Balance at 31 December 2016
+ZA=1-RHEEH 118,378 1,505,626 23,855 105,826 43316 1,797,001
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28 A~ EERERE @ 28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) BB (b) Dividends
() FREGEMEIARERERRR () DIVIDENDS PAYABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
KATRBRESHEANRE COMPANY AND HOLDERS OF PCSs ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE YEAR

HEMEEE RBEZIREN  Final dividend proposed after the end

RERR B ERE BRI of the reporting period of HK22 cents
FRK AR ES 228 (2015: HK22 cents) per ordinary share
(ZZ—0F : 2281) and unit of PCSs 312,912 312,397
312,912 312,397
REEHEAEE B ERFRREORARE The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
WENRERREERERREE - period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
) Lt—ERRFEEEESETAT () DIVIDENDS PAYABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
ERBRRIAFARERSHH COMPANY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL
BRE YEAR, APPROVED AND PAID DURING THE YEAR

FRRAREH E—@ Final dividend in respect of the previous
HHEFERPREBRLE financial year, approved and paid during
fR220( == —F%F : 1114) the year, of 22 cents (2015: 11 cents)
per ordinary share and unit of PCSs 312,667 155,624
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28 A&~ RERERE @) 28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(0 BE (c) Share capital
NG
The Company
—E-XF —T-hF
2016 2015
ROEE kx| ! ik
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
TR T T T
000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
EE Authorised:

FREE0.10TMEEAE  Ordinary shares of $0.10 each 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000

CDETRHENLER:  Ordinary shares, issued and fully
paid:

®—A—H At 1 January 1,181,433 118,143 1,160,734 116,073
BEE RN ERRIE Issuance of new shares under the

HTEREIAREER Pre-IPO and Post-IPO Share

BB BTG Option Schemes (Note (i))

(GE0) 2,33 235 11,051 1,105
BRI AR HARES  Issuance of new shares upon

BT (HI3E() conversion of PCSs (Note (ii)) = - 9,648 965
RIBALRETET Issuance of new shares under bonus

RO (AR EKA issue (with PCSs as an alternative)

AR ) (L G) (Note (ii)) = - - -

R+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 1,183,776 118,378 1,181,433 118,143
LmREs A A B R R B IRA R The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
B UEAERARARAKRE LRER declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
B —F c RARRWBRTEEM at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
T B SRR EEREMAL - regard to the Company’s residual assets.

M 5 Notes:

iy BE-Z—AE+-_A=+—HILHF (i) During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1,503,000 (2015: 7,572,000)
B OERARERENERESEET share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and 840,000 (2015:
1,503,00017 ( Z=Z&—F 4 : 7,572,000 3,479,000) share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were
DB R E R AR R L B exercised to subscribe for 2,343,000 (2015: 11,051,000) ordinary shares
12118 T 840,000 (ZZE —H & - of the Company at a consideration of $1.780 and $2.264 (2015: $1.780
3,479,00017 ) BERS 1T - LAREE and $2.264) per share respectively, of which $0.10 (2015: $0.10) per share
AN F) 2,343,000 8 (= — R 4F ¢ was credited to share capital and the balance of was credited to the share
11,051,0000%) @& - KEH R AT premium account. $6,665,000 (2015: $33,041,000) has been transferred
B%1.780 T ]2 2264 (—FE— R4 : from the capital reserve to the share premium account in accordance with
1.7807C 1% 2.2647T) + Hh&Eh%0.107T the accounting policy set out in note 2(t)(ii).

(ZZE—FF : 0.107T) Bat ABRA » 84
HAGFARD R ER o RIBSH KT
20 E5HER © 6,665,0007T( =%
—F4F : 33,041,0007C) B E ARG
EERERDEER -
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(0 B&R(@)
GERECY

(i)

REARRAR-_Z-—=FRA+HAE
THRRESIRE LRBHERRE
& ARRCERESHEARRNERR
BIER R MELEAR =T —=
FRAZTMA (RS ELHNARAF
PSR M AR R BT TALRR - MaxEMCR
BRRBEIUKA RS - AR
H2 ka0 A ARECHE -

AR ESRIE LT RAAER
HLFT T ARRE R OK A TR AR B 555
BB KA AR ESF LR REE
RN EEI IR AR RRESNT
DT R AR R A TAL A AT AR
EERD o MAR T REEBERIK
BEMRERSHDIK - AIAREINE
AR AT E 7 5B A D IRF S &8
MIREAE - ERDIK °

R-B—=FXA-1+0  BINEEE
&Y i BR 58 415,036,560 7T & 7 81U 7
2 154150,365,600 % & f% E{E0.10 7T H)
LIRARAE SR - WA SR
BIBUEUK A AT AR 35 5 mO AR SR A 3 I
BITRREEERG o Lo - ARARME
FBUEUK A PTHRRE H MR R ETTEE
25,092,080 7T KK A AT HAARFE 55 + TR
—HERRDBEREEARL - (A%
IR AT EFHFTE LR REE -

ARRETTEMIR - DHREBEASE TR
RRBEH R ERAMEERBEE
B BB AR R VT TR (B S i R T R 8RR
ARREERAFEE IR ZEE
IR R RO (L TR (R EE
27(@) ~ () () »

BT A AIHRRREE 5 FTEE & M R B IR
REREREARY - SERKEIBKAT
HBIRFE A BEITHRG - RS
RERMAITEMNRATIRRE S LS
BoHE_ZT—AF+-A=t+—AL
FE - BEXKATRRELFOZEEA
KA TR E LR R AL BR(ZT
—F4F : 1#59,648,0003R 5k A A] 2 % &
5 1 31759,648,0000% L @A) ©
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 15 May 2013, bonus shares were made
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 24 May 2013, the record date, on the basis of two new shares
credited as fully paid for every five shares held, with an option to elect to
receive PCSs in lieu of all or part of their entitlements to the bonus shares.

The PCSs are unlisted and irredeemable but have conversion rights entitling
the holders of PCSs to convert into an equivalent number of shares as the
number of bonus shares which the holders of PCSs would otherwise be
entitled to receive under the bonus issue had the shareholder not elected
for the PCSs. Should the Company make any cash dividends or distributions
to its ordinary shareholders, the Company should also distribute the same
amount of cash dividends or distributions to the holders of the PCSs.

On 20 June 2013, an amount of $15,036,560 standing to the credit of
the share premium account was applied in paying up in full 150,365,600
ordinary shares of $0.10 each which were allotted and issued as fully paid to
the shareholders who were entitled to those bonus shares and did not elect
to receive the PCSs. In addition, the PCSs in the amount of $25,092,080
were issued to shareholders who elected to receive the PCSs, and the same
amount was capitalised from the share premium account as reserve arising
from issuance of the PCSs.

Upon completion of the bonus issue, adjustments were made to the exercise
price and outstanding number of share options and awarded shares granted
pursuant to the Group’s Pre-IPO and Post-IPO Share Option Schemes and
Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme (see notes 27(a), (b) and (c)).

Reserve arising from issuance of the PCSs was capitalised from the share
premium account for the purpose of issue of new shares upon conversion of
the PCSs. This reserve balance represents the aggregate amount of the PCSs
outstanding at the year end. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
No PCSs were converted into ordinary shares by the holders of PCSs (2015:
9,648,000 PCSs were converted into 9,648,000 ordinary shares).
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(m

(1

(V)

SHARE PREMIUM
The share premium account is governed by the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and
articles of association in paying distributions or dividends to
equity shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve mainly comprises the portion of the grant
date fair value of awarded shares and unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in note 2(t)(ii).

EXCHANGE RESERVE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(x).

PRC STATUTORY RESERVES
PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, statutory surplus
reserve and statutory public welfare fund.

General reserve

The general reserve is non-distributable and the transfer to this
reserve is determined by the board of directors in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC. This reserve
can be used to offset accumulated losses and increase capital
upon approval from the relevant authorities.

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group (excluding foreign investment enterprises) are
required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of their registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital
by the issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholders or by increasing the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the balance after
such issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

V)

()]

PROPERTY REVALUATION RESERVE
Property revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2()).

OTHER RESERVE
The other reserve represents:

(1) The difference between the consideration received and
the net book value of Joinbest Enterprises Limited (“JEL")
and its subsidiaries for the deemed disposal of partial
interests in JEL. The deemed disposal was resulted from
the issuance of 1 ordinary share of JEL at premium upon
conversion of convertible notes held by a third party on
18 June 2006.

(2) The differences between the consideration paid and the
net book value of certain subsidiaries for the acquisition
of additional interests in these subsidiaries from non-
controlling shareholders.

(3) The differences between the consideration received and
the net book value of certain subsidiaries for the disposal
of the partial interests in these subsidiaries by the Group.

(4) The deemed contributions from the ultimate shareholder
for the transfer of investment costs in JEL, Le Leman
International (Yuhang) Limited, Glory Wise Limited,
Fullshine Group Limited and Fortune Mega International
Limited at nil consideration pursuant to a reorganisation.

(5) The amount arising from the reorganisation to rationalise
the group structure in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

(6) The waiver of repayment of amount due to a related
company beneficially owned by a shareholder of the
Company in December 2010.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e)

()

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of the Company'’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, was $1,678,623,000 (2015: $2,264,226,000).
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final
dividend of 22 cents (2015: 22 cents) per ordinary share, amounting
to $312,912,000 (2015: $312,397,000) (note 28(b)). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to fund its property development projects, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total equity at the end of the reporting period. For this purpose,
the Group defines net debt as total bank and other borrowings less
restricted and pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

follows:

The Group's gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

ik =R Current liabilities
RITREMEE Bank and other borrowings 3,013,730 6,615,267
FEA SRR AR AR SR SR IB (FTB) Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders (interest-bearing) 238,929 219,842
3,252,659 6,835,109
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
RIT R EMES Bank and other borrowings 2,152,264 2,938,677
AR E S Convertible bonds 1,384,699 -
R EE Note payable 1,097,035 1,167,406
ERHES Bonds payable 1,275,239 -
BBz Total borrowings 9,161,896 10,941,192
B R R B IRTFER Less: Restricted and pledged deposits (2,488,695) (1,859,818)
ReRRESEMEEE Cash and cash equivalents (3,713,086) (3,789,854)
(v Net debt 2,960,115 5,291,520
R iEER Total equity 6,835,146 7,302,875
BEAELEX Gearing ratio 43.3% 72.5%
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits and
trade and other receivables. The Group maintains a defined credit
policy and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound credit ratings
and the Group has exposure limit to any single financial institution.
Given their high credit ratings, management does not expect any of
these financial institutions will fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of rental income from leasing properties, sufficient rental
deposits are held to cover potential exposure to credit risk. An
ageing analysis of the receivables is prepared on a regular basis
and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with
these receivables. Adequate impairment losses have been made for
estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk in view of its large
number of customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Group as set out in note 31, the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect
of these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 31.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 18.
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29 BIREREERSFTAENA 29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(EREC)

(b) RBEZRR
AEBEETOEGMBLARABITA
BRGNS EREH(BREHENE
NEMRESHR) - EEREARLQA
EFEENHE - ARENBRAEH
EERRLRBERRPESRKEES
BT ERRG  ERERS RN
AR EZSRBBEAGERETTRE
BRE  MENEEHEBEHRE

TRAJAEES R A BN HREHE
HREBAMFIREOIHA - HREH
ARUBRRERE(BREUNBOMEK
(EFR)EHREHMEEERERAMN
MEAENFEMNR) RAKE KT
BERAHEY

BITRAMEE Bank and other borrowings
ERRE Note payable

EfES Bonds payable

makES Convertible bonds

EARTLESEA  Creditorsand accrued charges

EMIEERAREIE  Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

e —MEBATFIE  Amount due to a related company

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the raising of loans to cover the
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board of directors. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed funding lines from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

ZE-RE
2016
SHRERRESHTH

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—£R BB-F BBmE

FRER  EIREE  EIREF ik Sl ! REE
More than More than
1yearbut 2 years but
Within 1 year less than less than More than Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
T Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

3,184,568 577,095 1,382,549 523,670 5,667,882 5,165,994

117,091 1,159,150 - - 1,276,241 1,097,035
76,217 295,992 1,204,161 - 1,576,370 1,275,239
93,048 93,048 3,360,156 - 3,546,252 1,384,699

1,746,838 53,379 3,372,806 - 5173,023 5173,023

501,731 - - - 501,731 489,259

1,981 = = 1,981 1,981

5.721,474 2,178,664 9319,672 523670 17,743,480 14,587,230
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29 BIREREERSFTAENA 29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

BE® VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) FEBESER(E) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

“ZT-1F
2015
BRBE R

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRAE e REE
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but
Within 1 year less than less than More than Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount
Fi i Fi Fi T i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BITRAMEE Bank and other borrowings 7016183 1223813 1,631,834 478702 10350532 9,553,944
ERZER Note payable 125,228 125,228 1,239,691 - 1,490,147 1,167,406
DR ETER Creditors and accrued charges 2,672,884 15,400 1,634,537 - 4322821 4322821
JEMIEERAREIE  Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 600,491 - - - 600,491 587,960
EREARFE Amount due to related companies 45,014 - - - 45,014 45,014

10,459,800 1,364,441 4,506,062 478,102 16,809,005 15,677,145

() FIZ=mps (c) Interest rate risk

REBMMERREZRNIEES RIE The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash
S FHEER - XRHIREERFRE equivalents, restricted and pledged deposits and borrowings issued
FEEE - at variable rates.

REBEH B RBELFEBEEMN The Group does not anticipate significant impact to cash and
EZBRHREEFRFRTISZIEKX cash equivalents and the restricted and pledged deposits because
728 REAREHRITERNETE the interest rates of bank deposits are not expected to change
IR KIg &3 - significantly.

BEAAREEOIRITREMEENER The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank and other
BN EE23 55 o AEEI A borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 23. The Group does
ERAEAAT 369 b it i 3R L o [y not carry out any hedging activities to manage its interest rate

exposure.
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29 Egi%lﬂ@%ﬁ&ﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁ

=

(o)

(d)

B

R E=L B (48)

BREDH
R-ZE—RF+-A=+—8 -
BEMBEMEFTTE - (BT AR

EATEI00EEE - AEBAKR
BB R AR ARSI R S
GRS LR R AR
M FER 18 h14934,512,0007T (=
T —A 4 1 58,259,0007T) °

BgRES T IRENEZESH R
REPEMAEERAERE - WEBREHE
EHERENFFITESRTAMAR
MM R E e MEE o LA TR100
BEEMKREEEHEET —ERS
BHIHIRA XN BESIEEFH T
fly o REER - T —RFHHHM L
MERELEETT -

BE¥ER
AEBETFRERE RSO ETEE
7 BERBORZAAREE - A
RASBERPENRERE T —RE
TRFASAREMERABTHET
BE WAKEREEARELETE
TR S| M INE R o BEON  AR
BAAIEmEBRING  MAKAR
BB RINE AT BB B M5
PEE HIAR AR ARBIRR

() BREREWER
TRATINIHE LB A EER
A BRI e B LAINE M A
ENERREEXABEMATH
SNERR - MERME - AR
&R IAETTIIR - R AR
EHR BRI o
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax
and total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by approximately $34,512,000 (2015: $58,259,000) in response to
the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
changes in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.

Currency risk

Almost all of the Group's operating activities are carried out in the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the exposure of RMB
against Hong Kong dollars as a result of its investment in the PRC
and the settlement of certain general and administrative expenses
and other borrowings in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars.
In addition, RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies and
the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

() EXPOSURE TO CURRENCY RISK

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of
each reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purpose, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period.

B RHIER Cash, restricted and
HIER pledged deposits 8,689 12,912 159,898 11,252
RS Note payable (1,097,035) = (1,167,406) -
CREREENBERE  Netexposure arising
A F L from recognised
assets and liabilities (1,088,346) 12,912 (1,007,508) 11,252
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29 BIEREEREMIAEAAR

(ERERC)

(d) E¥ERE

(m

BRBEDN
TRETRREHARNEE AT
BERRBRAINERE ZF 8 (RR
FrA H bR B 5 T &) By
REEERRIRR BT (RREEF])
H RN ) o

RMB

HKD

REBEBREEERAR

ZT—NFIR

29 FINAN
VALUE

CIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
S OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

m

SHEE=
LA (TH#)

Increase
(decrease) in
foreign
exchange
rates

Tr

$000

5%/
(5%)
5%/
(5%)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

“B-RE
2016
HH@EA Higs
RREEF A3 5 HihE5
g8 g8 7 hee
Effect on Effect on
profit after Effect on (decrease) profit after Effect on
tax and other in foreign taxand other
retained  components exchange retained  components
profits of equity rates profits of equity
i i i i i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(54,417) 54,417 5%/ (50,375) 50,375
54,417 (54,417) (5%) 50,375 (50,375)
646 = 5%/ 563 -
(646) - (5%) (563) -

SN BRRRSE AT TOARIE AN SR B 7Y
HE BN ERINERBRFR
(BRTEEEFANETILA
RELFTEERSANARE
R TTEEFES% ) WL
BMEREBBENOTETE
TRERSINEBHM R R
BERAKE2IERRELNE
2E o

(e) UARABEUINFIRNEHME
ERABARER
R B LA B 38 B S P R 51 B B 2 B
BEERAEREE ZER-_F—0
FRZF-AR"F+-A=1T—HBHA
AREETEERER -

(e) Fair

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based
on the major net foreign currency exposure of the Group
as at the reporting date, assuming 5% shift of HKD held by
PRC entities against RMB and RMB held by non-PRC entities
against HKD on the profit after tax and retained profits and
excludes differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.

value of financial assets and liabilities carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values at 31 December 2015 and 2016.
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29 f!;ﬁ%@l‘ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂlﬂﬁﬁ
= =Y

(453)
it ND =W

(f) AREEFE

0]

m

DRBEEER

BAMBREENE13RAL
BlEERERRESRT AN
AABENREMRILEEEE
EAE U BERBEVHRE
ERFIRAEBRNE=RR
REEER - BAAEBEFED
BEVER BB T HETTE
FrABABENABRERENRE
ZIHREE ¢

- FREE: EERE—-
T AR IREEES
BERFTERBELRT
BHAREABRRE)FTEN
N EE

— FHEE FREZR
AR (AR ERE—
WEy A B R A BUE) AP
SEFAEATAEBRE A
HIETENRAAERE T
AEREASIEAETS
R R ABUE

- F=MEE:EREXRT
EBRBABBAENR
REE

R-ZE—XRE+-_A=+—8"
KEBE—URAABEEYENE
BT AARAFBEESNE
e (R MsE24) - HuER
MhEEELAARBESHNE
W REER-_ZE—FHF+=-A
—t+—HYEFEESMTA -

HE—Z—R"Ft+=-A=+—H
IEFER - BENE—REE
Moo FHEITER - TNEERE S
B AE L c NEEMNBIRA
BRMEPHRAABESHE
AR 2 R EE S o

BoMAABEEMERANG
BEFERBABE

REET RARR D B8 B R
HRRME - SBRENRAEE
RAEERERE PR UE LT
XA IEZ A BEN G S
R o
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

U]

(m

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, requires the fair value
of the Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s only financial instrument
carried at fair value is the conversion option embedded in the
convertible bonds (see note 24), which fall under Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy described above. No financial instrument
was held by the Group at 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
in which they occurred.

VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND INPUTS USED IN LEVEL 2
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of conversion option is the estimated amount
that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the option
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
underlying share price and the potential shares outstanding to
be converted.
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30 &I 30 COMMITMENTS
() R=ZE—XRE+=ZH=+—H (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
ABTEARAEBHRBRR 2016 not provided for in the Group’s financial
RBENEREENT : statements were as follows:

SHES Contracted for 2,012,438 2,632,406
BIREERTY Authorised but not contracted for 2,452,633 2,183,670
4,465,071 4,816,076
BRAEFZERNEEFRPYEN Capital commitments mainly related to development expenditure for
BRATEH - the Group's properties under development.

b) R=F-—AR"FE+=F=+— (b) At 31 December 2016, the Group’s total future
B ZAEERBEFAIHELE minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
HERBEEMNNREHEHER operating leases are payable as follows:

AWM

—FER Within 1 year 26,755 31,139
—FREAFH After 1 year but within 5 years 65,233 93,422
hFE After 5 years 102,784 15,319
194,772 139,880
REBALENEE TN ZIEEFHRE The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of building facilities
RIAFA - ZEHE— RV RE— under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
ERF - WHEBEEBERAA BRRER of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease all terms are
Rz BB EE o WERSH A EME renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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31 HAREE 31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) (a)

METFAEEMEERIEZS Guarantees given to financial institutions
BEREE NS aEE for mortgage loan facilities granted to
R ER purchasers of the Group's properties 4,508,465 3,876,469
(b) R&tE—ZE—XRE+-_RA=+—8 (b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into
IEFE - REBNURIT R E AFT a new guarantee agreement (“New Guarantee Agreement”) in
UHERGE(THERBZE]) & favour of the banks, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
I AEERERERTHL S A joint liability guarantees in the amount of RMB1,500,000,000
A R #1,500,000,000 7T (18 & R 49 (approximately equivalent to $1,674,481,000) for loans granted by
1,674,481,0007T ) B B 5K A1 & 31 71 7% the banks to Shenzhen Yanhan Shiye Company Limited (" Shenzhen
BEEBRAT([RYIFRS )R HE Yanhan”), and a new charge on the Group’s 40% equity interest in
BERAER - URURITAKE AR Shenzhen Yanhan in favour of the banks.
RNEBMRRYIFERS ) 40% 7] LT
i -
32 EXBHMLERS 32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BHBHEAEMELHBEBENTZR (a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
EERON - AEBFNBEEIL NIIEX the financial statements, major related party transactions entered by
RABE A5 the Group during the year are follows:

FEU —EH & A ) Interest income receivable 0)

BN from an associate - 1,265
Rl A& Interest income receivable (i)

FEWA from joint ventures 15,715 53,218
FEUR FERE RS IR Interest income receivable from non- (iii)

FEWA controlling shareholders 21,158 32,257
JFE LS L At BB B A ) Interest income receivable (iv)

FEWA from other related company 9,899 -
FERIERF B Interest expense payable (v)

to shareholders 97,156 7,207

JESF— 2 R Interest expense payable (vi)

FEMAX to a related party 50,413 -
R —fEaErE Guarantee fee income

EREBWA receivable from a joint venture 14,534 -
ElR—HaEE Construction management service

BEBERBUA income receivable

from a joint venture 17,445 _
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32 ERBBAIRZ @) 32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) BFBBRENEMEHIHRENTIR (a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in

EERON - AEBENBEIL TIIEKR the financial statements, major related party transactions entered by

B AR5 () the Group during the year are follows: (Continued)

B Notes:

(i) FEW—EBE R T NERAR2E (i) Interest income receivable from an associate was calculated at floating
Abbey National Treasure Services plc. 5 interest rate by referring to base lending rate of Abbey National Treasure
NMEEMERAZBFIETH - Services plc.

(i ERAEELENBWANBENRGE (i) Interest income receivable from joint ventures were charged at fixed interest
51%8016.5%(—Z—FHE : 12.5%8K rates of 5.1% or 16.5% (2015:12.5% or 16.5%) per annum.

16.5%)5HE ©

(i) FEURSEFE AR IR B A B Uk A A [ E I R (i) Interest income receivable from non-controlling shareholders were charged
FEI%KL.67%(ZTE—FF : 3% at fixed interest rates of 3% or 4.67% (2015:3% or 12.5%) per annum.

12.5%)&T8 °

(iv)  FEUCHE b REEE A BIF B U A LA Bl E i & (iv)  Interest income receivable from other related company were charged at fixed
FEEWE B o interest rates of 6% per annum.

(v) EMBEEMEEY BTN RS E (v) Interest expenses payable to shareholders were charged at a fixed interest
12.29% -~ 6.9%3%9% ' KIATEHEH rate of 12.29%, 6.9% or 9% per annum or at floating interest rate of
ANERSRITEEFIE+20%5T 8. PBOC+20% per annum.

(i)  FER—FEEE A R S B LA E (vi) Interest expenses payable to a related party was charged at a fixed interest
BE12%:TE © rate of 12% per annum.

(b) TEERAESEH  pERESY (b) Remuneration of key management personnel, including amounts
HE R IE (AK 8 EE) LR mE T paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
BEYREERSREEE Y NHZIE paid employees and senior management as disclosed in note 9, is as
(PAMETOBER) & oI T ¢ follows:

EHIEERET Short-term employee benefits 65,718 70,371
RIRIBEF Post-employment benefits 170 134

65,888 70,505
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32 EXBBARS @)

(b) *ZEBMABEFM  BEANESX

(9]

RO FRIA (PO RE8 K ER ) LA e A T
ERFHEERSHRERENOFIA
(RBIFEOREE) AT - ()

FE@Bmat AIBTARAI(RKE
6(b)) °

HARREERSRITHRABEHNE
R RIS T X BB _E TR AN 14A
EATHBEERS - A - ZERXH
BEEHRET EMRANE14ATIE N H
| ANERBILREAENRE

HARNBXEEEAB(EERER
TTERA BERAN) BN Bl &0 B Bt 75 22
ST B LETHRBE14AZFTATER
HERHTIFERER S -

B FE 1 8(vi) AT FE S SRR AR AR R K
B~ MEE20d) TR IEH S E A
AT EmE el MM 24PTE AN B E
TR ES T —RREEK LR
BIE14AAEREMBER HNIFER
ERH o EMHAEMAERTENE
EHREEREEHERS | —F -

R E EE22(i) BT A BA R FEFE AR AR
BRRIE 2 BT 5 23(5i) AT R L At A AR S
BEMHESRIBFERER S (F
Z 5 ETRAIE14AE) - R - RE
EARAE14A901%  ARZEER S
REESEENREETETATE
AEBEEERT - Bl EREE
SFEMMRBIFUAENIEERT
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel, including amounts

(c)

paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees and senior management as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows: (Continued)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of
directors and chief executive of the Company constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
these transactions are exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of key
management personnel (other than directors and chief executive)
of the Company did not fall under the definition of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The amount due from non-controlling shareholders, as set out
in note 18(vi), deemed disposal of subsidiary to Yunnan Rongzhi
as set out in note 20(d) (ii) and the convertible bonds issued to
a shareholder of the Company as set out in note 24 constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required
by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section headed
“Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

The related party transactions in respect of amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders as set out in note 22(ii) and unsecured other
borrowings as set out in note 23(ii) constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However those transactions are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are conducted on normal commercial terms or better and not
secured by the assets of the Group under Rule 14A.90.
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33 AREEMBARREK 33 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
—E—RE
2016
S SEo TT Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000
REBEE Non-current assets
NG SES s Investments in subsidiaries 355,615 276,007
355,615 276,007
REBEE Current assets
Hith U zE Other receivables 6,567,375 5,368,820
ReLHEEEIER Cash and cash equivalents 62,617 117,471
6,629,992 5,486,291
REBEE Current liabilities
E e 5RIE Other payables 2,198,792 1,162,523
Hinfgs Other borrowings 352,807 1,050,000
THEEmIA Derivative financial
instruments 155,273 -
2,706,872 2,212,523
REBEERE Net current assets 3,923,120 3,273,768
wEERARBAS Total assets
less current liabilities 4,278,735 3,549,775
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
AR E S Convertible bonds 24 1,384,699 _
e Note payable 25 1,097,035 1,167,406
EERE NET ASSETS 1,797,001 2,382,369
BRA K CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28(a)
&N Share capital 118,378 118,143
B Reserves 1,678,623 2,264,226

RSB TOTAL EQUITY 1,797,001 2,382,369
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34 REHERNAEHARSIE

(a)

(b)

(0)

RBERREERR  EFEHIRN
REARS. o — P RHIF T E28(b) %

& o

RZZTE—+tF R +WMA - AEEE
BRABEKINEERES—EBREL
i, - & A AR 290,000,0007T (48
B A 49323,733,000 L) c R F
—+F=ZA-H  AEERGHEE
#923,295 5 RE) T S — 1) b
BHAYD -

RZE—+F=RA+H A5HHA
Silver Pond Investments Pty Ltd ([ 5%
A J) ~ New Spring Developments Pty
Ltd([E 7 1) ~ Silver Pond&E 5 K& &
BRAEE(ERADZE&E HZ - &
- WEFREEEEAREESHR
HZARBENHEEEMNREBEMBGTESE
1,436,074 % 7T (18 & 7 498,401,033
B IT) BB B & 77158 #9491ESilver Pond
BRAEFE(MEFE]) B+ K(ii) Silver
PondE HRIEHE B AR EHE S HAE
ARBAREA9RT(HHERK287 8
TL)EEXTAOR LB - REE
HEihik - AEERRBERTEXEDE
AT B T EREE78,681,82312
7T (F8 & 7 49460,288,6657 7T ) ° It
ER GEFE TR EXE - 7
AR - BEAETRREEBZEIUR
WHEFTP KRB RO BEERE LT
RN B R BB IR R AT AR R K
GHOAE ©

35 LLEEF
ETHREZOEFAE  UHAKERE
OELIy
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34 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 28(b).

On 14 February 2017, the Group successfully bid a parcel of
commercial land in Nanjing through public auction at a consideration
of RMB290,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$323,733,000).
The Group entered into a land grant contract for the land with a
total site area of approximately 23,295 sq.m on 2 March 2017.

On 10 March 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Silver Pond Investments Pty Ltd (“the Trustee”), New
Spring Developments Pty Ltd (“the Vendor”), the Silver Pond Vendor
and Mr Wong Chun Hong (“the Guarantor”), pursuant to which (i)
the Vendor agreed to sell, and the Group or its nominee agreed to
purchase, 49 units in the Silver Pond Unit Trust (“the Trust”) held
by the Vendor at the consideration in the estimated amount of
AUD1,436,074 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,401,033); and (ii)
the Silver Pond Vendor agreed to sell, and the Group or its nominee
agreed to purchase, 49% of the ordinary shares in the Trustee at
the consideration of AUD49 (equivalent to approximately HK$287).
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Group shall make
a capital contribution in the amount of AUD78,681,823 (equivalent
to approximately HK$460,288,665) as soon as practicable after the
completion to be taken place in the future. The completion of this
transaction is subject to certain conditions precedent including but
not limited to the sale and purchase agreement and the sale and
purchase of the units and the shares subject to the acquisition must
be approved at a general meeting of the independent shareholders
of the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.

35 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to current
year's presentation.
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36 EarHIE R AT
PR S B BRI R M TR
I R B & AT Y E B AORBULIT -

(a)

(b)
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36 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a)

(b)

Valuation of investment properties and investment
properties classified as held for sale

As described in note 12, investment properties and investment
properties classified as held for sale are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by an independent firm of professional
valuers.

In determining the fair value of investment properties and
investment properties classified as held for sale, the valuers have
based on a method of valuation which involves, inter alia, certain
estimates including current market rents and market price for similar
properties in the same location, and condition, appropriate discount
rates and expected future market rents.

In relying on the valuation report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of other
property, plant and equipment (other than investment properties)
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered impaired and
are tested for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when
the asset’s recoverable amount has declined below its carrying
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In determining the recoverable amount
which requires significant judgements, the Group estimates the
future cash flows to be derived from continuing use and ultimate
disposal of the asset and applies an appropriate discount rate to
these future cash flows.
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36 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Write-down of inventories for property development
Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts
of inventories for property development. Based on management's
review, write-down of inventories for property development will be
made when the estimated net realisable value has declined below
the carrying amount.

In determining the net realisable value of completed properties for
sale, management refers to prevailing market data such as recent
sales transactions, market survey reports available from independent
property valuers and internally available information, as bases for
evaluation.

In respect of leasehold land held for development for sale and
properties held for/under development for sale, the estimate of net
realisable value requires the application of a risk-adjusted discount
rate to estimate future discounted cash flows to be derived from
these properties. These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions
in nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing costs
(including price discounts required to stimulate sales) and the
expected costs to completion of properties, the legal and regulatory
framework and general market conditions.

LAT

As explained in note 7(a), LAT is levied on properties developed
by the Group and investment properties held by the Group in the
PRC for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, which under the applicable regulations is
calculated based on the proceeds of sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use right, borrowing
costs and all qualified property development expenditures. Given
the uncertainties of the calculation basis of LAT as interpreted by the
local tax bureau, the actual outcomes may be higher or lower than
those estimated at the end of each reporting period. Any increase
or decrease in actual outcomes/estimates would affect income
statement in the future years.
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BEGTERETRNER]  HE2REX - KFHE

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

BRI ERE2RNER] - HEH - AR BREREZ L REE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:

HEBEFREMERAR
ZT—NFIR

37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a few amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

RT3 E #sk
Z&BRE
EHBER

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

—E—+F—-HA—H
1 January 2017

—E—+F—-HA—H
1 January 2017

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

BBV BHMEERESN M TA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BB BSREERIENSS - BESATABIHA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BRMGRERRE2RNER] - KOZT - ARG BEBZ I BRI ERGZE
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment:

—T—\f—A—H
1 January 2018

—T—\f—A—H
1 January 2018

—T—\f—A—H
1 January 2018

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

BBV BHSERE 165 HE

HKFRS 16, Leases

AR BB IEFHE L FHER] KA EAIR IR
ERBMBENELNTE - Bt - A%E
REEWBERAZFIERT AT BRI ZFE
71 R R B BRI S R & B TS R TSR EY
FE o NEBEIFAHUAT ¥ RIR KM AT 5L
HIREMBBRREETE -

—F-NF—HA—H
1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the
period of initial application. The Group is therefore unable to disclose
the impact that adopting the amendments and new standards will have
on its consolidated financial statements when such amendments and
new standards are adopted. The group expects that the following new
standards may have impact to the consolidated financial statements in the
future.
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods
and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfers to a customer.
The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group's consolidated financial statements and has
identified the following areas that are likely to be affected:

° revenue from service — the application of HKFRS 15 may result
in the identification of separate performance obligations which
could affect the timing of the recognition of revenue.

e accounting for certain costs incurred in fulfilling a contract —
certain costs which are currently expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15, and

° rights of return — HKFRS 15 requires separate presentation
on the consolidated statement of financial position of the
right to recover the goods from the customer and the refund
obligation.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the impact of the
new rules on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Group will make more detailed assessments of the impact over the
next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation
of impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition
of financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

(A) CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit or
loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless
of the entity’s business model. The only exception is if
the equity security is not held for trading and the entity
irrevocably elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be recognised in
profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments on that
security will be recognised in other comprehensive
income without recycling.
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(A) CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT (continued)
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9. The Group
currently does not have any FVTPL.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified
as "available-for-sale”, these are investments in equity
securities which the Group may classify as either FVTPL or
irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI (without recycling) on
transition to IFRS 9. The Group has not yet decided whether
it will irrevocably designate these investments as FVTOCI or
classify them as FVTPL. Either classification would give rise to
a change in accounting policy as the current accounting policy
for available-for-sale equity investments is to recognise fair
value changes in other comprehensive income until disposal
or impairment, when gains or losses are recycled to profit or
loss in accordance with the Group’s policies set out in notes
1(g) and 1(m). This change in policy will have no impact on the
Group’s net assets and total comprehensive income but will
impact on reported performance amounts such as profit and
earnings per share.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of
a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s own credit risk to
be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does not
have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore
this new requirement may not have any impact on the Group
on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(B) IMPAIRMENT

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss
is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12 — month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances. This new impairment
model may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses
on the Group’s trade receivables and other financial assets.
However, a more detailed analysis is required to determine the
extent of the impact.

(iii) HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments. However, the Group has
not yet determined to what extent these commitments will result
in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future payments
and how this will affect the Group’s profit and classification of cash
flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for
short-term and low-value leases and some commitments may relate
to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.

There are no other IFRSs that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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mERER

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BE+t-A=T+-BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

“E-hf —ZTmF —T-=F
2015 2014 2013
T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000
A Revenue 5,558,731 10,519,689 6,971,024 5,746,528 6,064,954
HERK Direct costs (4,548,121) (7,324,878) (4,050,764) (3,446,121) (2,889,555)
ES Gross profit 1,010,610 3,194,811 2,920,260 2,300,407 3,175,399
REMERNEARERE  Valuation gains on investment
R EMENBERE properties and investment
properties classified
as held for sale 436,025 458,981 416,301 1,117,664 683,567
HplA Other revenue 191,122 233,361 251,898 124,468 131,672
Elss/ (BR)FaE Other net income/(loss) 735,933 (121,260) (39,517) 405,650 (28,365)
HEREHAY Selling and marketing
expenses (182,533) (243,960) (309,355) (254,968) (181,492)
THAX Administrative expenses (750,868) (658,953) (561,777) (533,644) (510,983)
ReLBEENRT Profit from operations 1,440,289 2,862,980 2,677,810 3,159,577 3,269,798
HERAE Finance costs (679,414) (509,340) (652,594) (671,779) (670,915)
FE{EHEE N AR Share of profits less losses
HER of associates (6,037) (49,820) 11,892 - 4,826
EREEEER Share of losses of joint
ventures (474) (6,997) (779) (5,017) -
BB AR Profit before taxation 754,364 2,296,823 2,036,329 2,482,781 2,603,709
FasiEe,/ (%) Income tax credit/(expense) 149,221 (1,243,072) (1,030,472) (1,120,941) (1,415,745)
EERF Profit for the year 903,585 1,053,751 1,005,857 1,361,840 1,187,964
BN AT FELG - Attributable to:
RN EERIR Equity shareholders of the Company 866,428 773,443 921,603 1,284,458 1,199,841
iR Non-controlling interests 37,157 280,308 84,254 77,382 (11,877)
FERF Profit for the year 903,585 1,053,751 1,005,857 1,361,840 1,187,964
FREAEAN () Basic earnings per share ($) 0.61 0.55 0.65 0.91 0.86
SRBFRAN(T) Diluted earnings per share ($) 0.42 0.54 0.65 0.90 0.85

M HECE-—F T A=+ -BIEFEZSRER
REE BRI RBITAR (S R E RKA R E
FINFZEMES

Note: Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2012, have been
restated for the impact of the bonus issue of Shares (with PCSs as an alternative).
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mEXEREE ICN%I\(I)SI\(I?IIE-IDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

BEt-A=1+-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-RE —T—HF —TNF —ZT—=F

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T TIT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

FERR Profit for the year 903,585 1,053,751 1,005,857 1,361,840 1,187,964

FEHMZEWE Other comprehensive

(RBEREHIE income for the year

FARE) (after tax and
reclassification
adjustments)

HEZAIEEHHDESE  Items that may be

BEHIEE ¢ reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

HEMBATEERH  Exchange differences

DEEEEMNER reclassified to profit or loss

=58 upon disposal of subsidiaries (25,015) - - - -
BN B A R Exchange differences on

BT RR B E A translation of financial

[E R ZE%5E statements of foreign
subsidiaries (941,173) (577,436) (168,486) 165,832 56,473
JEIEBEE AT R AEM  Share of other comprehensive
¥rE M 2K income of associates and
joint ventures (23,022) (20,125) (17,044) 4,572 1,646

FEZHEWHEHE Total comprehensive

income for the year (85,625) 456,190 820,327 1,532,244 1,246,083
BAUR AL B4 - Attributable to:
VIN/NET Zrdi g Equity shareholders

of the Company (42,338) 249,150 760,025 1,446,596 1,254,082
Esalivg T Non-controlling interests (43,287) 207,040 60,302 85,648 (7,999)

FEXEWNESHELEE Total comprehensive
income for the year (85,625) 456,190 820,327 1,532,244 1,246,083
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SGERMBRRE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Rt=B=t-H
At 31 December
“E-RE “E-0% “3-mF “F-ZF

2016 2015 2014 2013
T T T T T T T T
§'000 §'000 §000 §/000 §/000 §000 §/000 §/000

FRBEE Non-current assets
RENE Investment propertes 6,046,160 7,116,034 9,298671 9,295,306 4230817
Atz BER Other property, plant and
HiE equipment 303,408 362,090 425,138 474,355 450,588
JESTEREER  Interests inleasehold land
Mg LiER held for own use under
operating leases 3391 33881 4330 4,701 28,833
6,352,959 7,482,005 9,728,139 9,774,362 4,710,238
REENTES Interest in associates 87,718 21,095 163,030 - -
RAECENER Interest in joint ventures 225,822 230,580 350,067 166,238 160,378
Atemas Other financial assets 26,818 24,143 194,246 33,469 32,545
SREREEAER Restricted and pledged deposits - 11,939 194,955 1,407,161 124,363
EERELE Deferred tax assets 424,444 545,727 501,953 620,734 853,492
7,337,761 8,315,489 11,132,390 12,001,964 5,881,016
HHEE Current assets
7E Inventories 9,019,239 15,752,308 20,336,578 15,877,3% 11,628,155
EfemEE Other financial assets 47,979 253701 125,047 - 9949
ZHREMENTE  Trade and other receivables 2,623,876 2,496,253 1,720,448 2,059,293 1,520,168
A Prepaid tax 133,295 283,132 43,951 43929 -
SRERE AR Restricted and pledged deposits 2,488,695 1,847,879 3,133,318 3,170,483 989,365
BEREASEER  Cashand cash equivalents 3,713,086 3,789,854 6,374,760 5,606,262 4,901,251
18,026,170 24423127 31,739,102 26,757,361 19,048,888
ARERENED Investment properties classified
RENE as held for sale 663,104 1,216,821 - - -
18,689,274 25,639,948 31,739,102 26,757,361 19,048 888
it )=t Current liabilities
ZHREMEGTE  Tradeand other payables 6,710457 10,042,749 15,106,242 10,026,262 6,390,764
RRERES Bank and other borrowings 3,013,730 6,615,267 8,487,467 9,070,702 3293358
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 155,273 - - - 45436
M Tax payable 2,286,283 4,830,203 4,288,902 4872872 4512217
12,165,743 21488219 27,882,611 23,969,836 14,201,775

FHEEFE Net current assets 6,523,531 4,151,729 3,856,491 2,781,525 4,807,113

BEERRDAR Total assets less current
liabilities 13,861,292 12,467,218 14,988,831 14,789,489 10,688,129
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SEMBARRR @) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (Continued)

ZE-RE = E
2016 2012
r i L S T W S L
$/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
FrBeE Non-current liabilities
BORERES Bank and other borrowings 2,152,264 2938677 6,653,577 5,989,504 5,588,611
iEAER Convertible bonds 1,384,699 - - - _
AELEEN Loans from joint ventures - - - 1,223,687 -
JERTES Bonds payable 1,275,239 - - - R
EREE Note payable 1,097,035 1,167,406 - - -
EtiEaG Deferred tax liabilties 1,116,909 1,058,260 1,377,701 1,301,124 520214
7,026,146 5,164,343 8031278 8514405 6,108,825
BESHE NET ASSETS 6,835,146 7302875 6,957,603 6,275,084 4,579,304
AR CAPITAL AND RESERVES
e Share capital 118,378 118,143 116,073 115,530 100,187
i Reserves 5,780,518 6,107,708 6,000,462 5,530,466 4,355,198
ARIRERR Total equity attributable to
EfEREE equity shareholders
of the Company 5,898,896 6,225,851 6,116,535 5,645,996 4,455,385
FERER Non-controlling interests 936,250 1,077,024 841,068 629,088 123,919

BalE TOTALEQUITY 6,835,146 7,302,875 6,957,603 6,275,084 4,519,304
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